
AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, September 9, 2015 
Ribbon Cutting Ceremony – 7:15 PM 

Regular Session – 7:30 PM 

RIBBON CUTTING CEREMONY – 7:15 PM 

Council will convene at the corner of Hillside and F St. to have a Ribbon Cutting Ceremony for 
the Drought Tolerant Garden Project.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL FOR REGULAR SESSION – 7:30 PM 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

PRESENTATION 

 Introduction of new Facility Attendants Andy Gomez and Raphael Garcia

 Recreation Department Volunteer Recognition

 City Manager Commendation

 Recognition of Honor Roll Students

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 15, 2015 Special Meeting.

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the July 22, 2015 Special Meeting.

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for July 2015.

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for August 2015.

5. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 1.03.090 of the Colma Municipal Code,
Relating to the City Clerk Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) (second reading).

Page 1 of 3 



 

6. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Section 5.03.300 of the Colma Municipal Code, 
Relating to Design Review Zone Standards Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) (second 
reading). 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Establishing Salaries for New City Clerk and Public Works 
Maintenance Supervisor Positions and Adopting a Salary Schedule. 

8. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing City Manager to Execute Addendum 2 to Placeworks 
Contract for Environmental Services. 

PUBLIC HEARING 

9. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1755 MISSION ROAD 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Granting a Conditional Use Permit for a Storage 
Warehouse, for Use by a Moving Company, at the Commercial Building Located at 1755 Mission 
Road Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301. 

10. AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1531-1537 MISSION ROAD 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit to Provide 
That Uses at the Commercial Building Located at 1531-1537 Mission Road, Meeting Specific 
Criteria, May be Permitted by Issuance of an Administrative Use Permit from the City Planner, 
Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301. 

11. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT AT 1531-1533 MISSION ROAD 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Granting a Conditional Use Permit for a Home Staging 
Company at the Commercial Building Located At 1531-1533 Mission Road, Pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15301. 

12. SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEM ORDINANCE 

Consider: Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Adding a New Subchapter 5.05 to the Colma Municipal 
Code, Relating to Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems, and Waive a Further Reading 
of the Ordinance.  

13. CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME AND DAY ORDINANCE  

Consider: Motion to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Section 1.02.080 of the Colma Municipal 
Code, Relating to City Council Meeting Time, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance;   

or 
Motion to Introduce and Ordinance Amending Section 1.02.080 of the Colma Municipal Code, 
Relating to City Council Meeting Time and Days, and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance.  

NEW BUSINESS 

14. GRANT FUNDING REQUESTS 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant Funding, Approving 
Grants to Eligible Organizations, Finding that each Approved Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and 
Authorizing Contracts with Each Eligible Organization for the Use of Town Funds.  

15. GRANT FUNDING REQUEST FOR DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Determining Eligibility for Grant Funding, Approving a 
Grant to Daly City Public Library Associates, Finding that the Grant Serves a Public Purpose, and 
Authorizing a Contract with Daly City Public Library Associates for the Use of Town Funds. 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 



 

16. LIVE SCAN FINGERPRINTING FEE INCREASE 

Consider: Motion to Adopt a Resolution Amending Colma Administrative Code, Subchapter 1.10, 
Master Fee Schedule, Relating to Live Scan Fingerprinting.  

STUDY SESSION 

17. LOCAL HAZARD MITIGATION PLAN 

This item is for discussion only; there will be no action taken at this meeting.  

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1198 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

Page 3 of 3 
 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, July 15, 2015 

6:00 p.m.  

CLOSED SESSION 

Council convened for closed session from 6:07 p.m. to 7:19 p.m. 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.6 – Conference with Labor
Negotiators

Agency Negotiator: Sean Rabé, City Manager 
Employee Organizations: Colma Peace Officers Association and Colma 

Communications/Records Association 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario called the Regular Session of the Special Meeting of the City 
Council to order at 7:35 p.m.    

Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez and Joseph Silva were all present. 

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Chief of Police Kirk 
Stratton, Recreation Services Director Brian Dossey, Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, 
City Planner Michael Laughlin, and Interim City Clerk Caitlin Corley were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were noted. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Vice Mayor Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
Joseph Silva  

5 0 

Page 1 of 6 

ITEM #1



 

REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION  

The Mayor stated, “There was no reportable action taken at the closed session meeting 
tonight.” 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor del Rosario opened the public comment period at 7:43 p.m. and seeing no one come 
forward, she closed the public comment period. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the June 10, 2015 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the June 17, 2015 Special Meeting. 

4. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for June 2015. 

5. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, Events, 
and Trips for the Second Quarter of 2015. 

6. Motion Approving the Town's Response to the 2014/15 Grand Jury Report Re: Sea Level Rise. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Public Works Mutual Aid Agreement. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #2-7; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Fisicaro and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

8. RAMIREZ RECYCLER’S PERMIT  

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 7:43 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Helen Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving a Recycler’s 
Permit for the Collection of Cardboard from Commercial Businesses Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 
15061(b)(3); the motion was seconded by Council Member Gonzalez and carried by the 
following vote: 

  

Page 2 of 6 
 



 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

9. LEAGUE OF CALIFORNIA CITIES CONFERENCE DELEGATE  

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 7:51 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Designate Council Member Joseph Silva the Voting 
Delegate for the Annual League of California Cities Conference in September; the motion was 
seconded by Vice Mayor Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

10. TOWN HALL RENOVATION FINANCING  

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 8:13 p.m. Resident Patricia Simpson made a comment. The Mayor closed 
the public comment period at 8:15 p.m. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Direct the City Manager to Prepare Documents for 
the Execution, Sale and Delivery of Certificates of Participation (COPs) to Finance the Town Hall 
Renovation Project Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15303, 15331 and 15332; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

Page 3 of 6 
 



 

PUBLIC HEARING 

11. 1198 EL CAMINO REAL – TOWN HALL REMODEL 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 8:55 p.m. Resident Pat Hatfield made a comment. The Mayor closed the public 
hearing at 8:59 p.m. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving Design Review for 
the Colma Town Hall Renovation and Expansion Project Located at 1198 El Camino Real 
Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines 15303, 15331 and 15332 with changes made to condition (g) as 
directed by Council; the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

12. AMENDMENT OF DESIGN REVIEW STANDARDS 

City Planner Michael Laughlin presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
hearing at 9:28 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public hearing. 
Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt Resolution Amending the General Plan Land Use 
Element To Allow Additional Architectural Styles In Specified Locations Pursuant To CEQA 
Guideline 15061(b)(3); the motion was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to Introduce an Ordinance Amending Section 
5.03.300 of the Colma Municipal Code, Relating to Design Review Zone Standards Pursuant to 
CEQA Guideline 15061(b)(3) and Waive a Further Reading of the Ordinance; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

 

Page 4 of 6 
 



 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

13. APPROVAL OF ENGINEER’S REPORT FOR SANITARY SEWER SERVICE CHARGES 

Director of Public Works Brad Donohue presented the staff report.  Mayor del Rosario opened 
the public hearing at 9:37 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public hearing. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Vice Mayor Colvin moved to Adopt a Resolution Overruling Protests to and Adopting 
Engineer’s Report on Sewer Service Charges for Fiscal Year 2015-2016, and Directing the City 
Engineer to File a Copy of the Engineer’s Report with the San Mateo County Tax Collector, and 
Authorizing the County Tax Collector to Place the Charges on the Property Tax Roll; the motion 
was seconded by Council Member Silva and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next City Council Meeting will be a Special Meeting on Wednesday, July 22 2015 at 6:30 
p.m. at the Colma Community Center.  
 
The Regular Council Meeting on Wednesday, August 12, 2015 will be cancelled. The next 
Regular Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, September 9, 2015 at 7:30 p.m. 

REPORTS 

City Manager Sean Rabé reported on the following topics: 

 Caitlin Corley has been appointed Interim City Clerk. 

 Comcast will be hosting an event on Saturday July 18 at 8:00 a.m. at the Community 
Center to help residents upgrade and exchange their existing cable equipment.   

  

Page 5 of 6 
 



 

ADJOURNMENT AND CLOSE IN MEMORY 

The meeting was adjourned by Mayor del Rosario at 9:50 p.m. in memory of Maria Angela 
Aguinaldo, cousin of Mayor del Rosario.  
 

 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
 
 
Caitlin Corley 
Interim City Clerk 
 

Page 6 of 6 
 



MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
City Hall, 1198 El Camino Real 

Colma, CA 94014 

Wednesday, July 22, 2015 
6:00 p.m. 

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor del Rosario called the Special Meeting of the City Council for the Town of Colma to 
order at 6:07 p.m.  

Council Present – Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Vice Mayor Diana Colvin, Council Members 
Helen Fisicaro, Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez and Joseph Silva were all present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Sean Rabé and City Attorney Christopher Diaz were in 
attendance. 

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor del Rosario asked if there were any changes to the agenda; none were noted. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action:  Council Member Fisicaro moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Vice Mayor Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
Joseph Silva  

5 0 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. APPROVAL OF COPs

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened the public
comment period at 6:10 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak she closed the
public comment period. Council discussion followed.

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution of the City Council of the
Town of Colma Authorizing the Issuance and Sale of its 2015 Certificates of
Participation, Authorizing Execution and Delivery by the Town of a Lease Agreement, a
Trust Agreement, Approving a Notice of Sale and a Continuing Disclosure Agreement

Page 1 of 2 

ITEM #2



and the Preparation and Delivery of a Preliminary Official Statement and Final Official 
Statement with Respect to the Issuance and Sale of Such Certificates of Participation, 
Appointing a Trustee and Making Other Findings Relating Thereto, All Pursuant to CEQA 
Guidelines 15303, 15331 and 15332; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor Colvin and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

 
2. NONPROFIT GRANT CATEGORY FUNDING LEVELS  

City Manager Sean Rabé presented the staff report. Mayor del Rosario opened the public 
comment period at 6:50 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed. 

Action: Council Member Gonzalez moved to Establish Funding Categories for Grants to 
Nonprofits as Presented by Staff; the motion was seconded by Council Member Fisicaro 
and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva       
 5 0    

 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

Mayor del Rosario adjourned the Special Meeting at 6:58 p.m. 
 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
 

Sean Rabé 
City Manager  

Page 2 of 2 

 



ITEM #3



















































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ITEM #4























































 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.03.090 OF THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO THE CITY CLERK PURSUANT TO CEQA 

GUIDELINE 15061(b)(3) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 1.03 AMENDED. 1 

Section 1.03.090, City Clerk, of Subchapter 1.03, Officers and Employees, is hereby amended to 
state as follows: 

1.03.090 City Clerk 

The City Clerk shall be appointed by the City Council Manager of the Town of Colma and shall 
serve at the will of the City Manager. The duties of the City Clerk shall be those now or 
hereafter fixed by the laws of the State of California, and by the City Council, and/or the City 
Manager. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord No. ___ City Clerk (Introduced June 10, 2015) Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\9796030.1  

ITEM #5



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on June 10, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ City Clerk (Introduced June 10, 2015)  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\9796030.1  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 5.03.300 OF THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO DESIGN REVIEW ZONE STANDARDS 

PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15061(B)(3) 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SECTION 5.03.300 OF SUBCHAPTER 5.03 AMENDED. 

Section 5.03.300 shall be and hereby is amended as follows: 

5.03.300 Restrictions and Procedures Applicable to the "DR" Design Review 
Zone. 

(a)  Applicability. The requirements of this section shall apply to all site, landscape and 
building plans, whether submitted in connection with the construction of a new building or an 
alteration or modification to the structure or façade of an existing building, within the area 
described in Section 5.03.040(d) with the following exceptions: 

(1)  An addition or modification to an existing building where the addition or 
modification, if it were to conform to the DR standards, would clash with the building’s 
established architectural theme. 

(2)  Construction of secondary or accessory structures on parcels with existing 
buildings where the new building plans, were they to conform to the DR standards, 
would clash with existing improvements having recognized historical or architectural 
merit. 

(3)  Construction of new buildings on cemetery grounds with a G base zone, where 
the new site and building plans, were they to conform to the DR standards, would clash 
with existing improvements having recognized historical or architectural merit. 

(4) Wireless Communications Facilities in the “DR” Zone shall be subject to the 
requirements of subchapter 5.17 only. 

(b)  DR (S) Design Standards. All plans for development in the portion of the DR zone 
which are designated with an “(S)” shall incorporate building, site and landscape design 
elements representing the Spanish/Mediterranean style as defined in the following subsections. 

(1)  Building Design Elements. Principal structures and secondary structures such as, 
storage buildings and trash enclosures must be architecturally consistent. The following 
design elements must be present in all buildings: 

Ord No. ___ Amending Subchapter 5.03 Design Review Zone (Introduced 7/15/15) Page 1 of 5 

ITEM #6



(i)  Buildings shall incorporate simple, stepped massing, highlighted with 
towers, cupolas and varied chimney forms. Flat walls shall be minimized 
by interruptions using balconies, patios, shed roof elements, clerestory 
windows, gable end or trellis arcades and colonnades of stylized columns 
or arches. 

 
(ii)  Roofs shall be low pitched gable and shed roof types with terra-cotta or 

similar colored real, individual Spanish barrel tile. No manufactured tile or 
sheets of tile may be used. All flat roof areas shall be surrounded by a 
parapet wall and must not be located where they can be viewed from 
adjacent buildings or property. Parapet walls shall be of such height that 
will completely screen all rooftop equipment. 

 
(iii)  Wall surfaces shall be composed primarily of stucco and must be 

articulated by use of columns, piers and pilasters. Window and door 
openings shall be varied in size and articulated by use of deep reveals, 
exposed lintels and sills, iron grillwork and faux balconies. Arched 
openings are encouraged. 

 
(iv)  Door and window openings shall be designed to convey the thickness of 

masonry construction by recessing the doors and windows and using 
ornamental surrounds. Ornamentation may consist of stucco moldings, 
bands of tile or other framing. Glass areas must be broken up by 
mullions. Operable casement or double hung windows are encouraged. 
Windows can be covered externally with appropriately designed grilles 
integral to the surface of the building. 

 
(2)  Site and Landscape Design Elements. The following elements must be present in 
the site and landscape designs: 
 

(i)  Site plan and landscape design must appropriately integrate and conceal 
utility vaults, back flow prevention devices, trash dumpsters and other 
accessory elements that may not be compatible with the Spanish-
Mediterranean theme. 

 
(ii)  A formal balanced planting layout shall be achieved by using elements 

such as landscape entry features, tree lined walks and drives, and 
boundary tree rows. Formal placement of trees in courts, pavilions and 
parking lots can significantly enhance the character of these public and 
private areas. Use of accent features such as brightly colored flowers and 
palm trees is encouraged. Drought tolerant and California native plant 
materials are encouraged. 
 

 
(iii)  Landscape design shall incorporate features such as arbors, trellises, 

fountains, walks, pavilions, curbs, light standards, benches, sculpture, 
enhanced pavement (materials, textures and patterns), garden walls 
(free-standing and retaining), wood fences and gates, ironwork gates and 

Ord No. ___ Amending Subchapter 5.03 Design Review Zone (Introduced 7/15/15) Page 2 of 5 



railings, planting pots and urns in order to integrate the 
Spanish/Mediterranean design theme throughout the overall project 
design. 

 
(c)  DR Design Standards. All plans for development in the DR zone without an “(S)” 
designation shall incorporate building, site and landscape design elements that are appropriate 
for the setting based on surrounding properties as defined in the following subsections. 
 

(1)  Building Design Elements. Principal structures and secondary structures such as, 
storage buildings and trash enclosures must be architecturally consistent with each 
other. The following design elements must be present in all buildings: 
 

(i)  Buildings shall incorporate simple, stepped massing. Flat walls shall be 
composed of a durable material and shall be minimized by interruptions 
including wall off-sets, varied use of materials, trim banding, score lines, 
trim molding, contrasting colors, trellises etc. The use of tower or 
articulated roof elements is encouraged.  

 
(ii)  Roofs shall be low pitched gable and shed roof types. All flat roof areas 

shall be surrounded by a parapet wall and must not be located where 
they can be viewed from adjacent buildings or property. Parapet walls 
shall be of such height that will completely screen all rooftop equipment. 

 
 

(2)  Site and Landscape Design Elements. The following elements must be present in 
the site and landscape designs: 
 

(i)  Site plan and landscape design must appropriately integrate and conceal 
utility vaults, back flow prevention devices, trash dumpsters and other 
accessory elements. 

 
(ii)  A formal balanced planting layout shall be achieved by using elements 

such as landscape entry features, tree lined walks and drives, and 
boundary tree rows. Formal placement of trees in courts, pavilions and 
parking lots can significantly enhance the character of these public and 
private areas. Use of accent features such as brightly colored flowers and 
palm trees is encouraged. Drought tolerant and California native plant 
materials are encouraged. 

 
(iii)  Landscape design shall incorporate features such as arbors, trellises, 

fountains, walks, pavilions, curbs, light standards, benches, sculpture, 
enhanced pavement (materials, textures and patterns), garden walls (free 
standing and retaining), wood fences and gates, ironwork gates and 
railings, planting pots and urns as appropriate to the project.  

 

Ord No. ___ Amending Subchapter 5.03 Design Review Zone (Introduced 7/15/15) Page 3 of 5 



ARTICLE 2. ZONING MAP AMENDED.  

This City Council hereby approves amendments to the zoning map for the Design Review (DR) 
overlay zone, as shown on the Amended Zoning Map attached hereto and incorporated herein 
by reference.  

ARTICLE 3. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 4. NOT A CEQA PROJECT.  

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. Any future 
development subject to this Ordinance will undergo independent discretionary review and 
independent CEQA analysis.  

ARTICLE 5. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Ord No. ___ Amending Subchapter 5.03 Design Review Zone (Introduced 7/15/15) Page 4 of 5 



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a special meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on July 15, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Amending Subchapter 5.03 Design Review Zone (Introduced 7/15/15) Page 5 of 5 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Establishing Salaries for City Clerk and Public Works Maintenance 
Supervisor Positions and Adopting a Salary Schedule  

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING SALARIES FOR NEW CITY CLERK AND PUBLIC WORKS 
MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR POSITIONS AND ADOPTING A SALARY SCHEDULE 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Fiscal Year 2015-16 Budget included two new unrepresented employee classifications – City 
Clerk and Public Works Maintenance Supervisor. The attached resolution establishes the salary 
ranges for each of those new positions and includes a new salary schedule for all Town 
employment positions. No  changes are proposed or included in the attached salary schedule, 
other than the inclusion of the two new employment positions. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Both positions were included in the staffing chart in the FY 2015-16 budget. 

The salary for the City Clerk position has already been included in the FY 2015-16 budget. The 
existing employee will be classified at Step 2 for an annual salary cost of $88,999 before 
benefits. This represents a 5 percent pay increase over the employee’s current salary.  

The Public Works Maintenance Supervisor position was not included in the FY 2015-16 budget. 
However, there is ample funding available in the Public Works Maintenance budget to cover the 
increased costs associated with the position. The Interim Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
will be classified at Step 4 of the proposed range for an annual salary cost of $91,436. This 
represents a 5 percent pay increase over the employee’s current salary.  

BACKGROUND 

The FY 2015-16 budget included two new positions in the staffing level chart (see Attachment 
B): City Clerk and Public Works Maintenance Supervisor. Administrative Technician III Caitlin 
Corley was appointed Interim City Clerk effective July 1, 2015. Public Works Maintenance 
Technician III Louis Gotelli was appointed Interim Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
effective April 27, 2015 upon the resignation of the incumbent. The City Manager has met with 

Staff Report Establishing Salaries - City Clerk, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\17616873.1  
9/2/15  

ITEM #7



each employee to establish job descriptions and salary ranges for each position. The proposed 
ranges are the result of those meetings and have been agreed to by the affected employees.  

ANALYSIS 

The City Clerk range is similar to (though slightly lower) than most of the City Clerk positions in 
San Mateo County. The range is proposed slightly lower because the Town of Colma’s City Clerk 
is not a department head, as is the case with most other cities in San Mateo County. Rather, 
the City Clerk works for the City Manager.  

The Public Works Maintenance Supervisor range is similar to the same classifications of nearby 
cities (specifically, Daly City and Brisbane).  

Colma Administrative Code Section 3.02.320 (Pay for Working in a Higher Classification) 
requires that employees working in a higher classification have their salary increased to either 
the starting salary of the higher classification or 5 percent, whichever is greater.  

In the case of the City Clerk position, the Interim City Clerk had her salary adjusted by 5 
percent since there was no existing salary range (commonly referred to Out of Class pay). In 
establishing the City Clerk range, staff set Step 1 at the Out of Class pay. 

In the case of the Public Works Maintenance Supervisor, the Interim Supervisor had his salary 
adjusted by 5 percent since there was no existing salary range. In establishing the Public Works 
Maintenance Supervisor range, staff set Step 3 at the Out of Class pay in order to keep the 
range comparable to other agencies.  

The proposed ranges are as follows:  

City Clerk  
STEP 1 2 3 4 5 
  $40.75 $42.79 $44.93 $47.17 $49.53 
  

    
  

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
STEP 1 2 3 4 5 
  $37.97 $39.87 $41.86 $43.96 $46.15 

Finally, the City Council is also being asked to adopt a full and complete pay or salary schedule 
that includes all Town employment positions and their respective monthly salary scales. The pay 
or salary schedule is included as Exhibit “A” to the resolution in your packet. 

Pursuant to Title 2 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 570.5, the City Council is 
required to adopt a full salary schedule in order to ensure the California Public Employees’ 
Retirement System or CalPERS can determine the “compensation earnable” as that term is used 
in Government Code Sections 20630, 20636, and 20636.1. No changes to the various salary 
scales are proposed by the adoption of the pay or salary schedule. Instead, the pay or salary 
schedule merely memorializes existing salaries, but also includes the salary scale for the new 
City Clerk and Public Works Maintenance Supervisor positions.  
  

Staff Report Establishing Salaries - City Clerk, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor  Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\17616873.1  
9/2/15  



Council Adopted Values 

Adoption of the attached resolution is the fair course of action because the City Council will be 
treating these two new job classifications in the same way it has with other similar 
classifications. Adoption of the resolution is also the responsible course of action because the 
Council has considered the long term fiscal implications of this decision.  
 
Alternatives 

The Council could choose to not adopt the proposed resolution, or to request modifications to 
the proposed salary ranges. Doing so is not recommended, however, because the salary ranges 
follow the Town’s personnel policies and are based on comparable entities within San Mateo 
County.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends adoption of the attached resolution.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution with attached Exhibit “A”  
B. FY 2015-16 Budget Staffing Chart 

 
 

Staff Report Establishing Salaries - City Clerk, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor  Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\17616873.1  
9/2/15  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION ESTABLISHING SALARIES FOR NEW CITY CLERK  
AND PUBLIC WORKS MAINTENANCE SUPERVISOR POSITIONS AND ADOPTING A 

SALARY SCHEDULE 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background.

(a) The City Council adopted its fiscal year 2015-2016 budget at its June 2015 City Council
meeting. 

(b) The budget included two new unrepresented non-exempt employee positions – City 
Clerk and Public Works Maintenance Supervisor. 

(c) The City Manager is now recommending that the City Council set the salaries for these 
two positions as provided for in this Resolution. 

2. Salary Scale for City Clerk Position. The Town shall pay the City Clerk, an 
unrepresented non-exempt employee, the respective monthly salaries shown below, with the 
City Manager determining the appropriate step in accordance with Subchapter 3.02 of the 
Colma Administrative Code relating to Employment: 

City Clerk 
STEP 1 2 3 4 5 

$40.75 $42.79 $44.93 $47.17 $49.53 

3. Salary Scale for Public Works Maintenance Supervisor Position. The Town
shall pay the Public Works Maintenance Supervisor, an unrepresented non-exempt employee, 
the respective monthly salaries shown below, with the City Manager determining the 
appropriate step in accordance with Subchapter 3.02 of the Colma Administrative Code relating 
to Employment: 

Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 
STEP 1 2 3 4 5 

$37.97 $39.87 $41.86 $43.96 $46.15 

4. Salary Schedule Adopted.

(a) The City Council hereby adopts a pay or salary schedule for all Town employment
positions with the applicable pay or salary for each position listed, in compliance with Title 2 of 
the California Code of Regulations Section 570.5.  

Res. 2015-__, Establishing Salaries - City Clerk, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\17614243.1  

Attachment A



(b) The pay or salary schedule is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” and is hereby incorporated 
by this reference.  

(c) No changes in pay or salary are proposed for those positions on the pay or salary 
schedule, with the exception of the inclusion of the new City Clerk and Public Works 
Maintenance Supervisor salary scale as set by this Resolution. 

5. No Contract. Nothing herein shall be construed as a contract with any employee, and 
the City Council shall have the discretion to modify the respective salaries in accordance with 
any applicable state or local provisions. 

6. Effective Date. This resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 9, 2015 by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

Res. 2015-__, Establishing Salaries - City Clerk, Public Works Maintenance Supervisor  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\17614243.1  



Town%of%Colma%Pay%Schedule%09/09/15
%

Ordinance%#%
or%Resolution%

# Dated
Elected%Officials%(Monthly)
Mayor&&&City&Council 924.00&&&&&& ORD.&729 11/13/2013

Hourly Step%1 Step%2 Step%3 Step%4 Step%5 Step%6
Accountant&I & 36.72&&&&&&& 38.56&&&&&&& 40.49&&&&&&& 42.52&&&&&&& 44.64&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Accounting&Technician & 32.58&&&&&&& 34.21&&&&&&& 35.93&&&&&&& 37.72&&&&&&& 39.62&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Administrative&Technician&I 30.41&&&&&&& 31.94&&&&&&& 33.53&&&&&&& 35.21&&&&&&& 36.96&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Administrative&Technician&II 31.94&&&&&&& 33.53&&&&&&& 35.21&&&&&&& 36.96&&&&&&& 38.81&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Administrative&Technician&III 31.94&&&&&&& 33.53&&&&&&& 35.21&&&&&&& 36.96&&&&&&& 38.81&&&&&&& 40.76&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Assistant&City&Manager 69.31&&&&&&& 72.77&&&&&&& 76.42&&&&&&& 80.24&&&&&&& 84.25&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
City&Clerk 40.75&&&&&&& 42.97&&&&&&& 44.93&&&&&&& 47.17&&&&&&& 49.53&&&&&&&
City&Manager 91.35&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2015@07 02/11/2015
Community&Service&Officer 29.67&&&&&&& 31.15&&&&&&& 32.71&&&&&&& 34.35&&&&&&& 36.06&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Director&of&Recreation&Services 45.39&&&&&&& 47.66&&&&&&& 50.06&&&&&&& 52.55&&&&&&& 55.18&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Facility&Attendant 10.01&&&&&&& 10.50&&&&&&& 11.04&&&&&&& 11.59&&&&&&& 12.16&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Human&Resources&Manager 44.64&&&&&&& 46.88&&&&&&& 49.22&&&&&&& 51.69&&&&&&& 54.27&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Maintenance&Technician&I (7) 29.74&&&&&&& 31.22&&&&&&& 32.78&&&&&&& 34.42&&&&&&& 36.15&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Maintenance&Technician&II (7) 31.22&&&&&&& 32.78&&&&&&& 34.42&&&&&&& 36.15&&&&&&& 37.95&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Maintenance&Technician&III (7) 31.22&&&&&&& 32.78&&&&&&& 34.42&&&&&&& 36.15&&&&&&& 37.95&&&&&&& 39.86&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Police&Chief (1) 81.73&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2014@46 10/08/2014
Police&Commander (1) 60.15&&&&&&& 63.15&&&&&&& 66.32&&&&&&& 69.63&&&&&&& 73.11&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Police&Communications/Dispatcher&Supervisor (2)(4) 44.74&&&&&&& 45.97&&&&&&& 47.22&&&&&&& 48.47&&&&&&& 49.71&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Dispatcher&/&Clerk (6)(4) 37.12&&&&&&& 38.15&&&&&&& 39.19&&&&&&& 40.21&&&&&&& 41.24&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Officer&1 (1)(3)(5) 41.54&&&&&&& 43.62&&&&&&& 45.80&&&&&&& 48.09&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Officer&2 (1)(3)(5) 43.20&&&&&&& 45.36&&&&&&& 47.63&&&&&&& 50.01&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Officer&3 (1)(3)(5) 44.04&&&&&&& 46.24&&&&&&& 48.55&&&&&&& 50.98&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Officer&4 (1)(3)(5) 44.86&&&&&&& 47.11&&&&&&& 49.46&&&&&&& 51.94&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Sergeant&1 (1)(3)(5) 51.52&&&&&&& 52.58&&&&&&& 53.67&&&&&&& 56.64&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Sergeant&2 (1)(3)(5) 53.58&&&&&&& 54.68&&&&&&& 55.81&&&&&&& 58.91&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Sergeant&3 (1)(3)(5) 54.60&&&&&&& 55.73&&&&&&& 56.88&&&&&&& 60.05&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Police&Sergeant&4 (1)(3)(5) 55.64&&&&&&& 56.79&&&&&&& 57.96&&&&&&& 61.17&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@30 09/11/2013
Public&Works&Maintenance&Supervisor (7) 37.97&&&&&&& 39.87&&&&&&& 41.86&&&&&&& 43.96&&&&&&& 46.15&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&&
Recreation&Coordinator 29.66&&&&&&& 31.14&&&&&&& 32.70&&&&&&& 34.33&&&&&&& 36.04&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Recreation&Leader&I 9.53&&&&&&&&& 10.00&&&&&&& 10.50&&&&&&& 11.02&&&&&&& 11.58&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Recreation&Leader&II ! 10.01&&&&&&& 10.50&&&&&&& 11.04&&&&&&& 11.59&&&&&&& 12.16&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Recreation&Leader&III 10.51&&&&&&& 11.04&&&&&&& 11.59&&&&&&& 12.16&&&&&&& 12.77&&&&&&& @&&&&&&&&&&& Reso&2013@33 10/09/2013
Special&Project&Management&Analyst 50.00&&&&&&& Reso&2015@01 01/14/2015

(1)!!These!positions!receive!a!$880!per!year!uniform!allowance!

(2)!This!position!receive!a!5.0%!!incentive!for!RIMS!Administrator

(3)!!These!positions!receive!an!additional!5%!Holiday!Pay

(4)!!These!positions!receive!a!$665!per!year!uniform!allowance

(5)!These!positions!may!receive!a!5%!incentive!for!Acting!Commander,!Acting!Sergeant,!Officer!in!Charge,!Training!Officer,!and/or!Detective

(6)!This!position!may!receive!a!2.5%!!incentive!for!BackRup!RIMS!Administrator

(7)!These!positions!may!receive!$100!per!week!standRby!pay

Exhibit A



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFFING

FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15 FY 2015-16
POSITION TITLE ADOPTED ADOPTED ADOPTED ADOPTED  ADOPTED 

Town Staffing
Accountant I 1.00 1.00              - - - 
Accounting Technician 0.75 0.75              0.75             1.80             1.80             
Administrative Technician I -             - - - 1.00             
Administrative Technician II/III 1.50 1.50              1.50             1.50             - 
Assistant City Manager / Deputy City Clerk 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
City Clerk -             - - - 1.00             
City Manager -             - - - 1.00             
City Manager / City Clerk 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             - 
Human Resources Manager 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Special Projects Management Analyst -             - - - 0.25             
Vacant, unfunded Assistant City Manager (1.00)          (1.00) (1.00)            (1.00)            (1.00)            
          City Manager Department Total 5.25 5.25              4.25             5.30             6.05             
Maintenance Supervisor -             - - - 1.00             
Maintenance Technician I 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Maintenance Technician II 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Maintenance Technician III 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             - 
          Public Works Department Total 3.00 3.00              3.00             3.00             3.00             
Administrative Technician II 1.00 1.00              1.00             - - 
Part-time Facility Attendant (7 x .5) 3.00 3.00              3.50             3.50             3.50             
Part-time Recreation Leader (8 x .5) 4.00 4.00              4.00             4.00             4.00             
Recreation Coordinator 1.00 1.00              1.00             2.00             2.00             
Recreation Services Director 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
          Recreation Department Total 10.00 10.00            10.50           10.50           10.50           
Administrative Technician III 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Community Services Officer 0.75 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Detective 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Detective Sergeant 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Dispatch Supervisor 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Dispatcher 4.00 4.00              3.20             3.20             3.20             
Officer 11.00 11.00            11.00           11.00           11.00           
Police Chief 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Police Commander 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
Sergeant 4.00 4.00              4.00             4.00             4.00             
Vacant, unfunded Police Officer (2.00)          (2.00) - - - 
          Police Department Total 23.75 24.00            25.20           25.20           25.20           
     Town Total 42.00 42.25            42.95           44.00           44.75           

Contract Staffing
Building 1.25 1.25              1.25             1.25             1.25             
City Attorney 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             0.50             
Engineering 3.50 3.50              3.50             3.50             3.50             
Finance -             - 0.75             0.75             0.75             
Planning 1.80 1.80              2.50             2.50             2.50             
Public Works 1.00 1.00              1.00             1.00             1.00             
     Contract Total 8.55 8.55              10.00           10.00           9.50             
     Total Budgeted Staffing 50.55 50.80            52.95           54.00           54.25           

- 21 -

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Michael P. Laughlin, City Planner 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Placeworks Contract Addendum 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt: 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ADDENDUM 2 TO 
PLACEWORKS CONTRACT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Through a competitive RFP process, Placeworks was selected as one of five environmental 
review firms to provide services to the Town for analysis of development applications, and 
Placeworks has an existing executed contract with the Town.  The Town is anticipating the 
submittal of an application for a new car dealership at 435-455 Serramonte Boulevard in early 
September.  It has been determined that this application will require the preparation of either a 
Mitigated Negative Declaration or a Focused Environmental Impact Report (FEIR).  The 
estimated cost to prepare the necessary environmental document will exceed the City 
Manager’s signing authority of $75,000.00 and, therefore, requires City Council authorization.  
The total estimated cost for additional services in Addendum 2 is $102,964.00 

FISCAL IMPACT 

None.  The applicant will provide a deposit to cover all costs associated with the preparation of 
the environmental document, along with a deposit of 10% of the document preparation cost for 
staff’s time in working with the consultant and reviewing documents. An additional deposit is 
required from the applicant to cover review costs of the environmental document by the City 
Attorney. 

BACKGROUND & ANALYSIS 

The City Manager authorized Addendum 1 to the Placeworks contract on July 6, 2015 for the 
preparation of a limited transportation assessment for the proposed project at 435-455 
Serramonte Boulevard in the amount of $8,150.00.  This preliminary work was required to 
determine the extent of project impacts for a new car dealership, particularly traffic impacts.  
This analysis determined the number of traffic intersections requiring study, proposed traffic 

Staff Report re Placeworks Contract Addendum  Page 1 of 2 
August 26, 2015 

ITEM #8



distribution, and provided a preliminary assessment of potential traffic impacts based on 
existing data sources.  Two of the potentially impacted intersections include El Camino 
Real/Serramonte and Junipero Serra Boulevard/Serramonte, which are both under Caltrans 
control.  Because the ability to implement traffic mitigation at these two intersections is 
dependent on Caltrans for implementation, the consultants were not able to conclusively 
determine if the project would require a Mitigated Negative Declaration or a FEIR with respect 
to traffic. Staff is recommending Council authorization of the entire amount of Addendum 2, in 
the event a FEIR is required. 

VALUES 
 
The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it allows for 
the timely engagement of the consultant to prepare a needed environmental document. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 
 
None. 
 
ALTERNATIVES 
 
None. 
 
CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council approve Addendum 2 to the Placeworks contract and 
authorize the City Manager to execute the addendum.  

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Resolution  
B. Proposed Placeworks Contract Addendum 2 (with Placeworks scope of work as  

Exhibit A) 
 

Staff Report re Placeworks Contract Addendum   Page 2 of 2 
August 26, 2015 



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE ADDENDUM 2 TO 
PLACEWORKS CONTRACT FOR ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve: 

1. Background

(a) Placeworks has an approved contract with the Town of Colma to provide as-needed
environmental review services. 

(b) Placeworks has been selected to prepare environmental documents for a proposed car 
dealership at 435-455 Serramonte Boulevard. 

(c) The City Manager executed Addendum 1 to the contract in the amount of $8,150.00 on 
July 6, 2015. 

(d) The proposed resolution would amend the existing contract to include additional services 
costing $102,964.00, which would bring the total price for the 435-455 Serramonte Boulevard 
contract to $111,114.00. 

2. Order

(a) The City Council hereby approves Addendum 2 to the Placeworks contract.

(b) The City Manager shall be, and hereby is, authorized to execute said Addendum 2, with
such technical amendments as may be deemed appropriate by the City Manager and the City 
Attorney.   

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Placeworks Contract Page 1 

Attachment A



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 9, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin       
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva      
Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
  Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 

 
 Attest:______________________________ 
    Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

 

Placeworks Contract   Page 2 



ADDENDUM 2  

TO PLACEWORKS ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT 
435-455 SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD CEQA DOCUMENT PREPARATION 

Pursuant to 1(b) of the Environmental Consulting Services Contract dated August 22, 2013 between the 
Town of Colma and Placeworks (Formerly The Planning Center/DC&E), (“Consultant”), the Town 
authorizes Consultant, and Consultant agrees to perform the services described in this Addendum 2.  

SCOPE OF WORK 

The Scope of Work describes the work for the preparation of environmental documents to be prepared 
by PlaceWorks for the Town of Colma.  The Scope of Work is attached as Exhibit A 

SCHEDULE, PRODUCTS, AND MEETINGS 

PlaceWorks will proceed with this work upon approval of the Contract, and in accordance with the 
timeframes presented in Exhibit A, attached.  

COSTS 

The total estimated cost for this work is $76,845.00 or the preparation of an Initial Study and Mitigated 
Negative Declaration, with an estimated cost for preparation of a Focused Environmental Impact Report 
of $26,119.00, if required,  as outlined in Exhibit A, attached. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made this Contract as of the date last 
signed below. 

Dated: ___________________ PlaceWorks 

By __________________________________ _ 
 Signature 

______________________________________ 
     Printed Name and Title 

Dated: ___________________ TOWN OF COLMA  

By _________________________________ 
 Sean Rabe’, City Manager 

Exhibit: 

A. Placeworks Scope of Work, Schedule and Budget for 435-455 Serramonte Boulevard 
1 | P a g e

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1. Work Scope      1

TOWN OF COLMA 

CHAPTER 1: 

WORK SCOPE 

This chapter describes the scope of services to be completed by PlaceWorks team for the 

CarMax Project Environmental Review. We have prepared a detailed scope that 

emphasizes the key components of our approach to this project. We will work with you 

to prepare a more refined scope as needed when we enter into contract. A summary of 

the work program is presented in Table 1.  

Details about personnel assigned to these tasks, the number of hours per person per 

task, billing rates, and a breakdown of costs by environmental review document (e.g., 

MND or Focused EIR are included in Table 2 and Table 3, respectively. 

TABLE 1 WORK PROGRAM SUMMARY 

Task A: Project Initiation & Project Management 

1. Kick-Off Meeting 2. Project Management 

Task B: CEQA Environmental Review 

1. Phase 1: Initial Study/MND 

a. Initial Study 

i. Transportation & Traffic 

b. Mitigated Negative Declaration 
c. Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program 

d. Notice of Intent 

e. Public Review & Response to Comments 

f. Approval and Notice of Determination 

2. Phase 2: Focused Environmental Impact Report 

a. Notice of Preparation 
b. Public Scoping Meeting 

c. Draft Environmental Impact Report 

i. Alternatives Evaluation 
ii. Administrative Draft EIR 

iii. Screencheck and Public Review Draft EIR 

d. Final EIR 
e. Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program 

f. Findings of Fact & Statement of Overriding 
Considerations 

g. Notice of Determination 

 Project Initiation and Project Management Task A.

This task is structured to build a framework for coordination among team members. 

Close communication and efficient information sharing will facilitate preparation of a 

thorough, legally defensible environmental review document on an optimized timeline. 

1. Kick-Off Meeting

Steve Noack and Ricky Caperton will attend a kick-off meeting with Town staff to discuss 

expectations and concerns, and to review key issues, information needs, work products, 

and delivery schedule. The data to be used for environmental impact analysis will also be 

reviewed at this meeting to ensure it is fully aligned with that used on other recent and 

ongoing projects in the vicinity of the project.  

Exhibit A



2      1. Work Scope CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF COLMA 

Deliverables: 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Revised Project Schedule in PDF format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Data Needs Memorandum in PDF format 

2. Project Management 

In addition to coordinating the bi-weekly conference calls, Ricky Caperton, Associate, will 

serve as the day-to-day contact for project management. Ricky will be responsible for 

overseeing the budget, schedule and overall team coordination throughout the 

preparation of the environmental review document.  

 CEQA Environmental Review Task B.

PlaceWorks proposes a two-phase environmental review process including preparing an 

IS, leading to a MND if all impacts are found to be less than significant or if necessary, 

preparing a Focused Environmental Impact Report. Both processes are described in detail 

below.  

1. Phase 1: Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration 

 Initial Study a.

PlaceWorks will draft a Project Description using graphics and textual information 

provided by the applicant. The Project Description will include detailed information on 

the project features including, building size, height, circulation patterns, parking and 

intended uses. In addition, the Project Description will describe the entitlement approvals 

necessary to process the project. We will submit one (1) electronic copy of the 

Administrative Draft Project Description in Word and PDF formats for review and 

approval by Town staff prior to beginning the environmental review for the project. 

Using the Town-approved Project Description, PlaceWorks will prepare an IS that 

documents existing conditions, project impacts (if any), and mitigation measures (if 

required), as well as the resulting level of significance for potential impacts under each of 

the topical areas required under CEQA. CEQA permits the exclusion of environmental 

issues on which it can be ascertained with certainty that the project would have no 

significant negative impact. Considering the proposed project would not provide 

permanent residential units (generating new population) potentially increasing the use of 

public service facilities, together with the project’s site locations, General Plan land use 

designation and zoning district, it is anticipated that the following topic areas would be 

able to be summarily dismissed in the IS: 

 Agricultural and forestry resources 

 Mineral resources 

 Population and Housing  

 Public Services (fire and police protection, schools, libraries)  

 Recreation 

 Biological Resources 

 Cultural Resources 

In keeping with the requirements of the CEQA, the IS will include a detailed analysis to 

determine the environmental impacts of the following resource categories: 

 Aesthetics 



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1. Work Scope      3 

TOWN OF COLMA 

 Air Quality, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, and Community Risk and Hazards 

 Geology and Soils 

 Hazards and Hazardous Materials 

 Hydrology and Water Quality 

 Land Use and Planning 

 Noise and Vibration 

 Utilities and Service Systems 

i. Transportation and Traffic 

Hexagon Transportation Consultants (Hexagon) study will prepare a Traffic Impact 

Assessment (TIA) to determine the traffic impact of the proposed development on the 

following study intersections during the weekday AM (7- 9 AM) and PM (4 – 6 PM) peak 

commute periods of traffic and during Saturday midday (12 – 2 PM) peak hour. 

Additional intersections can be added for additional cost.  

 Serramonte Boulevard and 280 off-ramp 

 Serramonte Boulevard and 280 on-ramp 

 Serramonte Boulevard and Junipero Serra Boulevard 

 Serramonte Boulevard and Serra Center Driveway (unsignalized) 

 Serramonte Boulevard and El Camino Real 

 Serramonte Boulevard and Hillsdale Boulevard 

 Hickey Boulevard and I-280 southbound ramps 

 Hickey Boulevard and I-280 northbound ramps 

 Hickey Boulevard and Junipero Serra Boulevard 

 Lawndale Boulevard and Hillside Boulevard 

The following tasks will be completed as part of the TIA: 

a) Site Reconnaissance and Existing Observations. The physical characteristics of the site 

and the surrounding roadway network will be reviewed to identify existing roadway 

cross-sections, intersection lane configuration, traffic control devices, and surrounding 

land uses. Observations of existing traffic conditions will be made in order to identify any 

operational deficiencies and to confirm the accuracy of calculated levels of service.  

b) Data Collection. AM (7:00 – 9:00 AM) and PM (4:00 – 6:00 PM) weekday peak hour 

volumes and Saturday (12:00- 2:00 PM) peak hour volumes will be obtained from the 

Serramonte Shopping Center Expansion EIR. For intersections that were not analyzed in 

the Serramonte Shopping Center EIR, the turning movement counts will be obtained 

from the Town of Colma. New AM, PM and Saturday midday peak hour counts will be 

conducted only for the intersection of Junipero Serra Boulevard/Hickey Boulevard. 

Counts will be conducted at the existing driveways on the project site. The existing 

business on-site will be replaced by the proposed project, so the driveway counts will 

determine the trip credits for the demolished buildings. Freeway segment counts will be 

based on the volumes analyzed in the Serramonte Shopping Center Expansion EIR. 

c) Evaluation of Existing Conditions. The existing operations of the study intersections 

will be evaluated with a level of service analysis using current AM and PM peak hour 

volumes. Highway Capacity Manual 2000 methodology will be followed for all 

intersections. Transit, bicycle, and pedestrian access to the site will be described. 

d) Evaluation of Background Conditions. The baseline plus project conditions analyzed in 

the Serramonte Shopping Center Expansion EIR will be used as the background 



4      1. Work Scope CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF COLMA 

conditions for the CarMax project. Levels of service will be calculated for background 

conditions. 

e) Site Traffic Projections, Distribution, and Assignment. Site-generated traffic will be 

estimated based on the trip generation rates included in the Institute of Transportation 

Engineers (ITE) Trip Generation Manual, 9th Edition. Appropriate trip reductions will be 

discussed with City staff. The directional distribution of site-generated traffic will be 

forecasted based on existing travel patterns and relative locations of complementary 

land uses. The site-generated traffic will be added to the roadway network based on the 

estimated trip distribution pattern. 

f) Evaluation of Background plus Project Conditions. Project-generated traffic will be 

added to background traffic volumes. Trips generated by the existing buildings on the 

project site will be subtracted from the roadway network. Intersection levels of service 

and signal warrants will be evaluated under both scenarios. Any traffic deficiencies will be 

identified. 

g) Site Access, On-Site Circulation, and Parking. A site circulation and access review will 

be conducted to determine the adequacy of the proposed site plan in accordance with 

generally accepted traffic engineering standards. This will include a quantitative analysis 

of the anticipated traffic volumes at the project driveways, as well as a qualitative 

analysis of the proposed site circulation. The site plan review will consider truck access, 

pedestrian access, and bicycle access. Parking will be evaluated relative to Colma parking 

standards. 

h) Cumulative Conditions. Cumulative conditions for the proposed project will be 

established based on forecasts presented for the cumulative plus project conditions in 

the Serramonte Shopping Center Expansion Project EIR. Intersection levels of service will 

be calculated for cumulative conditions both with and without the project.  

i) Description of Traffic Impacts and Recommendations. Based on the results of the 

intersection level of service analysis, any operational deficiencies due to the project will 

be identified and described. Where feasible, recommendations will be formulated that 

identify the locations and types of improvements or modifications necessary to improve 

operations. 

j) Reports and Response to Comments. Findings and recommendations will be 

summarized in a draft traffic report. Hexagon will respond to editorial comments and 

prepare a Final Report. 

k) Meetings. This proposal does not include attendance at any meetings. Meeting 

attendance would be billed as an additional service based on staff time plus expenses. 

 Mitigated Negative Declaration b.

If it is determined that potential impacts from construction or operation of the project 

can be avoided through changes to the project, or mitigated to less-than-significant levels 

in accordance with CEQA Guidelines Section 15070, a MND will be prepared. 

In the event that the IS determines the project would result in one (1) or more significant 

impacts that cannot be mitigated to a less-than-significant level, an EIR would be 

required under CEQA. This would trigger Phase 2 of this scope of work described below 

under Task C.2 and Tasks 1.c through 1.f would not be required. 



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1. Work Scope      5 

TOWN OF COLMA 

 Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program c.

Concurrent with the preparation of the Draft IS/MND, we will prepare a Mitigation 

Monitoring or Reporting Program (MMRP) for the mitigation measures included in the 

IS/MND. The MMRP, shown in tabular form, will identify responsibility for implementing 

and monitoring each mitigation measure, along with monitoring triggers and reporting 

frequencies. 

 Notice of Intent d.

PlaceWorks will draft a Notice of Intent (NOI) of an MND pursuant to CEQA Section 

15072. PlaceWorks will work together with Town staff to prepare a master distribution 

list. PlaceWorks staff will be responsible for circulation to the State Clearinghouse, and 

mailings to local, regional and state agencies. Town staff will be responsible for local 

noticing.  

Deliverables:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft and Final Project Description in 

Word and PDF format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft NOI, IS/MND and MMRP in Word 

and PDF format 

 Ten(10) hard copies with the technical appendices on compact disc (CD) attached, 

and one (1) electronic copy of the NOI, IS/MND, and MMRP in Word and PDF Format 

 Fifteen (15) hard copies of the NOI, IS/MND and MMRP, and compact discs (CDs) 

with the complete IS and technical appendices attached to the State Clearinghouse 

 Public Review and Response to Comments e.

A 30-day public review period will be required under CEQA. Following the close of the 

public review period, PlaceWorks will respond to substantive comments received on the 

IS/MND in a memorandum form. This scope of work includes 16 hours of staff time to 

respond to comments in an Administrative Draft Response to Comments Memorandum. 

If an unforeseen amount of time is required to address comments received on the 

IS/MND, a contract amendment will be required. 

We will prepare an Administrative Draft Response to Comments Memorandum for 

review by Town staff. Based on Town staff comments, we will complete revisions and 

deliver a Final Response to Comments Memorandum.  

Deliverables: 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft Response to Comments 

Memorandum in Word and PDF format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Final Response to Comments Memorandum in Word 

and PDF format 

 Approval and Notice of Determination f.

Steve Noack of PlaceWorks will attend one (1) public hearing on the approval of the 

Project and IS/MND. Attendance at additional hearings would be billed on a time and 

materials basis with an estimated cost of $800 per meeting. 

Within 5 days of approval of the IS/MND, PlaceWorks will prepare a Notice of 

Determination (NOD) for submittal to the County Clerk. Town staff will submit the NOD 

to the County Clerk and pay all applicable filing fees at the time of posting. The budget 

does not include payment of any filing fees. 



6      1. Work Scope CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF COLMA 

Deliverables:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the Notice of Determination (NOD) in Word and PDF 

format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Final IS/MND in Word and PDF format 

2. Phase 2: Focused Environmental Impact Report 

In the event that the IS determines the project would result in one (1) or more significant 

impacts that cannot be mitigated to a less-than-significant level, an EIR would be 

required under CEQA. The following steps describe the scope of work to prepare a 

Focused EIR for the process. 

 Notice of Preparation a.

PlaceWorks will draft a Notice of Preparation (NOP) of an EIR pursuant to CEQA Section 

15082. The NOP will include an environmental scoping study with a brief project history 

and a description of the topics to be analyzed in the EIR. Reference to and the availability 

of the IS for any environmental issues found not to require additional analysis per the IS 

will be included in the NOP.  

PlaceWorks will work together with Town staff to prepare a master distribution list. 

PlaceWorks staff will be responsible for circulation to the State Clearinghouse, and 

mailings to local, regional and state agencies. Town staff will be responsible for local 

noticing.  

Deliverables:  

 Fifteen (15) hard copies of the NOP and IS to the State Clearinghouse 

 One (1) electronic copy of the NOP and IS in Word and PDF format 

 Public Scoping Meeting b.

During the 30-day comment period for the IS and NOP, PlaceWorks will attend a public 

scoping meeting to hear comments on the environmental issues to be addressed in the 

EIR. We assume that Town staff will arrange the meeting location and date and will issue 

the public notices for the meetings. We will prepare supporting material as needed, 

including a brief presentation, comment cards, and other materials. Principal-in-Charge, 

Steve Noack will facilitate the scoping meeting. We will prepare a written summary of the 

environmental issues raised at the scoping meeting for inclusion in the Draft EIR. 

Deliverables:  

 Materials for Scoping Meeting 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Meeting Summary Memorandum in Word and PDF 

format 

 Draft Environmental Impact Report c.

Using the Town-approved Project Description from Task C.1.a, PlaceWorks will leverage 

the comprehensive IS described in Task C.1.a to prepare an EIR that focuses on the CEQA 

resource categories where substantial evidence of a potentially significant environmental 

impact exists. This approach will allow for preparation of a rigorous environmental 

analysis and a legally defensible EIR on an optimized schedule and budget. The EIR will be 

based on the documentation and findings in the IS. Because it is unknown at this time 

which environmental topics, if any, would require additional review this scope of work 

describes the additional CEQA-required steps that would be included if an EIR were 



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1. Work Scope      7 

TOWN OF COLMA 

required. Once it is determined that an EIR is required a contract amendment to 

determine the cost for additional environmental review could be required at that time. 

i. Alternatives Evaluation 

Building from the discussion of alternatives at the kick-off meeting, PlaceWorks will 

develop a list of up to potential draft alternatives, including the CEQA-required No 

Project Alternative. We will work with Town staff to finalize the list of alternatives, and 

then complete an impact analysis of each alternative for inclusion in the EIR. The 

alternatives analysis will be a qualitative discussion and will identify the environmentally 

superior alternative. The alternatives will be designed to avoid or lessen at least some of 

the potentially significant impacts identified in Task B, Environmental Review. 

ii. Administrative Draft EIR 

PlaceWorks will prepare an Administrative Draft EIR (ADEIR) and submit to Town staff for 

review and comment. The impact analysis will be comprehensive and will cover all CEQA 

requirements. As described above, the EIR will focus on CEQA resource categories where 

substantial evidence of a potentially significant environmental impact exists. The ADEIR 

will also include a chapter summarizing resource categories scoped out of the EIR and 

providing justification and citations in support of this determination. Significance criteria 

will be identified for each impact topic based upon thresholds of significance identified in 

Appendix G, Environmental Checklist Form, of the State CEQA Guidelines and identified in 

the scoping process. 

Impacts and mitigation measures will be organized and discussed by topic. As 

recommended by the State CEQA Guidelines, the EIR will analyze potential impacts from 

development of the proposed project. For each identified environmental impact, a set of 

feasible mitigation measures will be recommended. 

The ADEIR will cover the following topics: 

 Executive Summary. PlaceWorks will create a summary in a form consistent with 

CEQA Guidelines, Section 15123. This summary will facilitate a quick understanding 

of environmental issues and the actions required to mitigate potential impacts. It 

will include a summary table of impacts, mitigation measures, and levels of 

significance before and after mitigation. 

 Project Description. The ADEIR will include the project description drafted for the 

project as part of Task C.1.a, Project Description. 

 Setting, Impacts, and Mitigation Measures. The existing setting information, impact 

analyses, and mitigation measures developed in Task C.1.a will be combined to 

create chapters describing environmental consequences for each CEQA-required 

topic. 

 Alternatives Evaluation. The alternatives evaluation completed above will be 

incorporated into the ADEIR. This chapter will include a tabular comparison of the 

alternatives impacts. 

 CEQA Required Assessment Conclusions. PlaceWorks will prepare assessment 

conclusions to meet CEQA Guidelines for the following mandatory findings: 

 Cumulative Impacts 

 Growth Inducement 

 Unavoidable Significant Effects 

 Significant Irreversible Changes 



8      1. Work Scope CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF COLMA 

 Impacts Found Not to be Significant 

 Report Preparers. This chapter will identify the consultants and staff who prepared 

the EIR.  

Town staff will act as a clearinghouse for comments on the ADEIR and will provide 

PlaceWorks with a single, internally reconciled set of comments. 

Deliverable:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft EIR in Word and PDF format 

iii. Screencheck and Public Review Draft EIR 

PlaceWorks will incorporate one consolidated set of comments on the ADEIR from Town 

staff to create the Screencheck Draft EIR for final review and approval prior to 

publication. Comments on the Screencheck Draft EIR will be limited to grammatical, 

format and typographical comments. PlaceWorks assumes 32 hours for addressing 

comments from the town staff on the Screencheck Draft EIR, preparing the Draft EIR and 

publication of the document. 

PlaceWorks will be responsible for delivery of the Draft EIR, Notice of Availability (NOA) 

and Notice of Completion (NOC) to the State Clearinghouse. We assume the Town staff 

will publish and locally distribute the NOA.  

Steve Noack will attend one (1) public hearing on the Draft EIR. We assume that Town 

staff will schedule hearings, provide public notice, and prepare staff reports. 

Deliverables:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the Screencheck Draft EIR in Word and PDF Format 

 Ten (10) hard copies with the technical appendices on compact disc (CD) attached 

one (1) electronic copy of the Public Review Draft EIR in Word and PDF Format 

 One (1) hard copy of the NOC, fifteen (15) hard copies of the NOA and Executive 

Summary, fifteen (15) compact discs (CDs) with the complete EIR and technical 

appendices attached to the State Clearinghouse 

 Final EIR d.

PlaceWorks will prepare an Administrative Final EIR, which will include both the Response 

to Comments document, additional analysis, or revisions to the Draft EIR as necessary; 

and the MMRP.  

Following receipt of comments on the Administrative Draft Final EIR, PlaceWorks will 

prepare a Screencheck Final EIR and a Final EIR for publication. PlaceWorks assumes 24 

hours to address comments on the Draft EIR. 

Steve Noack of PlaceWorks will attend one (1) certification hearing on the Final EIR. 

Attendance at additional hearings would be billed on a time and materials basis with an 

estimated cost of $800 per meeting. 

 Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program e.

Concurrent with the preparation of the Final EIR, we will prepare a MMRP for the 

mitigation measures included in the EIR. The MMRP, shown in tabular form, will identify 

responsibility for implementing and monitoring each mitigation measure, along with 



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 1. Work Scope      9 

TOWN OF COLMA 

monitoring triggers and reporting frequencies. The MMRP will be submitted as a draft 

document to the City and revised for publication with the Final EIR. 

Deliverables:   

 One (1) electronic copy of the Administrative Draft Final EIR and MMRP in Word and 

PDF format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Screencheck Final EIR and MMRP in Word and PDF 

format 

 Ten (10) hard copies of the Final EIR and MMRP and one (1) electronic copy of the 

Final EIR in Word and PDF format 

 Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations  f.

PlaceWorks will prepare the findings for the resolutions on the EIR, and in the event that 

significant and unavoidable impacts are disclosed, we will prepare the statement of 

overriding considerations necessary to support certification of the EIR. PlaceWorks will 

prepare draft and final documents, pending Town of Colma staff review and comment.  

Deliverables:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the draft findings and overrides (if applicable) in MS Word 

and PDF Format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the final findings and overrides (if applicable) in MS Word 

and PDF format 

 Notice of Determination g.

Within 5 days of certification of the EIR, PlaceWorks will prepare a NOD for submittal to 

the County Clerk. Colma staff will submit the NOD to the County Clerk and pay all 

applicable filing fees at the time of posting. The budget does not include payment of any 

filing fees. 

Deliverables:  

 One (1) electronic copy of the Notice of Determination (NOD) in Word and PDF 

format 

 One (1) electronic copy of the Final IS/MND in Word and PDF format 

 

  



10      2. Schedule, Products, & Meetings CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF COLMA 

  CHAPTER 2: 

SCHEDULE, PRODUCTS,  

AND MEETINGS 

This chapter describes the products associated with PlaceWorks work scope and the 

schedule by which each of these products will be completed. It also summarizes the 

meetings that PlaceWorks will attend for the project. 

SCHEDULE 

PlaceWorks’ proposed schedule for completion of the CarMax Project environmental 

Review is shown in Figure 1. As shown in the schedule, we anticipate that the IS/MND 

option can be completed and approved within an 8-month period.The Focused EIR can 

completed and certified within a 10-month period. We believe this schedule is 

appropriate, but we are happy to revise this schedule if necessary. 

PlaceWorks has a strong track record in meeting project schedules and coordinating 

closely with its clients. Over years of managing projects similar to the proposed project, 

we have developed a variety of tools and tactics to keep projects on schedule and ensure 

that staff is well informed at all times: 

 We maintain an up-to-date schedule throughout the project, to ensure that all team 

members are aware of upcoming meetings and product due dates. 

 We stay in regular contact with staff and our subconsultants and document 

important decisions about the project in writing, which ensures that decisions are 

understood by all team members. 

 We schedule project due dates for staff and subconsultants with adequate time for 

editing and formatting into finished reports. 

  



Figure 1:  Schedule

Task Owner Duration
(days)

Issue Notice to Proceed Town of Colma 1
Task A - Project Initiation and Management

Kick-Off Meeting Town/PlaceWorks 1
Task B - Mitigated Negative Declaration

Project Description PlaceWorks 7
Review Project Description Town of Colma 7

Final Project Description PlaceWorks 7

Draft  Initial Study PlaceWorks 60
Review Initial Study Town of Colma 14

Final Initial Study PlaceWorks 7

Reproduction and  Delivery PlaceWorks 7
30-day Public Review Town of Colma 30

Draft Response to Comments/MMRP PlaceWorks 14
Review Draft Response to Comments/MMRP Town of Colma 14
Screencheck Response to Comments/MMRP PlaceWorks 7

Review Screencheck Response to Comments/MMRP Town of Colma 7
Final Response to Comments/MMRP PlaceWorks 7

MND Public Hearing 2

File NOD Town of Colma 1
Notes: 
Town of Colma
PlaceWorks
Public Review Period
Meetings/Hearings

Month

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8



12      2. Schedule, Products, & Meetings CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

TOWN OF CPLMA 

PRODUCTS 

The following products will be submitted to the Town in fulfillment of our proposed 

scope of work: 

Phase 1: Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration Option 

 Revised Project Schedule  

 Data Needs Memorandum  

 Administrative Draft and Final Project Description  

 Administrative Draft and Final NOI, IS/MND and MMRP  

 Administrative Draft and Final Response to Comments Memorandum  

 Notice of Determination  

Phase 2: Focused EIR Option 

 Revised Project Schedule  

 Data Needs Memorandum  

 Administrative Draft and Final Environmental Evaluation Memorandum  

 Administrative Draft and Final Project Description  

 Administrative Draft and Final IS  

 Materials for Scoping Meeting 

 Scoping Meeting Summary Memorandum  

 Administrative, Screencheck and Public Review Draft EIRs  

 NOC, NOA and Draft EIR Executive Summary 

 Administrative, Screencheck and Final EIR including the MMRP  

 Draft and Final Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations  

 Notice of Determination  

MEETINGS 

Phase 1: Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration Option 

 Steve Noack and Ricky Caperton will attend one kick-off meeting 

 Steve Noack will attend one (1) public hearing on the approval of the Project and 

IS/MND 

Phase 2: Focused EIR Option 

 Steve Noack and Ricky Caperton will attend one kick-off meeting 

 Steve Noack will attend one scoping meeting for the EIR 

 Steve Noack will attend one (1) public hearing on the Draft EIR 

 Steve Noack will one (1) certification hearings on the Final EIR 

We are available to attend additional meetings on a time-and-materials basis. 

 



CARMAX PROJECT ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 3. Cost Estimate      13 

TOWN OF COLMA 

  CHAPTER 3: 

COST ESTIMATE 

As shown in Table 2, the estimated cost to complete the scope of work described in the 

Phase 1: IS/MND Option, is $76,845. 

As shown in Table 3, the additional estimated cost to complete the scope of work 

described in the Phase 2: Focused EIR Option, is $26,119.   

The billing rates for each team member are included in Tables 2 and 3. PlaceWorks bills 

for its work on a time-and-materials basis with monthly invoices. 

ASSUMPTIONS 

This scope of work and cost estimate assumes that: 

 Billing rates for this project are guaranteed through December 2016. Billing rates 

would be subject to an increase of up to 6 percent on January 1, 2017, and in each 

subsequent year thereafter. A budget increase would be necessary to cover costs 

incurred after January 1, 2017.  

 Our cost estimate includes the meetings shown in Chapter 2. Additional meetings 

would be billed on a time-and-materials basis. Steve Noack will attend all project 

meetings, public workshops and other public meetings.  

 No more than 16 hours of PlaceWorks staff time will be required to respond to 

comments on the Public Review Draft of the IS/MND. If additional labor is necessary, 

a contract amendment allowing additional work will be necessary.  

 No more than 32 hours of PlaceWorks staff time will be required to address 

comments from town staff on the Screencheck Draft EIR, prepare the Draft EIR and 

publish the document. 

 No more than 16 hours of PlaceWorks staff time will be required to respond to 

comments on the Draft EIR. If additional labor is necessary, a contract amendment 

allowing additional work will be necessary.  

 All products will be submitted to the Town in electronic (PDF) format, except for 

printed copies that are specifically identified in Table 2. This is an allowance only, 

based on the numbers of products and copies shown in Chapter 2. If this allowance 

is exceeded, additional printing costs will be billed at PlaceWorks actual cost. 

 Town staff will be responsible for meeting logistics, including schedule coordination, 

document production, printing notices, mailing costs, room reservations, room set-

up and take-down, and refreshments. 



Table 2

IS/MND Cost Estimate

CarMax Project Environmental Review

 Hexagon 

Hours per Task  Principal   Associate 

 Senior 

Scientist  

 Senior 

Engineer  

 Senior 

Geologist  

 Project 

Planner 

 Project 

Scientist   Scientist  

 

Graphics/

WP 

 Clerical/ 

Intern 

A.  Project Initiation and Project Management 8                   24                       -                 -                 -                 -                  -            -            -           2                    

1. Kick-off Meeting
2. Project Management 8                    24                        2                     

B. CEQA Environmental Review

1 Initial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration

1.a. Initial Study 7                    49                       6                     20                   6                     38                    50               17               10             7                     

Project Description 0.5                  4.0                        8.0                     2.0             0.5                   

i. Aesthetics 0.5                 2.0                       4.0                    4.0              2.0            0.5                  

ii. AQ, GHG, HRA 0.5                 1.0                       6.0                  3.0                  50.0           0.5            0.5                  

iii. Biological Resources 0.5                 1.0                       2.0                    2.0              0.5            0.5                  

iv. Cultural Resources 0.5                 1.0                       4.0                    0.5            0.5                  

v. Geology and Soils 0.5                 1.0                       6.0                  0.5            0.5                  

vi. Hazards and Hazardous Materials 0.5                 1.0                       8.0                  0.5            0.5                  

vii. Hydrology and Water Quality 0.5                 1.0                       4.0                  0.5            0.5                  

viii.Land Use and Planning 0.5                 1.0                       4.0                    0.5            0.5                  

ix. Noise and Vibration 0.5                 2.0                       5.0                  11.0           0.5            0.5                  

x. Population and Housing 0.5                       4.0                    0.5            0.5                  

xi. Public Services and Recreation 0.5                       4.0                    0.5            0.5                  

xii. Transportation and Planning 1.0                 32.0                     -                   0.5            0.5                  

xiii. Utilities and Service Systems 0.5                 1.0                       8.0                    0.5            0.5                  

1.b. Mitigated Negative Declaration 1                          4                      1               1                     

1.c. Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program 1                          4                      1               1                     

1.d. Notice of Intent 1                          4                      1               1                     

1.e. Public Review and Response to Comments 6                   6                         2                    2                    2                    8                     2                -            2              1                    

attend one hearing 4                    2                           0.5                  

respond to comments 2                    4                           2                      2                      2                      8                       2                 2                0.5                  

1.f. Approval and Notice of Determination 4                   1                         -                 -                 -                 4                     -            -            -           -                

attend 1 hearing 4                    

prepare NOD 1                           4                       

Total Hours 25                  83                        8                      22                    8                      62                     52               17               15             13                   

Billing Rate $210 $135 $180 $170 $160 $105 $135 $80 $100 $70 

Labor Cost $5,250 $11,205 $1,440 $3,740 $1,280 $6,510 $7,020 $1,360 $1,500 $910 

Total Firm Labor Cost $40,215 $32,000 

EXPENSES 

   Office Expenses (Phone, Fax, Copies, etc. @ 2% of Labor) 804                 

   Subconsultant Administration (10%) 3,211              -                                 

   Deliveries 100                 -                                 

   Mileage (180 Miles @ $0.575/mile) 105                 -                                 

   Report Production (10 copies @ $30) 300                 110                                

Total Expenses $4,520 $110

Total per Firm $44,735 $32,110 

Grand Total IS/MND $76,845 

PlaceWorks



Table 3
EIR Cost Estimate

CarMax Project Environmental Review

Hours per Task  Principal   Associate 
 Senior 

Scientist  
 Senior 

Engineer  
 Senior 

Geologist  
 Project 
Planner 

 Project 
Scientist   Scientist  

 
Graphics/

WP 
 Clerical/ 

Intern 

C.2 Focused Environmental Impact Report (if required)
2.a Notice of Preparation 1                    2                          8                      
2.b. Public Scoping Meeting 4                    
2.c. Draft Environmental Impact Report 8                    22                        1                     1                     -                 30                    4                 -             -            -                 
i. Alternatives Evaluation 2                     8                           1                      1                      12                     4                 
ii. Administrative Draft EIR 4                     8                           10                     
iii. Screencheck and Public Draft EIR 2                     6                           8                        
2.d. Final Environmental Impact Report 8                    10                        2                     2                     2                     20                    2                 -             12             -                 
attend one hearing 4                     
respond to comments 4                     10                         2                      2                      2                      20                     2                 12              
2.e. Mitigation Monitoring or Reporting Program 1                          4                      1                1                     
2.f. Findings of Fact and Statement of Overriding Considerations 2                    8                          24                    
2.g. Notice of Determination 1                          4                      

Total Hours 23                   44                          3                       3                       2                       90                      6                  -               13               1                       
Billing Rate $200 $160 $180 $170 $160 $105 $105 $80 $100 $70 
Labor Cost $4,600 $7,040 $540 $510 $320 $9,450 $630 $0 $1,300 $70 

Total Firm Labor Cost $24,460 

EXPENSES 
   Office Expenses (Phone, Fax, Copies, etc. @ 2% of Labor) 489                  
   Deliveries 100                  
   Report Production (20 copies @ $50) 1,000               
   Mileage (120 Miles @ $0.575/mile) 70                    

Total Expenses $1,659

Total per Firm $26,119 

Grand Total EIR $26,119 

PlaceWorks



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\16702878.1

8/25/15

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Turhan Sonmez, Associate Planner 

Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA: Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit at 1755 Mission Road 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A STORAGE WAREHOUSE, 
FOR USE BY A MOVING COMPANY, AT THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 
1755 MISSION ROAD PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15301

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The Applicant, Griselda Gonzalez of CG Moving Company, is requesting a Conditional Use Permit 
for a storage warehouse use at 1755 Mission Road (APN: 010-423-050) (“Subject Property”). 
No changes are proposed to the existing property or building. The company will use the 
building exclusively for storage and office space which is consistent with the way the building is 
designed. Only standard conditions of approval are recommended. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposal will have no impact on the Town’s budget. 

BACKGROUND 

The existing building on the Subject Property was previously used by High Performance 
Distributors and is approximately 8,000 square feet in size and has six (6) right-angle parking 
spaces in front of the building and two (2) parallel parking spaces available along the south wall 
of the building (the additional three parallel parking spaces on the south side of the building are 
not available since they are subject to a shared parking agreement with an adjacent property). 
The building is designed to support commercial and/or light industrial uses and is currently 
vacant. Surrounding uses include additional commercial/light industrial uses.  

ITEM #9



1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit  Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\16702878.1  
8/25/15  

ANALYSIS 

Environmental 

This application was reviewed pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and staff determined that the project is considered Categorically Exempt 
from further environmental review under Section 15301, Class 1(a), because the application 
only involves the maintenance of an existing private structure involving only minor expansion of 
use.  

Conditional Use Permit 

The Subject Property is zoned “C” Commercial and is designated in the Colma General Plan for 
light industrial and commercial uses; therefore, the proposed storage warehouse use is 
consistent with the zoning and land use designations for the property. The proposed use would 
be a very low intensity use for the site since the company would use the existing onsite building 
exclusively for storage (primarily office furnishings) and office space.  

Per Section 5.03.290(b)(vii) of the Zoning Code, the Applicant is not required to provide 
additional parking spaces since the existing building was constructed prior to March 14, 1997, 
the floor area of the building is not being expanded, no change in use is occurring, and Staff 
has determined that the eight (8) available onsite parking spaces would be sufficient for the 
proposed use. Four (4) of the parking spaces would be occupied by company vehicles, including 
one (1) 24’ long moving truck, one (1) 10’ long moving truck, and two (2) pickup trucks. 
Additionally, one more 24’ long moving truck would be parked in the driveway bay in front of 
the metal rollup door. All of the company vehicles would leave the site every morning at 
approximately 7:30am and not return until 3:30-5:30pm; therefore, there would be available 
parking throughout the day for employees. The moving company has eight (8) full-time 
employees, one (1) part-time employee, and one (1) on-call employee, but not all of the 
employees work every day. Business hours for the company are Monday through Friday 7:00am 
to 5:00pm, and Saturday and Sunday as needed. Business is conducted entirely by phone and 
the internet, so there would be no visits to the site by clients/customers.  

The owner of the company is not proposing any improvements to the building or site at this 
time.  

Findings 

Section 5.03.410 of the Colma Municipal Code requires that certain findings be made for 
approval of a Use Permit. The findings and a discussion of how the proposal meets the findings 
are included in the attached resolution.  

Conditions of Approval 

Based on a review of the application, a meeting with the applicant, a site inspection, a review 
by City Departments and the Colma Fire Protection District, staff is recommending several 
conditions of approval to assure that the uses will be conducted in an appropriate manner. 

 



1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit  Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\16702878.1  
8/25/15  

VALUES 

The recommendations are consistent with the Council value of fairness because the 
recommendation is consistent with how similar requests have been handled.  The 
recommendation is also consistent with the Council value of responsibility because the 
proposal has been carefully reviewed and conditioned so that it will be consistent with adopted 
policies and regulations, and compatible within their setting. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 

The proposal involves the use of an existing building, and will have no impact on sustainability. 

ALTERNATIVES 

As alternatives to approving the proposed resolution with the recommended conditions, the City 
Council can: 

-Approve the resolution with modified or additional conditions of approval to address specific 
operational concerns with the use;  

-Not approve the resolution and deny the conditional use permit. Staff does not recommend this 
alternative since the proposed use, as conditioned, will not have any negative impacts to the 
community and will fill a vacant space with a use that is appropriate for both the site and 
surrounding area.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the resolution with the recommended findings and 
conditions.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution for Conditional Use Permit 
B. Site/Floor Plan 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A STORAGE 
WAREHOUSE, FOR USE BY A MOVING COMPANY, AT THE COMMERCIAL 

BUILDING LOCATED AT 1755 MISSION ROAD PURSUANT TO CEQA 
GUIDELINE 15301 

Property Owner: D.C.S. Consulting 
Applicant: CG Moving Company, Inc. 

Location:  1755 Mission Road 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-423-050 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. BACKGROUND

(a) The Town has received an application from CG Moving Company, Inc. requesting a
Conditional Use Permit for a storage warehouse use at the commercial building located at 1755 
Mission Road (APN: 010-423-050).   

(b) A notice of public hearing was mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property on August 28, 2015.  In addition, a notice of public hearing was posted on the 
three Town of Colma bulletin boards, on August 28, 2015.   

(c) The City Council has considered the Amended Use Permit application, the accompanying 
staff report, and all relevant evidence presented at the September 9, 2015 public meeting. 

2. FINDINGS

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Relating to CEQA Review 

(a) Pursuant to the Section 15301, Class1(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines, the project is 
Categorically Exempt from further environmental review because the use will entail the 
maintenance of an existing private structure involving only minor expansion of use beyond that 
already being conducted in the structure. 

Findings Relating to Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

(b) The proposed use will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: The property is designated in the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance for light 
industrial and commercial uses and zoned Commercial/Design Review (C/DR). The 
proposed use is consistent with this since the tenant space will only be used as 
warehouse storage space and office space by a commercial moving company.  

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 6 
25977.00100\17495319.1
9/1/15

Attachment A



  

(c) Granting the Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or public 
welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

Discussion: As conditioned, the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health, 
safety, or welfare since the tenant space will only be used as storage space and office 
space by a commercial moving company, and no detrimental activity will occur on the 
site.  The only visible activity will include the loading and unloading of furniture and 
equipment on and off of the moving trucks. All vehicles used for the business will be no 
greater than 24 feet in length, which is an appropriate size for utilizing the existing 
loading bay and metal rollup door without encroaching into the right-of-way along 
Mission Road. Surrounding uses are light industrial in nature and there are no local 
sensitive receptors which would be affected by the minimal amount of truck emissions 
expected. 

(d) Existing property uses, large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the proposed 
use.  

Discussion: Existing uses will not be detrimentally affected because the tenant space will 
only be used as storage space and office space by a commercial moving company. No 
structural changes are proposed to the building, and no property improvements are 
proposed. All activities related to the use will occur within existing facilities, with the 
exception of the loading and unloading of furniture and equipment on and off of moving 
trucks. All vehicles used for the business will be no greater than 24 feet in length, which 
is an appropriate size for utilizing the existing loading bay and metal rollup door without 
encroaching into the right-of-way along Mission Road. Surrounding uses are light 
industrial in nature and there are no local sensitive receptors which would be affected by 
the minimal amount of truck emissions expected. Therefore, existing property uses, large 
or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the proposed use. 

(e) The granting of the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing use of properties, large or 
small, within the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: Because light industrial and office uses are permitted with a Use Permit on the 
Subject Property, the Permittee is not requesting any special consideration and the proposed 
use would be subject to conditions similar to those required of other Use Permits. Therefore, 
granting the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent with the 
limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing use of properties, large or 
small, within the Town of Colma.  

(f) The City Council is satisfied that the proposed use conforms to the purpose and intent of 
the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: Light industrial and office uses are allowed in the Commercial Zone subject to 
the issuance of a Use Permit. No changes to the existing building or property are proposed 
to accommodate the use. Therefore, the City Council is satisfied that the proposed use 
conforms to the purpose and intent of the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 2 of 6  
25977.00100\17495319.1  
9/1/15  



(g) The use will not constitute a nuisance to neighboring persons or properties.  

Discussion: The proposed use is a very low-intensity use for the site and Conditions of 
the Use Permit will ensure that all activities related to the use will not negatively impact 
adjoining uses.  The proposed use, including all required parking, can be accommodated 
on-site. All vehicles used for the business will be no greater than 24 feet in length, which 
is an appropriate size for utilizing the existing loading bay and metal rollup door without 
encroaching into the right-of-way along Mission Road. Surrounding uses are light 
industrial in nature and there are no local sensitive receptors which would be affected by 
the minimal amount of truck emissions expected. Therefore, the use will not constitute a 
nuisance to neighboring persons or properties. 

3. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

 (a) This Use Permit shall allow the building and parking spaces identified on the approved 
site plan, date stamped August 14, 2015 and on-file in the Planning Department, to be used by a 
commercial moving company for storage and office space.  

(b) The Permittee must maintain compliance with the requirements of the Colma Fire 
Protection District, including required inspections of the premises. The Permittee must maintain 
all fire-safety equipment and improvements in good working condition. 

(c) The Permittee shall comply with parking arrangement indicated in the approved site plan, 
date stamped August 14, 2015 and on-file in the Planning Department, and the eight (8) off-
street parking spaces identified in the plan shall be maintained for use by the proposed business 
at all times. 

(d) No more than eight (8) employees associated with the moving company shall be present 
onsite ay any time.  

(e) All work, except for loading and unloading of delivery vehicles, shall be conducted inside 
the building. 

(f) The Permittee shall maintain weekly refuse disposal services. 

(g) All vehicles used for the business shall be no greater than 24 feet in length. 

(h) No outside signs are allowed except one sign on the front façade of the tenant unit, 
which shall meet the standards of the Town’s sign ordinance. The design of the sign insert shall 
be approved by the City Planner prior to installation.  Any new signs shall require approval of a 
sign permit. 

(i) No quantity of material that exceeds the amounts of hazardous materials permitted 
under Tables 3-D and 3-E of the California Uniform Building Code presenting a physical hazard 
shall be permitted. 

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 3 of 6  
25977.00100\17495319.1  
9/1/15  



4. TERMS 

(a) Permittee. As used in this Permit, the word “Permittee” shall mean each person using the 
Property pursuant to the permit granted herein, including successors to the person first 
obtaining the permit.  

(b) Recordable Covenant; Transfer.  The Town may record this Conditional Use Permit with 
the San Mateo County Recorder. The Permit shall run with the land and shall be freely and 
automatically transferred to each user of the Property, subject to each of the specific and 
general conditions herein.  

(c) Modification or Revocation. The Town may modify or revoke this Conditional Use Permit 
should it determine that (a) the Property is being operated or maintained in a manner that is 
detrimental to the public health or welfare, is materially injurious to property or improvements in 
the vicinity, constitutes a public nuisance, or is contrary to any law, code or regulation, or (b) if 
the user fails to comply with and satisfy the conditions herein. 

5. GENERAL CONDITIONS 

This Use Permit is conditioned upon the Permittee and each user of the Property fully and 
faithfully performing each of the following generally-applicable obligations. Failure to comply 
with any of these conditions shall render the Conditional Use Permit and Sign Permit null and 
void. 

(a) Duty to Comply With Laws. Nothing herein shall be construed as authorizing any 
approvals under, or any exceptions to any other law, code or regulation, or as authorizing any 
change to the occupancy classification of the premises or any buildings thereon as defined in the 
California Building Code. The Permittee and each user must comply with all applicable federal, 
state and municipal laws, codes and regulations, including the currently adopted California 
Building and Fire Codes.  Specifically, but without limitation, the Permittee must pay the annual 
Town of Colma Business Registration fee and must keep in effect a Town of Colma Business 
Registration at all times. A failure to maintain the Colma Business Registration may result in 
termination of the Use Permit. 

(b) Indemnification. The Permittee shall indemnify, pay and hold the Town of Colma 
harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Town or held to 
be the liability of the Town in connection with the Town’s defense of its actions in any 
proceeding brought in any state or federal court challenging the Town’s actions with respect to 
the Project, Conditional Use Permit, and Sign Permit. 

(c) Agreement Required. The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term and 
condition herein by counter-signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed 
copy to the City Clerk no later than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of the 
Conditional Use Permit and Sign Permit. If Permittee is not the property owner, then the 
property owner must consent to use of the Property on the terms and conditions herein by 
counter-signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City Clerk 
no later than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
and Sign Permit. 

* * * * * *  

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 4 of 6  
25977.00100\17495319.1  
9/1/15  



Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 9, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 
  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 
Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      
Diana Colvin       
Helen Fisicaro      
Raquel Gonzalez      
Joseph Silva      
Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
  Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 

 
 Attest:______________________________ 
    Sean Rabé, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 
 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication requirements, 
reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), 
these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are hereby further notified 
that the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, dedications, reservations, and 
other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), began on date of adoption of this 
resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period complying with all of the 
requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

 

 

AGREEMENT 

Permitee/Property Owner 

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 5 of 6  
25977.00100\17495319.1  
9/1/15  



The undersigned agrees to use of the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated: _________________ CG Moving Company, Inc.,  
  
 

By _______________________________________ 
                             Signature 

__________________________________________ 
                  Printed Name and Title 

 

 [Notarization of Property Owner's signature recommended] 

Res. 2015-__, 1755 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 6 of 6  
25977.00100\17495319.1  
9/1/15  



= Available Onsite Parking Space

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\16687819.1

8/25/15

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Turhan Sonmez, Associate Planner 

Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA: Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Amended Conditional Use Permit at 1531-1537 Mission Road 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO PROVIDE THAT USES 
AT THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 1531-1537 MISSION ROAD, MEETING SPECIFIC 
CRITERIA, MAY BE PERMITTED BY ISSUANCE OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT FROM 
THE CITY PLANNER, PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15301  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The owners of a commercial building located at 1531-1537 Mission Road are requesting an 
Amended Conditional Use Permit (CUP) for the property. The Amended Conditional Use Permit 
would allow for certain uses (meeting specific criteria) to be permitted by issuance of an 
Administrative Use Permit from the City Planner, rather than requiring a separate CUP and City 
Council approval for each future use.  This will save the applicant time and money.  This 
process was successfully established for the building at 480 Collins Avenue. There is space for 
multiple tenants within the building and the existing CUP for the property requires a separate 
CUP for each individual use.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposal will have a slight positive impact on the Town’s budget since it will reduce the 
economic burden on small businesses through lower application fees and a more rapid review 
time, likely reducing the duration of time tenant spaces remain vacant.  

BACKGROUND 

The current CUP for the building was originally approved by Resolution 670 on July 11, 1984. 
Shortly after that the existing one-story, tilt-up concrete building, measuring approximately 
11,200 square feet, was constructed. The CUP is for the primary business in the building, F. 
Ferrando and Company, which is a concrete contracting business. The building has multiple 

ITEM #10



1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\16687819.1  
8/25/15  

tenant spaces and is designed to support commercial and/or light industrial uses. Each tenant 
has a small office space with a large space behind the office to use for equipment storage, 
vehicle parking, materials storage, and/or work space. There are 17 parking spaces onsite.  
Surrounding uses include additional commercial/light industrial uses to the north and south, 
residential uses (mobile home community in South San Francisco) to the west, and cemetery 
uses (Holy Cross Memorial Park) to the east.  

A similar Commercial “C” Zoned property with light industrial and storage uses exists at 480 
Collins Avenue. This property had a CUP similar to the subject property’s CUP, which required 
separate CUPs for each individual use, until the City Council approved an Amended Use Permit 
for the site in 2006, allowing for uses meeting specific criteria to be permitted by issuance of an 
Administrative Use Permit from the City Planner. This process has been very successful in 
reviewing specific aspects of the proposed business without requiring the additional fees and 
waiting times for applicants to have a City Council review and hearing.  

ANALYSIS 

Environmental 

This application was reviewed pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and staff determined that the project is considered Categorically Exempt 
from further environmental review under Section 15301, Class 1(a), because the application 
only involves the maintenance of an existing private structure involving only minor expansion of 
use.  

Amended Conditional Use Permit 

The building is on a site zoned “C” Commercial. Through the Amended CUP the property owner 
is requesting to establish a process for the site which would allow the following types of uses 
(meeting specific criteria) to be permitted by issuance of an Administrative Use Permit: 

 -A commercial establishment;  

 -A light industrial establishment; 

 -Other uses which are found by the City Planner to be of a similar nature to the above 
 described uses. 

Because the above described uses are permitted in the “C” Zone (with CUP approval) and the 
site is designated in the Colma General Plan for light industrial and commercial uses, granting 
the proposed Amended CUP would be consistent with the Colma Municipal Code and General 
Plan. Also, all of the types of uses for which an Administrative Use Permit may be granted are 
consistent with existing property uses in the surrounding area.  

The Amended CUP does not expand the types of uses that currently can be permitted on the 
property; it only changes the procedure for obtaining approval for conversion from one use to 
another. Each individual application would be required to meet the same findings as a CUP, and 
the City Planner would be granted the authority to bring the application to the City Council for 



1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\16687819.1  
8/25/15  

review and approval if there are any concerns about aspects of the use. In addition, any 
decision made may be appealed to City Council.  

Per Section 5.03.290(b)(vii) of the Zoning Code, the Applicant is not required to provide 
additional parking spaces because the existing building was constructed prior to March 14, 
1997; the floor area of the building is not being expanded; no significant change in use is 
occurring; and staff has determined that the 17 available onsite parking spaces would be 
sufficient for the current and expected uses of the site.  

Findings 

Section 5.03.410 of the Colma Municipal Code requires that certain findings be made for 
approval of an Amended Conditional Use Permit. The findings and a discussion of how the 
proposal meet the findings are included in the attached resolution.  

Conditions of Approval 

Based on a review of the application, a meeting with the applicant, a site inspection, a review 
by City Departments and the Colma Fire Protection District, staff is recommending several 
conditions of approval to assure that future uses will be conducted in an appropriate manner 
and consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. These conditions of approval are listed 
in the attached resolution. 

VALUES 

The recommendations are consistent with the Council value of fairness because the 
recommendation on the proposal is consistent with how previous requests have been handled.  
The recommendations are also consistent with the Council value of responsibility because the 
proposal has been carefully reviewed and conditioned so that future uses will be consistent with 
adopted policies and regulations, and compatible within their setting. 

ALTERNATIVES 

As alternatives to approving the proposed Resolution with the recommended conditions, the 
City Council can: 

 Approve the Resolution with modified or additional conditions of approval to address 
specific Council concerns;  

 Deny the Resolution.  Staff does not recommend this alternative since the Resolution, as 
conditioned, will not have any negative impacts to the community and will reduce the 
economic burden on small businesses through lower application fees and a more rapid 
review time.  

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the Resolution with the recommended findings and 
conditions.  



1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\16687819.1  
8/25/15  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution for Amended Conditional Use Permit 
B. Site Plan/Floor Plan 
 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 6 

25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1

9/1/15

ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION GRANTING AN AMENDED CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT TO 
PROVIDE THAT USES AT THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 1531-

1537 MISSION ROAD, MEETING SPECIFIC CRITERIA, MAY BE PERMITTED BY 
ISSUANCE OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMIT FROM THE CITY PLANNER, 

PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15301   

Property Owner:  Anthony V. and Marvelle M. Marshall (Anthony V. Marshall and Marvell A. 
Marshall Trust)  

Location:  1531-1537 Mission Road 
Assessor’s Parcel Number: 010-182-080 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. BACKGROUND

(a) The Town has received an application from Anthony and Marvelle Marshall requesting
that an Amendment to the existing Conditional Use Permit (approved by Resolution 670 on July 
11, 1984), for the property at 1531-1537 Mission Road (APN: 010-182-080), be granted to 
provide that uses meeting specific criteria may be permitted by issuance of an Administrative 
Use Permit from the City Planner;  

(b) A notice of public hearing was mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property on August 28, 2015.  In addition, a notice of public hearing was posted on the 
three Town of Colma bulletin boards, on August 28, 2015.   

(c) The City Council has considered the Amended Conditional Use Permit application, the 
accompanying staff report, and all relevant evidence presented at the September 9, 2015 public 
meeting. 

2. FINDINGS

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Relating to CEQA Review 

(a) Pursuant to the Section 15301, Class1(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines, the project is 
Categorically Exempt from further environmental review because the proposal will entail the 
maintenance of an existing private structure involving only the minor expansion of use beyond 
that already being conducted in the structure. Additionally, while the Amended Conditional Use 
Permit would allow for additional uses to be approved by Administrative Use Permit, 
independent CEQA review will be conducted as part of the processing of each individual 
Administrative Use Permit.  

Attachment A



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 2 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1  
9/1/15  

ATTACHMENT A 

Findings Relating to Granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit 

(b) The proposed use will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: The property is designated in the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance for 
light industrial and commercial uses and zoned Commercial/Design Review (C/DR). The 
uses for which an Administrative Use Permit may be granted, consistent with this 
Amended Conditional Use Permit, are all allowed for this zone in the Colma Zoning Code.  

(c) Granting the Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or public 
welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

Discussion: The Amended Conditional Use Permit would allow for additional uses to be 
approved by Administrative Use Permit, but independent CEQA review will be conducted 
as part of the processing of each individual Administrative Use Permit.  Also, each 
individual application for an Administrative Use Permit to establish any such uses would 
be required to meet the same findings as a Conditional Use Permit, and the City Planner 
would be granted the authority to bring the application to the City Council for review and 
approval. In addition, any decision made may be appealed to City Council. As such, 
granting the Amended Conditional Use Permit would not be detrimental to the public 
health, safety or public welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements 
in the vicinity as existing conditions will not change unless and until an Administrative 
Use Permit is granted consistent with this Amended Conditional Use Permit. 

(d) Existing property uses, large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the proposed 
use.  

Discussion: The Amended Conditional Use Permit would allow for additional uses to be 
approved by Administrative Use Permit, but independent CEQA review will be conducted 
as part of the processing of each individual Administrative Use Permit.  Each individual 
application for an Administrative Use Permit to establish any such uses would be 
required to meet the same findings as a Conditional Use Permit, and the City Planner 
would be granted the authority to bring the application to the City Council for review and 
approval. In addition, any decision made may be appealed to City Council. All of the 
types of uses for which an Administrative Use Permit may be granted, consistent with 
this Amended Conditional Use Permit, are consistent with existing property uses in the 
surrounding area. As no new uses or an expansion of any existing uses would occur with 
the granting of this Amended Conditional Use Permit, existing uses, large or small, will 
not be detrimentally affected. 

(e) The granting of the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing use of properties, large or 
small, within the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: Granting an Amended Conditional Use Permit will not constitute a special 
privilege inconsistent with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance, as Amended 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 3 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1  
9/1/15  

ATTACHMENT A 

Conditional Use Permits have been granted for other multi-tenant type buildings within the 
Town. Allowing new uses to occupy the tenant units with approval of an Administrative Use 
Permit will also reduce the economic burden on small businesses through lower application 
fees and a more rapid review time.   

(f) The City Council is satisfied that the proposed use conforms to the purpose and intent of 
the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: The existing building is suitable for office, warehousing, light manufacturing and 
repair uses (including auto repair). The existing building meets all zoning restrictions. The 
uses allowed by this Amended Conditional Use Permit, with the approval of an 
Administrative Use permit, would be consistent with the purpose and intent of the General 
Plan and Zoning Ordinance. 

(g) The use will not constitute a nuisance to neighboring persons or properties.  

Discussion: Approval of the proposed Amended Conditional Use Permit would not establish 
any new use or establish the expansion of any existing use. Instead, it would allow for 
additional uses to be established with the approval of an Administrative Use Permit. Thus, 
the granting of the Amended Conditional Use Permit would not constitute a nuisance, as it 
would only allow new uses, but not establish any new uses without an application being 
submitted. Each application for an Administrative Use Permit would be evaluated 
independently and findings for a Conditional Use Permit will be required to be made.  

 
3. ADMINISTRATIVE USE PERMITS 
 

(a) The City Planner shall be and is hereby authorized to grant an Administrative Use Permit for 
any unit at 1531-1537 Mission Road, Colma, California, in accordance with the procedures set forth 
in section 5.03.520 of the Colma Municipal Code, for any of the following uses: 
 
 (i) A commercial establishment; 
 (ii) A light industrial establishment; 
 (iii) Other uses which are found by the City Planner to be of a similar nature to the above 
  described uses. 
 
(b) Each approval of an Administrative Use Permit for an individual unit shall be conditioned on 
full and faithful performance of each of the following conditions: 
 
 (i) No use which requires more off-street parking spaces than the number of spaces 
 allotted by the property owner to the tenant space(s) shall be permitted. Also, the combined 
 uses of all tenants onsite shall not require more than seventeen (17) onsite parking spaces 
 (including estimated patron parking) which is the total number of spaces onsite; 
 (ii) The number of employees for each tenant space shall be commensurate with the 
 available on-site parking; 
 (iii) All work of the tenant’s business, except for loading and unloading of delivery 
 vehicles, shall be conducted inside the building; 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 4 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1  
9/1/15  

ATTACHMENT A 

 (iv) The Permittee shall maintain weekly refuse disposal services; 
 (v) All vehicles used for the business shall be no greater than 22 feet in length and must 
 be stored inside the building or off-site during non-business hours; 
 (vi) No outside signs are allowed except one sign on the front façade of the tenant unit, 
 which shall meet the standards of the Town’s sign ordinance; 
 (vii) No use or occupancy with a quantity of material that exceeds the amounts of 
 hazardous materials permitted under Tables 3-D and 3-E of the California Uniform Building 
 Code presenting a physical hazard shall be permitted. 
 
(c) The City Planner shall be, and hereby is, authorized to approve an Administrative Use Permit 
on such other conditions as is consistent with, and reasonably necessary, to implement the Colma 
Municipal Code. 
 

4. TERMS 

(a) Permittee. As used in this Permit, the word “Permittee” shall mean each person using 
the Property pursuant to the permit granted herein, including successors to the person first 
obtaining the permit.  

(b) Recordable Covenant; Transfer.  The Town may record this Conditional Use Permit with 
the San Mateo County Recorder. The Permit shall run with the land and shall be freely and 
automatically transferred to each user of the Property, subject to each of the specific and 
general conditions herein.  

(c) Modification or Revocation. The Town may modify or revoke this Conditional Use Permit 
should it determine that (a) the Property is being operated or maintained in a manner that is 
detrimental to the public health or welfare, is materially injurious to property or improvements 
in the vicinity, constitutes a public nuisance, or is contrary to any law, code or regulation, or (b) 
if the user fails to comply with and satisfy the conditions herein. 

5. GENERAL CONDITIONS 

This Amended Conditional Use Permit is conditioned upon the Permittee and each user of the 
Property fully and faithfully performing each of the following generally-applicable obligations. 
Failure to comply with any of these conditions shall render the Conditional Use Permit null and 
void. 

(a) Duty to Comply With Laws. Nothing herein shall be construed as authorizing any 
approvals under, or any exceptions to any other law, code or regulation, or as authorizing any 
change to the occupancy classification of the premises or any buildings thereon as defined in 
the California Building Code. The Permittee and each user must comply with all applicable 
federal, state and municipal laws, codes and regulations, including the currently adopted 
California Building and Fire Codes.   

(b) Indemnification. The Permittee shall indemnify, pay and hold the Town of Colma 
harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Town or held to 
be the liability of the Town in connection with the Town’s defense of its actions in any 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 5 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1  
9/1/15  

ATTACHMENT A 

proceeding brought in any state or federal court challenging the Town’s actions with respect to 
the Project. 

(c) Agreement Required. The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term and 
condition herein by counter-signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed 
copy to the City Clerk no later than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of the 
Amended Conditional Use Permit. If Permittee is not the property owner, then the property 
owner must consent to use of the Property on the terms and conditions herein by counter-
signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City Clerk no later 
than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

// 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 9, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
  Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 

 
 Attest:______________________________ 
    Sean Rabé, City Clerk 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1537 Mission Road – Amended Conditional Use Permit Page 6 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16698051.18/25/15 
25977.00100\17493098.1  
9/1/15  

ATTACHMENT A 

 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 
 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication requirements, 
reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(d)(1), 
these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of such fees, and a 
description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are hereby further notified 
that the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, dedications, reservations, and 
other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), began on date of adoption of this 
resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period complying with all of the 
requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions. 

AGREEMENT 

Permitee/Property Owner 

The undersigned agrees to use of the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated: _________________  ______________________________________ 
Signature 

Printed Name of Permittee/Property 
 Owner:_____________________ 

 [Notarization of Property Owner's signature recommended] 



= Available Onsite Parking Space

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\16687819.1

8/25/15

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Turhan Sonmez, Associate Planner 

Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA: Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Conditional Use Permit at 1531-1533 Mission Road 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution:  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The applicant, Flip Home Staging, is requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow for their home 
staging company to occupy two tenant spaces (1531-1533) in the commercial building located 
at 1531-1537 Mission Road. The company would use the building only for storage and personal 
office space and have low parking demands.  The use is in line with the design of the building 
and available parking.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposal will have no impact on the Town’s budget. 

BACKGROUND 

The existing building is a one-story, tilt-up concrete building, measuring approximately 11,200 
square feet. The only current tenant in the building is a concrete contracting business, which 
occupies the other two tenant spaces. The building is designed to support commercial and/or 
light industrial uses with each tenant having a small office space with a large space behind the 
office to use for equipment storage, vehicle parking, materials storage, and/or work space. 
There are 17 parking spaces onsite.  Surrounding uses include additional commercial/light 
industrial uses to the north and south, residential uses (mobile home community in South San 
Francisco) to the west, and cemetery uses (Holy Cross Memorial Park) to the east.  

RESOLUTION GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOME STAGING 
COMPANY AT THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 1531- 1533 MISSION ROAD, 
PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15031

ITEM #11



1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\16687819.1

8/25/15

ANALYSIS 

Environmental 

This application was reviewed pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental 
Quality Act (CEQA), and staff determined that the project is considered Categorically Exempt 
from further environmental review under Section 15301, Class 1(a), because the application 
only involves the maintenance of an existing private structure involving only minor expansion of 
use.  

Conditional Use Permit 

The proposed home staging storage/office use is consistent with the “C” Zone, and would be a 
very low intensity use for the site since the company would use the building only for storage 
and office space for the staging business. The three (3) onsite parking spaces allocated to the 
tenant (as shown in the site plan) would be sufficient for the proposed use since, per Section 
5.03.290(b)(vii) of the Zoning Code, the existing building was constructed prior to March 14, 
1997, the floor area of the building is not being expanded, and no significant change in use is 
occurring. Staff has determined that there will only be one full-time employee, and since all 
business would be conducted by phone and the Internet, the parking spaces will only be used 
by the one full-time employee, occasional business associates and/or contract employees, and 
for loading and unloading trucks. Trucks visiting the site would all be less than 22 feet in length 
and would not be parked overnight or for long periods of time.   

The owner of the company is not proposing any improvements to the building or site at this 
time.  

Findings 

Section 5.03.410 of the Colma Municipal Code requires that certain findings be made for 
approval of a Use Permits. The findings and a discussion of how the proposals meet the findings 
are included in the attached resolution.  

Conditions of Approval 

Based on a review of the application, a meeting with the applicant, a site inspection, a review 
by City Departments and the Colma Fire Protection District, staff is recommending several 
conditions of approval to assure that the use will be conducted in an appropriate manner and 
consistent with all applicable laws and regulations. These conditions of approval are included in 
the attached resolution.  

VALUES 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of fairness because the 
recommendation is consistent with how previous requests have been handled.  The 
recommendations are also consistent with the Council value of responsibility because the 
proposals has been carefully reviewed and conditioned so that they will be consistent with 
adopted policies and regulations, and compatible within their setting. 



1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\16687819.1

8/25/15

ALTERNATIVES 

As alternatives to approving the proposed resolution with the recommended conditions, the City 
Council can: 

 Approve the resolution with modified or additional conditions of approval to address
specific Council concerns;

 Deny the resolution.  Staff does not recommend this alternative since the resolution, as
conditioned, will not have any negative impacts to the community, and the Conditional
Use Permit for a home staging company will fill a vacant tenant space with a use that is
appropriate for both the site, available parking and surrounding area.

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council approve the resolution with the recommended findings and 
conditions.  

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution for Conditional Use Permit 
B. Site Plan/Floor Plan 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 1 of 6 

25977.00100\16699549.1

8/25/15 ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-__ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR A HOME 
STAGING COMPANY AT THE COMMERCIAL BUILDING LOCATED AT 1531-

1533 MISSION ROAD, PURSUANT TO CEQA GUIDELINE 15031

Property Owners:  Anthony V. and Marvelle M. Marshall 
Permittee: Flip Home Staging, LLC 
Location:  1531-1533 Mission Road 

Assessor’s Parcel Numbers: APN’s:  010-182-080 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. BACKGROUND

(a) The Town has received an application from Flip Home Staging requesting a Conditional
Use Permit to allow for their home staging company to occupy two tenant spaces (1531-1533) 
in the commercial building located at 1531-1537 Mission Road (010-182-080).   

(b) A notice of public hearing was mailed to all property owners within 300 feet of the 
subject property on August 28, 2015.  In addition, a notice of public hearing was posted on the 
three Town of Colma bulletin boards, on August 28, 2015.   

(c) The City Council has considered the Conditional Use Permit application, the 
accompanying staff report, and all relevant evidence presented at the September 9, 2015 public 
meeting. 

2. FINDINGS

The City Council finds that: 

Findings Relating to CEQA Review 

(a) Pursuant to the Section 15301, Class1(a) of the State CEQA Guidelines, the project is 
Categorically Exempt from further environmental review because the use will entail the 
maintenance of an existing private structure involving only minor expansion of use beyond that 
already being conducted in the structure. 

Findings Relating to Granting a Conditional Use Permit 

(b) The proposed use will be consistent with the provisions of the Colma General Plan and 
Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: The property is designated in the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance for 
light industrial and commercial uses and zoned Commercial/Design Review (C/DR). The 
proposed use is consistent with this since the tenant space will only be used as storage 
space and personal office space by a commercial home staging company.  

Attachment A



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 2 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16699549.1  
8/25/15  ATTACHMENT A 

  

(c) Granting the Use Permit will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or public 
welfare, or materially injurious to the properties or improvements in the vicinity. 

Discussion: As conditioned, the proposed use would not be detrimental to public health, 
safety, or welfare since the tenant space will only be used as storage space and 
personal office space by a commercial home staging company, and no noticeable activity 
will occur on the site, with the exception of the loading and unloading of furniture using 
a small moving truck of 22 feet or less in length. All vehicles used for the business will 
be no greater than 22 feet in length, which is an appropriate size for utilizing the 
existing loading area without encroaching into the right-of-way along Mission Road. 
Surrounding uses are light industrial in nature and there are no local sensitive receptors 
which would be affected by the minimal amount of truck emissions expected. 

(d) Existing property uses, large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the proposed 
use.  

Discussion: Existing uses will not be detrimentally affected because the tenant space will 
only be used as storage space and office space by a commercial home staging company. 
No structural changes are proposed to any buildings, and no property improvements are 
proposed. All activities related to the use will occur within existing facilities, with the 
exception of the loading and unloading of furniture using a small moving truck of 22 feet 
or less in length. All vehicles used for the business will be no greater than 22 feet in 
length, which is an appropriate size for utilizing the existing loading area without 
encroaching into the right-of-way along Mission Road. Surrounding uses are light 
industrial in nature and there are no local sensitive receptors which would be affected by 
the minimal amount of truck emissions expected. Therefore, existing property uses, 
large or small, will not be detrimentally affected by the proposed use. 

(e) The granting of the Use Permit will not constitute a grant of special privilege inconsistent 
with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on the existing use of properties, large or 
small, within the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: Because light industrial and office uses are permitted with a Conditional Use 
Permit on the Subject Property, the Permittee is not requesting any special consideration 
and the proposed use would be subject to conditions similar to those required of other 
Use Permits. Therefore, granting the Conditional Use Permit will not constitute a grant of 
special privilege inconsistent with the limitations imposed by the Zoning Ordinance on 
the existing use of properties, large or small, within the Town of Colma.  

(f) The City Council is satisfied that the proposed use conforms to the purpose and intent of 
the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance.  

Discussion: Light industrial and office uses are allowed in the Commercial Zone subject 
to the issuance of a Conditional Use Permit. No changes to the existing building or 
property are proposed to accommodate the use. Therefore, the City Council is satisfied 
that the proposed use conforms to the purpose and intent of the General Plan and 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 3 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16699549.1  
8/25/15  ATTACHMENT A 

Zoning Ordinance. 

(g) The use will not constitute a nuisance to neighboring persons or properties.  

Discussion: The proposed use is a very low-intensity use for the site and Conditions of 
the Conditional Use Permit will ensure that all activities related to the use will not 
negatively impact adjoining uses.  The proposed use, including all required parking, can 
be accommodated on-site. All vehicles used for the business will be no greater than 22 
feet in length, which is an appropriate size for utilizing the existing loading area without 
encroaching into the right-of-way along Mission Road. Surrounding uses are light 
industrial in nature and there are no local sensitive receptors which would be affected by 
the minimal amount of truck emissions expected. Therefore, the use will not constitute a 
nuisance to neighboring persons or properties. 

 
3. CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
 (a) This Use Permit shall allow the portion of the existing building identified on the approved 
site plan, date stamped August 7, 2015 and on-file in the Planning Department, to be used by a 
home staging company for storage and personal office use.  
 
(b) The Permittee must maintain compliance with the requirements of the Colma Fire 
Protection District, including required inspections of the premises. The Permittee must maintain 
all fire-safety equipment and improvements in good working condition. 

(c) The three (3) off-street parking spaces identified in the approved site plan, date 
stamped August 7, 2015 and on-file in the Planning Department, shall be maintained for the 
proposed use by the business at all times. 

 (f) All work, except for loading and unloading of delivery vehicles, shall be conducted inside 
the building. 

(g) The Permittee shall maintain weekly refuse disposal services. 

(h) All vehicles used for the business shall be no greater than 22 feet in length and must be 
stored inside the building or off-site during non-business hours. 

(i) No outside signs are allowed except one sign on the front façade of the tenant unit, 
which shall meet the standards of the Town’s sign ordinance. A sign permit is required prior to 
installation.   

 (j) No use or occupancy with a quantity of material that exceeds the amounts of hazardous 
materials permitted under Tables 3-D and 3-E of the California Uniform Building Code 
presenting a physical hazard shall be permitted. 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 4 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16699549.1  
8/25/15  ATTACHMENT A 

4. TERMS 

(a) Permittee. As used in this Permit, the word “Permittee” shall mean each person using 
the Property pursuant to the permit granted herein, including successors to the person first 
obtaining the permit.  

(b) Recordable Covenant; Transfer.  The Town may record this Conditional Use Permit with 
the San Mateo County Recorder. The Permit shall run with the land and shall be freely and 
automatically transferred to each user of the Property, subject to each of the specific and 
general conditions herein.  

(c) Modification or Revocation. The Town may modify or revoke this Conditional Use Permit 
should it determine that (a) the Property is being operated or maintained in a manner that is 
detrimental to the public health or welfare, is materially injurious to property or improvements 
in the vicinity, constitutes a public nuisance, or is contrary to any law, code or regulation, or (b) 
if the user fails to comply with and satisfy the conditions herein. 

5. GENERAL CONDITIONS 

This Use Permit is conditioned upon the Permittee and each user of the Property fully and 
faithfully performing each of the following generally-applicable obligations. Failure to comply 
with any of these conditions shall render the Conditional Use Permit null and void. 

(a) Duty to Comply With Laws. Nothing herein shall be construed as authorizing any 
approvals under, or any exceptions to any other law, code or regulation, or as authorizing any 
change to the occupancy classification of the premises or any buildings thereon as defined in 
the California Building Code. The Permittee and each user must comply with all applicable 
federal, state and municipal laws, codes and regulations, including the currently adopted 
California Building and Fire Codes.  Specifically, but without limitation, the Permittee must pay 
the annual Town of Colma Business Registration fee and must keep in effect a Town of Colma 
Business Registration at all times. A failure to maintain the Colma Business Registration may 
result in termination of the Use Permit. 

(b) Indemnification. The Permittee shall indemnify, pay and hold the Town of Colma 
harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorney’s fees, incurred by the Town or held to 
be the liability of the Town in connection with the Town’s defense of its actions in any 
proceeding brought in any state or federal court challenging the Town’s actions with respect to 
the Conditional Use Permit. 

(c) Agreement Required. The Permittee must agree to comply with each and every term 
and condition herein by counter-signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-
signed copy to the City Clerk no later than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of 
the Conditional Use Permit and Sign Permit. If Permittee is not the property owner, then the 
property owner must consent to use of the Property on the terms and conditions herein by 
counter-signing a copy of this Resolution and returning the counter-signed copy to the City 
Clerk no later than forty-five (45) days following City Council approval of the Conditional Use 
Permit. 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 5 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16699549.1  
8/25/15  ATTACHMENT A 

* * * * * *  

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
said City Council held on September 9, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
  Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 

 
 Attest:______________________________ 
    Sean Rabé, City Clerk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF RIGHT TO PROTEST 
 

The Conditions of Project Approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements, and other exactions. Pursuant to Government Code 
Section 66020(d)(1), these Conditions constitute written notice of a statement of the amount of 
such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations, and other exactions. You are 
hereby further notified that the 90-day approval period in which you may protest these fees, 
dedications, reservations, and other exactions, pursuant to Government Code Section 66020(a), 
began on date of adoption of this resolution. If you fail to file a protest within this 90-day period 
complying with all of the requirements of Section 66020, you will be legally barred from later 
challenging such exactions. 

 

 



Res. 2015-__, 1531-1533 Mission Road – Conditional Use Permit Page 6 of 6 
  
  
25977.00100\16699549.1  
8/25/15  ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 

Permitee 

The undersigned agrees to use of the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated: _________________  ______________________________________ 
Signature 

Printed Name of Permittee:_____________________ 

Property Owner 

The undersigned agrees to use of the property on the terms and conditions set forth in this 
resolution. 

Dated: _________________  ______________________________________ 
Signature 

Printed Name of Property 
 Owner:_____________________ 

 

 [Notarization of Property Owner's signature recommended] 



= Available Onsite Parking Space

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

Michael Cully, Building Official 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce the following: 

ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SUBCHAPTER 5.05 TO THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed ordinance would add a new subchapter 5.05 to the Colma Municipal Code to 
provide an expedited review process for applications for small residential rooftop solar energy 
systems.  Assembly Bill 2188, effective on January 1, 2015, requires all cities in California to 
adopt an ordinance providing for an expedited review process. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed ordinance is not anticipated to have a fiscal impact on the Town’s budget. 
Although the Town is required to provide an expedited review process, an applicant will still be 
required to obtain a building permit and the Town will continue to impose the building permit 
fee on the applicant.  

ANALYSIS 

Assembly Bill 2188 that became effective on January 1, 2015, requires every city in the State of 
California to provide for an expedited review process for small residential rooftop solar energy 
systems. The purpose of the law is to further the State policy of promoting and encouraging the 
installation and use of solar energy systems by limiting obstacles.  

State law requires that the Town’s ordinance impose on the Building Official the requirement to 
create a checklist that sets forth all of the requirements an application for small residential 
rooftop solar energy systems must meet to be eligible for expedited review. Pursuant to AB 
2188, the City must substantially conform its permitting process, including the checklist(s) and 
standard plans, with the most current version of the California Solar Permitting Guidebook.  AB 

Staff Report Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System Ordinance  Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\17080676.1
8/28/15  

ITEM #12



2188 also requires that the City make the expedited permitting application available on the 
City’s website.  Applications that meet all of the checklist requirements must be approved 
administratively, pursuant to a building permit issued by City staff.  An administrative use 
permit, subject to conditions of approval, may only be required in limited circumstances where 
the application could have a specific adverse impact on public health or safety.   

AB 2188 further requires that the City include all documentation on its website and accept 
electronic submission of the permit documents. Building staff is in the process of setting up a 
Town webpage to allow for applicants to obtain the required documents and submit them 
electronically.   

Finally, AB 2188 restricts the number of City inspections for small residential rooftop solar 
systems to one inspection, which must be completed in a timely manner, unless the system fails 
the inspection.  The Colma Fire Protection District would also be able to conduct an inspection 
for fire safety purposes. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s introduction and adoption of the ordinance is the responsible thing to do as it 
ensures the Town is in full compliance with state law. Further, it is also visionary as it looks 
towards the future with regard to alternative energy systems, such as solar energy. 
 
Sustainability Impact 

The City Council’s introduction and adoption of the ordinance would have a positive 
sustainability impact on the Town in that it would allow for a more streamlined process for 
those residential homeowners seeking to install small solar energy systems. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose not to introduce and adopt the ordinance.  Doing so it not 
recommended, however, as it would mean the Town is out of compliance with state law. 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should introduce the ordinance. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance 

 
 

Staff Report Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System Ordinance  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\17080676.1  
8/28/15  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE ADDING A NEW SUBCHAPTER 5.05 TO THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO SMALL RESIDENTIAL ROOFTOP SOLAR 

ENERGY SYSTEMS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 5.05 ADDED. 1 

A new subchapter 5.05, Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems, is hereby added to the 
Colma Municipal Code to read as follows: 

Subchapter 5.05: Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems 

5.05.010 Applicability and Purpose. 

(a) This Subchapter applies to the permitting of all small residential rooftop solar energy 
systems in the City. The purpose of this Section is to create an expedited, streamlined solar 
permitting process that complies with the Solar Rights Act, as amended by AB 2188 (Chapter 
521, Statutes 2014), to achieve timely and cost-effective installations of small residential 
rooftop solar energy systems. This Subchapter encourages the use of small residential rooftop 
solar energy systems by removing unreasonable barriers, minimizing costs to property owners 
and the City, and expanding the ability of property owners to install small rooftop solar energy 
systems.  This Subchapter allows the City to achieve these goals while protecting the public 
health and safety. 

5.05.020 Definitions. 

Building Official means the Town’s Building Official. 

Electronic Submittal means the submission of materials via electronic mail. 

Small residential rooftop solar energy system means a solar energy system that meets all of the 
following: (1) is no larger than 10 kilowatts alternating current nameplate rating or 30 kilowatts 
thermal; (2) conforms to all applicable State fire, structural, electrical, and other building codes 
as adopted or amended by the Town, and all State and local Health and Safety standards as 
adopted or amended by the Town; (3) is installed on a single or duplex family dwelling; and (4) 
the panel or module array does not exceed the maximum legal building height as defined by the 
Town. 

Solar energy system means a solar energy system as defined in paragraphs (1) and (2) of 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 1 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.1  

Attachment A



subdivision (a) of Section 801.5 of the Civil Code, as such section or subdivision may be 
amended, renumbered, or re-designated from time to time. 

Specific, adverse impact means a significant, quantifiable, direct, and unavoidable impact, 
based on objective, identified, and written public health or safety standards, policies, or 
conditions as they existed on the date the application was deemed complete. 

 
5.05.030 Basic Requirements. 

(a) A solar energy system that qualifies as a small residential rooftop solar energy system 
shall be processed in accordance with this Subchapter. 

(b) Applications for small residential rooftop solar energy systems shall require a building 
permit or administrative use permit as set forth in this Subchapter. 

(c) A small residential rooftop solar energy system shall meet applicable health and safety 
standards and requirements imposed by the state and the Town, and the Colma Fire Protection 
District. 

(d) The Building Official shall, prior to September 30, 2015, adopt an administrative, 
nondiscretionary expedited review process for small residential rooftop solar energy systems, 
which shall include standard plan(s) and checklist(s). The checklist(s) shall set forth all 
requirements with which small residential rooftop solar energy systems must comply with to be 
eligible for expedited review.   

(e) The small residential rooftop solar system permit process, standard plan(s), and 
checklist(s) shall substantially conform to recommendations for expedited permitting, including 
the checklist and standard plans contained in the most current version of the California Solar 
Permitting Guidebook adopted by the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research and may be 
amended as otherwise necessary or advisable.  

5.05.040 Applicant Obligations. 

(a) Prior to submitting an application, the applicant shall:  

(1) Verify, to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction, through the use of standard 
engineering evaluation techniques that the support structure for the small residential rooftop 
solar energy system is stable and adequate to transfer all wind, seismic, and dead and live 
loads associated with the system to the building foundation; and  

(2) At the applicant’s cost, verify to the applicant’s reasonable satisfaction, using 
standard electrical inspection techniques that the existing electrical system including existing 
line, load, ground and bonding wiring as well as main panel and subpanel sizes are adequately 
sized, based on the existing electrical system’s current use, to carry all new photovoltaic 
electrical loads.  

 

 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 2 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.1  



5.05.050 Electronic Processing. 

(a) All documents required for the submission of an expedited small residential rooftop solar 
energy system application shall be made available on a publicly accessible Town website. 

(b) Electronic submittal of the required permit application and documents by electronic 
means shall be made available to all small residential rooftop solar energy system permit 
applicants.  The Town’s website shall specify the permitted method of electronic document 
submission. 

(c) An applicant’s electronic signature shall be accepted on all forms, applications, and other 
documents in lieu of a wet signature in a manner specified on the Town’s website.  

5.05.060 Application Review. 

(a) An application that the Building Official determines satisfies the information 
requirements contained in the Town’s checklist(s) for expedited small residential rooftop solar 
system processing, including complete supporting documents, shall be deemed complete.  

(b) If an application is deemed incomplete, a written correction notice detailing all 
deficiencies in the application and any additional information or documentation required to be 
eligible for expedited permit issuance shall be sent to the applicant for resubmission. 

(c) After the Building Official deems an application complete, he or she shall review the 
application to determine whether the application meets local, state, and federal health and 
safety requirements. 

(d) Unless the Building Official determines a use permit is warranted, the Building Official 
shall issue a building permit or other nondiscretionary permit within a reasonable period of time 
after receipt of a complete application that meets the requirements of the approved checklist, 
standard plan and this Subchapter.  

(e) The Building Official may require an applicant to apply for a use permit if he or she 
finds, based on substantial evidence, that the solar energy system could have a specific, 
adverse impact upon the public health and safety. This decision may be appealed to the City 
Council. 

5.05.070 Administrative Use Permit. 

(a) If an administrative use permit is required, it shall be processed in accordance with this 
Section and the administrative use permit requirements contained in the Town’s Zoning 
Ordinance.   

(b) The administrative use permit may be denied if written findings are made, based upon 
substantive evidence in the record, that the proposed installation would have a specific, adverse 
impact upon public health or safety and there is no feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or 
avoid, as defined, the adverse impact.  Such findings shall include the basis for the rejection of 
the potential feasible alternative for preventing the adverse impact.  

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 3 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.1  



(b) Any condition imposed on an administrative use permit shall be designed to mitigate the 
specific, adverse impact upon health and safety at the lowest possible cost. 

(c) “A feasible method to satisfactorily mitigate or avoid the specific, adverse impact” 
includes, but is not limited to, any cost-effective method, condition, or mitigation imposed by 
the Town on another similarly situated application in a prior successful application for a permit.  
The Town shall use its best efforts to ensure that the selected method, condition, or mitigation 
does not significantly increase the cost of the system or decrease its efficiency or specified 
performance in excess of the following: 

(1) For Water Heater Systems or Solar Swimming Pool Heating Systems: an amount 
exceeding 10 percent of the cost of the system, but in no case more than one thousand dollars 
($1,000), or decreasing the efficiency of the solar energy system by an amount exceeding 10 
percent, as originally specified and proposed. 

(2) For Photovoltaic Systems: an amount not to exceed one thousand dollars 
($1,000) over the system cost as originally specified and proposed, or a decrease in system 
efficiency of an amount exceeding 10 percent as originally specified and proposed. 

5.05.080 Inspections. 

(a) Only one inspection shall be required and performed by the Town for small residential 
rooftop solar energy systems eligible for expedited review. The inspection shall be done in a 
timely manner. A separate fire safety inspection may be performed by the Colma Fire Protection 
District, as determined by the Building Official. 

(b) If a small residential rooftop solar energy system fails inspection, a subsequent 
inspection is authorized but need not conform to the requirements of this section. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT.  

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making.  

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 4 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.1  



ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy Systems Page 5 of 5 
25977.00100\17032510.1  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Christopher J. Diaz, City Attorney 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: City Council Meeting Time and Day Ordinance 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council introduce either one of the following: 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.02.080 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME 

or 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.02.080 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME AND DAYS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Two ordinances have been prepared for this agenda item in order to provide the City Council 
with flexibility in making a decision. The first ordinance, or Attachment “A” in your packet, 
would amend the Town’s Municipal Code to change the City Council’s regular meeting start time 
from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. The second ordinance, or Attachment “B” in your packet, in 
addition to changing the City Council’s regular meeting start time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m., 
would also add a second regular meeting day per month to be held on the fourth Wednesday of 
every month. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The first ordinance moving the regular meeting start time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. is not 
anticipated to cause any financial impact on the Town. The second ordinance moving the 
regular meeting time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and adding a second regular meeting day 
could cause a financial impact on the Town associated with staff and consultant time in 
preparing for and attending a second meeting. However, based on the number of special 
meetings held in the past year, as further detailed in this staff report, the financial impact is 
anticipated to be minimal to none as staff has already been preparing for and attending two 
meetings per month on average. 

Staff Report Meeting Time and Days  Page 1 of 3 
25977.00100\16092780.1
8/20/15  

ITEM #13



BACKGROUND 

As you know, earlier this year the City Council adopted an ordinance allowing for the City 
Manager, with the concurrence of the Mayor, to hold a regular meeting earlier than the usual 
7:30 p.m. start time. The earlier start time is to be used for closed sessions and ceremonial 
type events with all regular business occurring at the regular 7:30 p.m. start time. This 
ordinance allows staff to produce one regular meeting agenda, without having to notice the 
earlier portion of a regular meeting as a special meeting.   

Staff is now recommending that the City Council consider amending the regular 7:30 p.m. start 
time to 7:00 p.m. and consider adding a second regular meeting day on the fourth Wednesday 
of every month. 

ANALYSIS 

Two ordinances are included in your packet to provide the City Council flexibility in making a 
decision on this item. 

• Attachment A – This ordinance amends Section 1.02.080 of the Town’s Municipal Code 
to move the City Council’s regular meeting start time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. 

• Attachment B - This ordinance amends Section 1.02.080 of the Town’s Municipal Code 
to move the City Council’s regular meeting start time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. and 
also adds a second regular meeting day on the fourth Wednesday of every month. 

Moving the City Council’s regular meeting start time from 7:30 p.m. to 7:00 p.m. is being 
recommended by staff as some City Council meetings with a large volume of business have 
gone late into the night hours. In order to prevent City Council meetings from going too late 
into the night, and for the benefit of the public, a half an hour earlier start time is 
recommended. 

Staff has also undertaken an analysis of the number of special meetings held in the past year.  
From August 2014 to August 2015, the City Council has held a total of 12 special meetings, at 
almost one special meeting per month. Additionally, in 2013, the City Council held 16 special 
meetings, in 2014 the City Council held 8 special meetings, and in 2015, the City Council has 
held 10 special meetings. In light of these statistics, staff wanted to bring to the City Council 
the option to add a second regular meeting day per month to be held on the fourth Wednesday 
of every month.  Having a reserved second regular meeting day will allow staff to schedule a 
second meeting, if needed, without having to poll the City Council on availability. It will also 
allow for the meeting to be a “regular meeting” under the Brown Act instead of a “special 
meeting.” As you may know, under the terms of the Brown Act and state law, certain actions 
cannot be considered at a special meeting including certain closed session items and the 
adoption of ordinances. It is important to note that even if the City Council has a reserved 
second regular meeting day per month, it does not require that the City Council actually meet. 
If there is no business to consider at this second regular meeting day, the City Clerk can cancel 
the meeting by posting a notice of cancellation. 

 

Staff Report Meeting Time and Days   Page 2 of 3 
25977.00100\16092780.1  
8/20/15  



Council Adopted Values 
 
The City Council’s consideration of either ordinance is visionary as it is looking to the future and 
implementing a change that will benefit the public, staff, and the City Council in considering 
future City Council business items. 
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could choose to not introduce either ordinance. Doing so is not recommended 
however, as at a minimum, the City Council should consider moving the start time from 7:30 
p.m. to 7:00 p.m. to benefit the public from having to stay late into the night when the City 
Council has a longer agenda of City business to consider.  

CONCLUSION 

The City Council should consider both ordinances and select one to introduce. 

ATTACHMENTS 
A. Ordinance Amending Meeting Time 
B. Ordinance Amending Meeting Time and Days 

 
 

Staff Report Meeting Time and Days   Page 3 of 3 
25977.00100\16092780.1  
8/20/15  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.02.080 OF THE  
COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 1.02 AMENDED. 1 

Section 1.02.080(a), Regular Meetings, of Subchapter 1.02, City Council and Mayor, is hereby 
amended as follows: 

1.02.080 Regular Meetings 

(a) The City Council shall meet regularly at 7:300 p.m. on the second Wednesday of each 
month, at the Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard, Colma, California, then and 
there to conduct such business as may properly come before it. When the second Wednesday 
of any month falls on a public holiday, the regular meeting shall be held at 7:300 p.m. the 
following day. The City Council’s regular 7:300 p.m. start time can be modified by the City 
Manager, with the concurrence of the Mayor or other presiding officer, to commence earlier 
depending upon the volume of business for the City Council to consider at any given meeting. 
The City Clerk shall provide prior written notice of the adjusted start time consistent with the 
Ralph M. Brown Act. The City Council’s intention is to make use of an earlier start time for 
closed session purposes or ceremonial type events, with all other regular agenda items 
continuing to commence at 7:300 p.m. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\14122842.1  

Attachment A



ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\14122842.1  



ORDINANCE NO. __ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 1.02.080 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE, 
RELATING TO CITY COUNCIL MEETING TIME AND DAYS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. CMC SUBCHAPTER 1.02 AMENDED. 1 

Section 1.02.080(a), Regular Meetings, of Subchapter 1.02, City Council and Mayor, is hereby 
amended as follows: 

1.02.080 Regular Meetings 

(a) The City Council shall meet regularly at 7:300 p.m. on the second and fourth 
Wednesday of each month, at the Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard, Colma, 
California, then and there to conduct such business as may properly come before it. When the 
second or fourth Wednesday of any month falls on a public holiday, the regular meeting shall 
be held at 7:300 p.m. the following day. The City Council’s regular 7:300 p.m. start time can be 
modified by the City Manager, with the concurrence of the Mayor or other presiding officer, to 
commence earlier depending upon the volume of business for the City Council to consider at 
any given meeting. The City Clerk shall provide prior written notice of the adjusted start time 
consistent with the Ralph M. Brown Act. The City Council’s intention is to make use of an earlier 
start time for closed session purposes or ceremonial type events, with all other regular agenda 
items continuing to commence at 7:300 p.m. 

ARTICLE 2. SEVERABILITY. 

Each of the provisions of this ordinance is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

ARTICLE 3. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 

The City Council finds that adoption of this ordinance is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

1 Substantive changes have been identified as follows: New text has been underlined; revised text has 
been underlined, without showing the prior wording; and deleted text is shown with a strike-through line. 
Non-substantive changes, such as grammar and formatting are not identified. All markings will be 
removed from the final version that is adopted by the City Council. 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time and Dates Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\14122979.1  

Attachment B



ARTICLE 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

This ordinance including the vote for and against the same shall be posted in the office of the 
City Clerk and on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma within 15 days of 
its passage and shall take force and effect thirty (30) days after its passage. 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ### was introduced at a regular meeting of the City 
Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, and duly adopted at a regular 
meeting of said City Council held on __________, 2015 by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      

 
 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 
 
 
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Sean Rabé, City Clerk 

Ord No. ___ Regular Meeting Time and Dates  Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\14122979.1  



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2014 

SUBJECT: Grant Funding 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, APPROVING GRANTS 
TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH APPROVED GRANT SERVES A 
PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE 
ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that each of the following organizations has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that each approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that grants should be 
approved and authorized as follows: 

Grantee Proposed Grant Amount 
Clinic by the Bay $2,000 
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000 
Community Gatepath $5,000 
Daly City / Colma 4H Club $1,000 
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing) * $5,000 
InnVision Shelter Network * $3,000 
Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School) $7,000 
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500 
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,312 
Sitike Counseling Center $8,000 
Skyline College President's Innovation Fund $600 
SMC Jobs for Youth $500 
Sustainable San Mateo County $4,000 
West Bay Alano Club $3,000 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015  Page 1 of 10 

25977.00100\17473757.1
9/1/15  

ITEM # 14



 
 
Footnotes:  

 * Indicates a Housing Element required grantee; funding will come from Planning 
Department budget 

 
A total of $103,912 has been requested by the various entities, while only $96,800 was 
allocated in the budget. However, staff is recommending the funding for HIP Housing ($5,000) 
and InnVision Shelter Network ($3,000) be taken from the Planning Department budget, rather 
than from the Donations line item in the City Council budget. The reason for this is because the 
Town has pledged, in its Housing Element, to fund these housing related entities and, as such, 
the appropriate funding source should be the Planning budget.   

Shifting the funding for the two entities decreases the total amount of funding requests to 
$95,912 – leaving a positive balance of $888 in undesignated grant funds. Council can choose 
to either increase funding levels beyond what each entity requested or leave the balance as 
additional funding for additional grant requests that may come in during the course of the fiscal 
year. Staff’s recommendation is to leave the balance for additional grant requests.  

Staff recommends that the Council approve the requested amounts of funding for the various 
entities.  

A separate action will be required for Daly City Library Associates due to a conflict of interest for 
one Council Member. That funding request will be taken up during the next agenda item.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2015-16 budget includes $96,800 for grant funding.  

BACKGROUND 

The Town has continued to refine the process for non-profit funding requests. The new 
process, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code, spells out several 
requirements for organizations to be funded by the Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must meet a basic rough 
proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a 
food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board 
must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must have policies 
and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

By Resolution 2014-55, the City Council modified the original criteria for approving grants by 
eliminating the rough proportionality requirement as one of the required criteria. In addition, 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 2 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



the City Council replaced the 10 examples of programs or projects that would qualify for a 
grant, such as providing food, shelter, or clothing to needy persons, with five categories of 
programs that would qualify for a grant. Staff recommended this change because few 
organizations used or referred to the examples in their applications. At the same time, staff 
noticed that many nonprofits found it difficult to articulate a reason why their programs 
provided a public benefit or served a public purpose – yet those nonprofits are certainly 
deserving of receiving a grant from the Town for the work they do to benefit the greater Colma 
community.  

To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects were created. To qualify for a grant, the program or project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The City Council approved funding levels for each category (as shown in the table below) at the 
July 22 City Council meeting. This action was taken with the understanding that the levels may 
be changed during the approval process, depending on grant requests. This is discussed further 
in the Analysis section of this staff report.  

Category Funding Amount 
Provide for Necessities of Life 20% 
Provide for Integrated Care Services 15% 
Education 10% 
Promote Economic Development 40% 
Provide for a Complementary Service 15% 

The $96,800 in available funding is broken down into two discrete budget line items: $45,000 
allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development promotion 
through the Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce (line item Grants); and $51,800 allocated 
to the City Council budget under the line item of Donations.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to each application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 3 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in each application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax 
under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater independence for persons with 
special needs and disabilities through education and support services that empower them. The 
Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities 
becoming active members of the community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering 
and working in the Town. 

Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and serve, with dignity and 
respect, the health and wellness needs of the medically underserved in the San Francisco Bay 
Area. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The Town benefits by having low income 
adults, in the Town and in the surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from 
Clinic by the Bay.  The Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with 
meaningful volunteer opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  
The grant funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and 
expand chronic disease management programs.  

Daly City / Colma 4-H Club is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from 
tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to empower youth to reach their full potential by 
participating in project-based learning and working in partnership with caring adults. The Town 
of Colma is within its service area. Funding the Club’s activities benefits the Town by proving 
opportunity for Colma youth to obtain hands-on learning, goal-setting and achievement, and 
the ability to build a foundation of leadership and skills for success in their future careers. 

Daly City Youth Health Center, as part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), is a 
California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s mission statement is to provide 
safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and education to underserved teens and young 
adults, preparing them for a healthy adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are 
directed by the JUHSD Board of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 13 Colma 
youth and their families two or more times during the 2014-15 school year. The Town of Colma 
is within its service area. The Town benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability 
of integrated wellness services to youth, especially those who belong to the low-income and 
immigrant populations residing in Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center providing 
counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, substance use and 
abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their challenges in life.   

Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce 
(“Chamber”), is registered with the California Attorney General as a mutual benefit nonprofit 
corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue 
Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 4 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business development and networking, and to provide 
members with useful information and services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments 
within the Town of Colma and the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the 
Chamber’s membership area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting 
economic, professional, commercial and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding 
communities. The Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them 
with business development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. 
These programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved services and 
increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the benefit of all 
residents and businesses located in the Town. 

HIP Housing Development Corporation is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing and lives of 
people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to live independent, 
self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area.  

InnVision Shelter Network is a nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of 
a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission 
is to help homeless families and individuals in the area and assist them in returning to 
permanent housing and self-sufficiency.  The Town of Colma is located within InnVision Shelter 
Network’s service area. The Town benefits from InnVision’s work as low-income and homeless 
individuals and families in the area are provided support services to reduce the homeless 
population in the area.   

North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) registered with the 
California Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town 
with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The Town Colma is located 
within its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from the Food Pantry, but 
the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is registered with the California Attorney General 
as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote positive 
collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and trains 
people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, which is all of 
San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and referral services, 
mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 

San Mateo Community College Foundation is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote student success 
and nourish project innovation and excellence by providing special financial support for the 
three community colleges in the District. In particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the 
President’s Innovation Fund which is to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 5 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



and staff devising innovative programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the 
geographic area that the Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students 
registered at Skyline College live in the Colma/Daly City region.  

San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is a California governmental entity. Jobs for Youth 
is a program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma is 
located within its service area. Jobs for Youth has not provided any information about the 
residency locations of its clients. 

Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located within its 
service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency locations of its clients. 

Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to stimulate community action 
on economic, environmental and social issues by providing accurate, timely and empowering 
information.  In general, the funds will be used to support the research and production of the 
Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the 
health of San Mateo County and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city 
officials, non-profits, and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering 
sustainable policies. The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable 
San Mateo County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located. 

West Bay Alano Club is registered with the California Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). The Club’s mission is to provide a clean, sober 
and safe environment for people in recovery, their families and friends. The Town of Colma is 
located within its service area. Because of the anonymous nature of its client base, West Bay 
Alano Club has not provided any information about the residency locations of its clients. 

Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School Program) is a California governmental 
entity. The Wilderness School Program - Susan B. Anthony School Project is a joint program 
administered by Jefferson Union High School District. Its mission is to teach high school 
students leadership skills and responsibility and to provide elementary school children with field 
trip chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role models. The project consist of field trips, hiking 
and camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or Susan B. 
Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year.  

Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 6 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services offered by 
Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities become active 
members of the community through recreational, educational and volunteer opportunities with 
businesses in the Town. The services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to 
Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the 
opportunity to learn and thrive.The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to 
low income, working and uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Town and the community at large will 
benefit from increased healthcare services in the form of expanded primary care, Saturday 
hours for services, and an expansion of the chronic disease management program.  Low 
income, working and uninsured adults will have better access to medical care, ensuring the 
health and vitality of the community and of Town residents. All of these services are readily 
accessible to Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as the Town and the 
community all benefit from a healthy populace.   

The expenditure of public funds to pay for youth-based programs and the removal of trees 
(funding for which would otherwise be taken from the Club’s program costs), as requested by 
the Daly City / Colma 4-H Club, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen 
otherwise. In that case the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and 
other costs to provide these services. The services offered by Daly City/Colma 4 H Club are 
readily accessible to Colma as the club is comprised of members of the Town. Further, the 
public benefit is substantial as youth are able to learn and engage in 4 H type activities. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services and education to 
underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the Daly City Youth Health 
Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. Specifically, this program 
will help youths by providing accessibility and availability of integrated wellness services, which 
will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. These services are readily 
accessible to Colma youth, and provide a substantial public benefit by ensuring the health and 
vitality of Colma’s youth. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, business grand openings, 
business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, and operational costs, as requested 
by the Greater Colma-Daly City Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the 
Town could provide these same services as part of its economic development program. In that 
case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental 
materials to provide these services.  

The expenditure of public funds to support its Home Sharing program, as requested by HIP 
Housing Development Corporation, could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen 
otherwise. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily accessible to Colma residents, with 
HIP Housing providing direct assistance and resources to nine clients in Colma in 2014. Finally, 
the public benefit is substantial as providing housing to help people live independent lives is 
important for a well-functioning society.   

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 7 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, as requested by the 
InnVision Shelter Network could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. 
In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the grant in staff time and incidental 
materials to provide these services. The services offered by InnVision are readily accessible to 
individuals in Colma as the Town is located within InnVision Shelter Network’s service area. 
Further, the public benefit is substantial as InnVision’s services ensure Colma residents, or 
anyone traveling through InnVision’s network, have shelter and other support services. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., three days of staple 
groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons as requested, as requested 
by North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City will provide an identifiable 
benefit to the community at large. The Food Pantry provides services that are readily accessible 
to Colma residents as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone living or traveling 
through Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by the 
Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with its trained volunteers, 
as requested by Peninsula Conflicts Resolution Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily accessible to Colma residents and 
business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by 
PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between members of the Colma community. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services for the College 
District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College Foundation, will 
provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students at Skyline College.  The 
Town and the community at large will benefit from increased educational opportunities by 
ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better educated community will advance 
the Town economically, politically, and socially. The services offered by the San Mateo 
Community College Foundation are readily accessible to any Colma residents attending Skyline 
College. Further, the public benefit is substantial as college students are able to experience new 
and unique educational opportunities. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, counseling, job 
placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth Program, will 
provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Specifically, this program will 
help youths transition into adulthood and gain work experience, which will make them better, 
more informed, and more productive citizens. The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs 
for Youth are readily accessible to Colma youth as last year, two Colma residents participated in 
this program. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for counselling persons with substance abuse and 
mental health disorders, as requested by Sitike will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma 
community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender Drinking Driver program, an outpatient 
treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day treatment program, and an Anger Management 
program. Sitike does not track the residency locations of its clients. Specifically these programs 
will help stop the spiral of dependency, which will make the clients better, more informed, and 
more productive citizens. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 8 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



and the public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental 
health issues. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of the Indicators for a 
Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable San Mateo County, will 
provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding the economy, environment, 
and social issues facing the County.  This report will support the Town’s Sustainable Community 
Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City Council, and the business community in 
the Town in implementing sustainability policies and objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo 
County Report provides a substantial public benefit by providing the public, private sector, and 
Colma elected officials, with pertinent information regarding sustainability and how it can be 
better met in the County. 

The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field trips, nature 
lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by Jefferson Union High 
School District for the Wilderness School Program/Susan B. Anthony School Project, will provide 
an identifiable benefit to the community at large. . The public benefit provided by these services 
is substantial as the services provide education to the Town’s youth, which will make them 
better, more informed, and more productive citizens.  

The expenditure of public funds to pay for a supportive environment for persons with substance 
abuse and their families, as requested by West Bay Alano Club, will provide an identifiable 
benefit to the Colma community at large. This program helps clients battle substance 
dependency, which makes the clients better, more informed, and more productive citizens. The 
services offered by West Bay Alano Club are readily available to Colma residents and the public 
benefit provided is substantial as the services help stop the cycle of chemical dependency that 
can impact communities and public resources. 

None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, national and 
regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or lobbying 
activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no obligation or 
commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee will not 
discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual orientation, 
marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

Funding Categories 

As noted in the background portion of this staff report, the City Council designated percentage 
amounts for each category of funding at the July 22, 2015 Council meeting.  

In reviewing the funding proposals, the funding categories are as listed below, with the 
Council’s approved funding levels as a comparison:  

 

 

 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 9 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



Funding Categories 

Type: Total Requested Percentage 
Requested 

Council-Approved 
Funding Levels 

Integrated Care:  $20,000 19% 15% 
Necessities of Life $20,500 20% 20% 
Education $8,412 8% 10% 
Complementary Service $10,000 10% 15% 
Economic Development $45,000 43% 40% 

Because there is minimal deviation from the Council’s approved funding levels and because the 
funding levels were set by motion (as opposed to by resolution), there is no action required to 
modify the percentages. 

Values 

By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting responsibility. 

Sustainability Impact 

None. 

Alternatives 

The Council could fund some entities at a level higher than the requested amount. Doing so, 
however, will deplete the available grant funding, leaving none available for any potential grant 
requests that come in during the course of the fiscal year. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels 
at the requested amounts by each grantee. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Funding request summary 
C. Historical funding levels 
D. Funding requests 

Staff Report re Grant Funding 2015   Page 10 of 10 
 
25977.00100\17473757.1  
9/1/15  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, 
APPROVING GRANTS TO ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATIONS, FINDING THAT EACH 

APPROVED GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING 
CONTRACTS WITH EACH ELIGIBLE ORGANIZATION FOR THE USE OF TOWN 

FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from each of the following organization and 
finds as follows: 

(a) Clinic by the Bay 

Discussion. Clinic by the Bay is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the IRS stating that 
it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to understand and 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 1 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1
9/1/15  

Attachment A



serve, with dignity and respect, the health and wellness needs of the medically 
underserved in the San Francisco Bay Area. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area. The Town benefits by having low income adults, in the Town and in the 
surrounding area, served by free primary medical care from Clinic by the Bay.  The 
Town also benefits as Clinic by the Bay provides residents with meaningful volunteer 
opportunities to be part of a neighborhood solution to health care issues.  The grant 
funds will be used to expand primary care, continue to offer Saturday hours, and expand 
chronic disease management programs.  

(b) InnVision Shelter Network is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: InnVision Shelter Network is a nonprofit corporation and has provided the 
Town with a copy of a letter from the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to help homeless families 
and individuals in the area and assist them in returning to permanent housing and self-
sufficiency.  The Town of Colma is located within InnVision Shelter Network’s service 
area. The Town benefits from InnVision’s work as low-income and homeless individuals 
and families in the area are provided support services to reduce the homeless population 
in the area.   

(c) Community Gatepath is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Community Gatepath is registered with the Attorney General as a public 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating 
that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide greater 
independence for persons with special needs and disabilities through education and 
support services that empower them. The Town of Colma is within its service area. The 
Town benefits by having people with disabilities becoming active members of the 
community, spending money at local businesses, volunteering and working in the Town.  

(d) Daly City / Colma 4-H Club is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion: The Daly City / Colma 4-H Club is registered with the Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
empower youth to reach their full potential by participating in project-based learning 
and working in partnership with caring adults. The Town of Colma is within its service 
area. Funding the Club’s activities benefits the Town by proving opportunity for Colma 
youth to obtain hands-on learning, goal-setting and achievement, and the ability to build 
a foundation of leadership and skills for success in their future careers. 

(e) Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber of Commerce, aka Colma/Daly City Chamber of 
Commerce (“Chamber”), is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: The Chamber is registered with the California Attorney General  as a mutual 
benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a copy of a letter from the 
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) stating that it is exempt from tax under Internal 
Revenue Code (“IRC”) section 501(c)(6). Its mission is to encourage business 
development and networking, and to provide members with useful information and 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 2 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



services. The Chamber serves commercial establishments within the Town of Colma and 
the City of Daly City. The Town of Colma is located within the Chamber’s membership 
area. The Chamber takes an active leadership role in promoting economic, professional, 
commercial and civic vitality for the Town of Colma and surrounding communities. The 
Chamber’s programs and activities benefit its members by providing them with business 
development and networking opportunities as well as educational materials. These 
programs and activities improve the quality of services rendered to the public by the 
Chamber’s members and help increase its members’ sales. In turn, improved service and 
increased sales will increase the Town’s tax revenues, which ultimately inure to the 
benefit of all residents and businesses located in the Town. 

(f) Daly City Youth Health Center is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: As part of the Jefferson Union High School District (JUHSD), the Daly City 
Youth Health Center is a California governmental entity. The school-linked program’s 
mission statement is to provide safe, respectful, comprehensive health services and 
education to underserved teens and young adults, preparing them for a healthy 
adulthood. The community wellness center’s activities are directed by the JUHSD Board 
of Directors and Advisory Council. The Center served 13 Colma youth and their families 
two or more times during the 2014-15 school year. The Town of Colma is within its 
service area. The Town benefits by the Center providing accessibility and availability of 
integrated wellness services to youth, especially those who belong to the low-income 
and immigrant populations residing in Colma. The Town also benefits by the Center 
providing counseling for Colma youth who are suffering from mental health issues, 
substance use and abuse, and suicidal ideation to help youth better cope with their 
challenges in life. 

(g) HIP Housing Development Corporation (“HIP Housing) is eligible for grant funding from 
the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. HIP Housing is registered with the Attorney General as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to improve the housing and 
lives of people in the community. HIP Housing enables people with special needs to live 
independent, self-sufficient lives in decent, safe, low-cost homes. The Town of Colma is 
within its service area.  

(h) North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) is eligible 
for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. The Food Pantry is registered with the California Attorney General  as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
provide nutrition and sustenance to anyone in need. The Town Colma is located within 
its service area. Any Colma resident in need may obtain food from the Food Pantry, but 
the Food Pantry does not track the residency locations of its clients.  

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 3 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



(i) Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center (“PCRC”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma. 

Discussion. PCRC is registered with the California Attorney General  as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to promote positive 
collaboration and active engagement among people. It facilitates group discussions and 
trains people in conflict resolution. The Town of Colma is located within its service area, 
which is all of San Mateo County. PCRC will provide free or low-cost information and 
referral services, mediation services, and training to all Colma residents. 

(j) San Mateo Community College District Foundation is eligible for grant funding from the 
Town of Colma. 

Discussion. San Mateo Community College District Foundation is registered with the 
Attorney General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town 
with a letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). 
Its mission is to promote student success and nourish project innovation and excellence 
by providing special financial support for the three community colleges in the District. In 
particular, the Foundation seeks grant funds for the President’s Innovation Fund which is 
to provide start-up funding and financial support to faculty and staff devising innovative 
programs and services.  The Town of Colma is within the geographic area that the 
Foundation serves. The Foundation estimates that 24% of students registered at Skyline 
College live in the Colma/Daly City region. 

(k) San Mateo County (Jobs for Youth Program) is eligible for grant funding from the Town 
of Colma.  

Discussion. San Mateo County is a California governmental entity. Jobs for Youth is a 
program sponsored by San Mateo County. Jobs’ mission is to provide all youths with 
employment services that will assist in gaining necessary job skills. The Town of Colma 
is located within its service area. Jobs for Youth has not provided any information about 
the residency locations of its clients. 

(l) Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma.  

Discussion. Sitike is registered with the California Attorney General  as a public benefit 
nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS stating that it is 
exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to provide community-based 
substance-abuse counseling and education services. The Town of Colma is located 
within its service area. Sitike has not provided any information about the residency 
locations of its clients. 

(m) Sustainable San Mateo County is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Sustainable San Mateo County is registered with the California Attorney 
General as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a 
letter from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its 
mission is to stimulate community action on economic, environmental and social issues 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 4 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



by providing accurate, timely and empowering information.  In general, the funds will be 
used to support the research and production of the Indicators for a Sustainable San 
Mateo County Report.  The Indicators Report evaluates the health of San Mateo County 
and its cities in terms of sustainability and provides a mean for city officials, non-profits, 
and business leaders, to make educated decisions when considering sustainable policies. 
The Town of Colma is within the geographic area served by Sustainable San Mateo 
County and the Indicators Report covers the area where the Town is located. 

(n) Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School Program) is eligible for grant 
funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Jefferson is a California governmental entity. Wilderness School Program -
Susan B. Anthony School Project) is a joint program administered by Jefferson Union 
High School District. Its mission is to teach high school students leadership skills and 
responsibility and to provide field trip chaperones, on-site tutors, and positive role 
models for the elementary school children. The project consist of field trips, hiking and 
camping. Many students from the Town of Colma attend Jefferson High School or Susan 
B. Anthony Elementary School, and the number varies from year to year.  

(o) West Bay Alano Club is eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion: West Bay Alano Club is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided the Town with a letter from the 
IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). The Club’s mission is 
to provide a clean, sober and safe environment for people in recovery, their families and 
friends. The Town of Colma is located within its service area. Because of the anonymous 
nature of its client base, West Bay Alano Club has not provided any information about 
the residency locations of its clients. 

(p) Each of these organizations has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure 
that the terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened 
in any political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of 
or in opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the applications for grant funds from each of the following 
organization and finds as follows:  

(a) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Community Gatepath will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for education and support services offered 
by Community Gatepath to persons with special needs will provide an identifiable benefit to the 
Colma community at large. The Town benefits by having people with disabilities become active 
members of the community through recreational, educational and volunteer opportunities with 
businesses in the Town. The services offered by Community Gatepath are readily accessible to 
Colma residents and the public benefit is substantial as people with disabilities have the 
opportunity to learn and thrive. 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 5 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



(b) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to Clinic by the Bay will serve a public 
purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for healthcare services to low 
income, working and uninsured adults, as requested by Clinic by the Bay, will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the community at large. The Town and the community at large will 
benefit from increased healthcare services in the form of expanded primary care, 
Saturday hours for services, and an expansion of the chronic disease management 
program.  Low income, working and uninsured adults will have better access to medical 
care, ensuring the health and vitality of the community and of Town residents. All of 
these services are readily accessible to Colma residents and the public benefit is 
substantial as the Town and the community all benefit from a healthy populace.   

(c) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City / Colma 4-H Club will serve 
a public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for youth-based programs and the 
removal of trees (funding for which would otherwise be taken from the Club’s program 
costs), as requested by the Daly City / Colma 4-H Club, could be provided by the Town 
but the Town has chosen otherwise. In that case the Town would likely expend the 
amount of the grant in staff time and other costs to provide these services. The services 
offered by Daly City/Colma 4 H Club are readily accessible to Colma as the club is 
comprised of members of the Town. Further, the public benefit is substantial as youth 
are able to learn and engage in 4 H type activities. 

(d) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Daly City Youth Health Center will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for comprehensive health services 
and education to underserved teens and young adults from Colma, as requested by the 
Daly City Youth Health Center, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. Specifically, this program will help youths by providing accessibility and availability 
of integrated wellness services, which will make them better, more informed, and more 
productive citizens. These services are readily accessible to Colma youth, and provide a 
substantial public benefit by ensuring the health and vitality of Colma’s youth. 

(e) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber 
of Commerce will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for networking opportunities, 
business grand openings, business promotions, facilitating workshops for businesses, 
and operational costs, as requested by the Greater Daly City - Colma Chamber of 
Commerce could be provided by the Town but the Town has chosen otherwise. 
Specifically, the Town could provide these same services as part of its economic 
development program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of the 
grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services.  

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 6 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



(f) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to HIP Housing Development Corporation 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for housing for persons with special 
needs, as requested by HIP Housing could be provided by the Town except that the 
Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of 
the grant to provide these services. The services offered by HIP Housing are readily 
accessible to Colma residents, with HIP Housing providing direct assistance and 
resources to nine clients in Colma in 2014. Finally, the public benefit is substantial as 
providing housing to help people live independent lives is important for a well-
functioning society.  

(g) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the InnVision Shelter Network will serve 
a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for shelter and supportive services, 
as requested by the InnVision Shelter Network could be provided by the Town but the 
Town has chosen otherwise. In that case, the Town would likely expend the amount of 
the grant in staff time and incidental materials to provide these services. The services 
offered by InnVision are readily accessible to individuals in Colma as the Town is located 
within InnVision Shelter Network’s service area. Further, the public benefit is substantial 
as InnVision’s services ensure Colma residents, or anyone traveling through InnVision’s 
network, have shelter and other support services. 

(h) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to North Peninsula Food Pantry and Dining 
Center of Daly City (“Food Pantry”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for nutrition and sustenance (e.g., 
three days of staple groceries and a hot meal three nights each week) to needy persons 
as requested by the Food Pantry will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at 
large. The Food Pantry provides services that are readily accessible to Colma residents 
as groceries and hot meals would be available to anyone living or traveling through 
Colma. Overall, the benefit to the public is substantial as the services offered by the 
Food Pantry prevent the public from going hungry. 

(i) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center 
(“PCRC”) will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to support a staff position to work with 
PCRC’s trained volunteers, as requested by PCRC, will provide an identifiable benefit to 
the community at large. The services offered by PCRC are readily accessible to Colma 
residents and business owners. Further, the benefit to the public is substantial as the 
services offered by PCRC help avoid conflict issues that may exist between members of 
the Colma community. 

(j) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation will serve a public purpose.  

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for innovative programs and services 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 7 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



for the College District’s Foundation, as requested by the San Mateo Community College 
Foundation, will provide educational opportunities to engage citizens that are students 
at Skyline College.  The Town and the community at large will benefit from increased 
educational opportunities by ensuring a well-educated public and citizen base.  A better 
educated community will advance the Town economically, politically, and socially. The 
services offered by the San Mateo Community College Foundation are readily accessible 
to any Colma residents attending Skyline College. Further, the public benefit is 
substantial as college students are able to experience new and unique educational 
opportunities. 

(k) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the San Mateo County Jobs for Youth 
Program will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for job preparation workshops, 
counseling, job placement and internships, as requested by the San Mateo County Jobs 
for Youth Program, will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. 
Specifically, this program will help youths transition into adulthood and gain work 
experience, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive citizens. 
The services offered by San Mateo County Jobs for Youth are readily accessible to Colma 
youth as last year, two Colma residents participated in this program. 

(l) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sitike Counseling Center (“Sitike”) 
will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for counseling persons with 
substance abuse and mental health disorders, as requested by Sitike will provide an 
identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. Sitike offers a First Offender 
Drinking Driver program, an outpatient treatment program, a Women’s Intensive Day 
treatment program, and an Anger Management program. Sitike does not track the 
residency locations of its clients. Specifically these programs will help stop the spiral of 
dependency, which will make the clients better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens. The services offered by Sitike are readily available to Colma residents and the 
public benefit is substantial as Sitike helps stop the cycle of dependency and mental 
health issues. 

(m) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Sustainable San Mateo County will 
serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for the research and production of 
the Indicators for a Sustainable San Mateo County Report, as requested by Sustainable 
San Mateo County, will provide a much needed resource and educational tool regarding 
the economy, environment, and social issues facing the County.  This report will support 
the Town’s Sustainable Community Strategies and educate and engage citizens, the City 
Council, and the business community in implementing sustainability policies and 
objectives. The Sustainable San Mateo County Report provides a substantial public 
benefit by providing the public, private sector, and Colma elected officials, with pertinent 
information regarding sustainability and how it can be better met in the County. 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 8 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



(n) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the West Bay Alano Club will serve a 
public purpose.  

Discussion: The expenditure of public funds to pay for a supportive environment for 
persons with substance abuse and their families, as requested by West Bay Alano Club, 
will provide an identifiable benefit to the Colma community at large. This program helps 
clients battle substance dependency, which makes the clients better, more informed, 
and more productive citizens. The services offered by West Bay Alano Club are readily 
available to Colma residents and the public benefit provided is substantial as the 
services help stop the cycle of chemical dependency that can impact communities and 
public resources. 

(o) A grant in the amount shown in section 4(a) to the Wilderness School Program/Susan B. 
Anthony School Project will serve a public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for walking field trips, Bay Area field 
trips, nature lessons, and an overnight camping trip on the mountain, as requested by 
the applicant, will provide an identifiable benefit to the community at large. The public 
benefit provided by these services is substantial as the services provide education to the 
Town’s youth, which will make them better, more informed, and more productive 
citizens.  

(p) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding to each of the following organizations in the 
amounts shown: 

Grantee Proposed Grant Amount  
Clinic by the Bay $2,000  
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000  
Community Gatepath $5,000  
Daly City / Colma 4H Club $1,000  
Daly City Youth Health Center $5,000 
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing) * $5,000  
InnVision Shelter Network * $3,000  
Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School) $7,000  
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500  
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,312  
Sitike Counseling Center $8,000  

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 9 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



Skyline College President's Innovation Fund $600  
SMC Jobs for Youth $500  
Sustainable San Mateo County $4,000  
West Bay Alano Club $3,000  
 
 
Footnotes:  

 * Indicates a Housing Element required grantee; funding will come from Planning 
Department budget 

  

(b) Each Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

 
Certification of Adoption   

 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin        

Helen Fisicaro      

Joseph Silva      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
  
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 
 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 10 of 10 
25977.00100\17473515.1  
9/1/15  



Requesting Party Organization's Purpose Town's Money Will be Spent On
Number of Colma Residents or 

Businesses Served Public Benefit Funding Category
Amount

Requested
Annual Report

Submitted
Verified Non-

Profit
Clinic by the Bay Provide healthcare to low-

income, working, uninsured 
adults

Expanding primary care, continuing to 
offer Saturday hours, expanding 
chronic disease management 
program.

21 residents Healthcare Integrated Care Services  $    2,000 Yes Yes

Colma - DC Chamber of Commerce Provide members with 
business development, 
networking & resources

Networking events, directory & 
newsletter

Available for all businesses -  
Unclear how many Colma 
businesses are members

Chamber of Commerce Economic Development  $    45,000 Yes Yes

Community Gatepath Help people with special 
needs & disabilities gain 
independence.

Job coaching, Community Event on 
10/15/14.

18 residents Life & Vocational skills Integrated Care Services  $    5,000 Yes Yes

Daly City/Colma 4-H Club Empowers youth to reach 
their full potential by, 
participating in project based 
learning

Part of a project, which includes 
taking down some trees and doing 
some landscape work

Youth residents from ages 5-19 Education and leadership skills Education  $    1,000 N/A

Daly City Public Library Associates Supplement public funding of 
the 4 branch libraries in Daly 
City.

Digital media lab for the library 
system

All residents Access to programs & books at 
the library

Education  $    1,000 Yes Yes

Daly City Youth Health Center To provide safe, respectful, 
comprehensive health services 
to unserved youth, preparing 
them for a healthy adulthood

Increase screening for mental health 
and substance abuse in youth and 
provide counseling services.

102 youth residents/13 families Healthcare integrated Care Services  $    5,000 N/A Yes

Human Investment Project (HIP) Improving the housing & lives 
of people in our community

The Home Sharing Program 
interviews & provides direct 
assistance & resources

8 residents Safe, affordable housing Necessities of Life  $    5,000 Yes Yes

InnVision Shelter Network Shelter & supportive services 
for homeless families & single 
adults.

ISVN programs and services, bringing 
critical assistance to vulnerable 
members of San Mateo County

5 residents Housing Necessities of Life  $    3,000 Yes Yes

Jefferson Union High School District - 
Wilderness School

To provide field trip 
chaperones, tutors & positive 
role models for elementary 
school students. To teach 
leadership skills to Wilderness 
students. Develop community 
awareness.

Bus Transportation $3,500      
Entrance Fees $2,000      
Chicken & Garden Supplies $300  
Miscellaneous $1,200

Teens from the Wilderness School 
and all 3rd Grade Students at 
Susan B. Anthony School

Education, community & 
environmental awareness

Complementary Service  $    7,000 No Yes

North Peninsula Food Pantry &   
Dining Center of Daly City

Provide nutrition & sustenance 
to anyone in need

Providing groceries & hot meals Information not tracked - Serve 
North County

Feeding the hungry Necessities of Life  $    12,500 Yes Yes

Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center Facilitates groups & trains 
people in conflict resolution.

Information, Mediation, Conflict 
Resolution, Administration, 
Recruitment & Training Services.

2 residents Mediation Education  $    1,312 Yes Yes

Sitike Counseling Center Outpatient substance abuse 
services.

Grant used to offset operating costs, 
reducing the amount charged to 

8 residents Community counseling & 
education

Integrated Care Services  $    8,000 Yes Yes

San Mateo County Community College 
Foundation

Financial support to 
faculty/staff devising 
innovative programs & 

Resources, Conferences, Speaker 
Series, Outreach

Over 2,500 from Colma/Daly City Education Education  $    600 Yes Yes

SMC Jobs for Youth Provide youth with services in 
gaining job skills & 
employment.

Workshops, interviews with youth 
counselors, job placement, 
internships

8 Residents - 2 Businesses Employment services Education  $    500 Yes Yes

Sustainable San Mateo County Report on the economy, 
environment & social issues of 
our county.

Indicators Report All residents & businesses Provides information to city 
officials, residents & businesses

Education  $    4,000 Yes Yes

West Bay Alano Club Safe and sober environment 
for people in recovery from 
addictions.

Grant used for increase of cost of 
moving out of old facilty and keep a 
place for meetings

All residents Anonymous meetings for people 
in recovery from addictions

Complementary Service 3,000$    N/A Yes

Total Requests 103,912$      

Type: Total Percentage
Integrated Care: 20,000$  19%
Necessities of Life 20,500$  20%
Education 8,412$  8%
Complementary Service 10,000$  10%
Economic Development 45,000$  43%

Funding Categories

Attachm
ent B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Summary of Non-Profit Requests

Name of Organization

FY 2011-12 
Actual

FY 2012-13 
Actual

FY 2013-14 
Actual

FY 2014-15 
Actual

Alisa Ann Ruch Burn Foundation $1,500 $1,500 $1,500
Clinic by the Bay $1,000 $2,050
Colma - Daly City Chamber of Commerce $45,000 $45,000 $45,000 $45,000
Community Gatepath $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
Daly City / Colma 4H Club
Daly City Public Library Associates $500 $1,000
Daly City Youth Health Center
Human Investment Project (HIP Housing) * $5,000 $5,000 $5,000 $5,000
InnVision Shelter Network * $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000
Jefferson Union High School District (Wilderness School) $7,000 $7,000 $7,000 $7,000
North Peninsula Food Pantry & DCDC $12,500 $12,500 $12,500 $12,500
Peninsula Conflict Resolution Center $1,250 $1,250 $1,250 $1,250
Rebuilding Together Peninsula ** $0 $0 $5,000 $5,000
Sitike Counseling Center $6,000 $6,000 $6,000 $6,000
Skyline College President's Innovation Fund $500 $500 $500 $500
SMC Jobs for Youth $500 $500 $500 $500
Sustainable San Mateo County $3,000 $3,000 $3,000 $3,000
West Bay Alano Club

Total (including Housing Element required grantees) $90,250 $90,250 $96,750 $96,800

Attachment C



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment D













































































































































STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Grant Funding Request for Daly City Public Library Associates 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY FOR GRANT FUNDING, APPROVING A GRANT 
TO DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES, FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A 
PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND AUTHORIZING A CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
ASSOCIATES FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

The proposed resolution would find that the Daly City Public Library Associates has met all the 
criteria and is therefore eligible for grant funding from the Town of Colma, that the approved 
grant serves a public purpose and is not a gift of public funds, and that the grant should be 
approved and authorized as follows: 

Grantee Proposed Grant Amount 
Daly City Public Library Associates $1,000 

This separate action is required for Daly City Public Library Associates due to a conflict of 
interest for one Council Member. Other funding requests will be heard under a separate agenda 
item.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

The 2015-16 budget includes $96,800 for grant funding. 

BACKGROUND 

The Town has continued to refine the process for non-profit funding requests. The new 
process, as outlined in subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code, spells out several 
requirements for organizations to be funded by the Town.  

Grants may be made to three types of eligible organizations: 501(c)(3) charities, government 
entities, and the Chamber of Commerce. In addition, the organization must a basic rough 
proportionality requirement which means: the organization’s mission must include providing a 

Staff Report re: Grant Funding 2015  Page 1 of 4 
25977.00100\16958097.1
8/27/15  

ITEM #15



benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma (for example, a 
food pantry that serves residents of San Mateo County); the organization’s governing board 
must reflect the diverse interests of the community; and the organization must have policies 
and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for a 
general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

By Resolution 2014-55, the City Council modified the original criteria for approving grants by 
eliminating the rough proportionality requirement as one of the required criteria. In addition, 
the City Council replaced the 10 examples of programs or projects that would qualify for a 
grant, such as providing food, shelter, or clothing to needy persons, with five categories of 
programs that would qualify for a grant. Staff recommended this change because few 
organizations used or referred to the examples in their applications. At the same time, staff 
noticed that many nonprofits found it difficult to articulate a reason why their programs 
provided a public benefit or served a public purpose – yet those nonprofits are certainly 
deserving of receiving a grant from the Town for the work they do to benefit the greater Colma 
community.  

To help guide the nonprofits in identifying a public purpose in their requested program and 
assist the Council in making that determination, five categories of qualifying programs or 
projects were created. To qualify for a grant, the program or project to be funded must: 

(1) Provide shelter, food, or clothing to persons in need of the Necessities of Life;  

(2) Provide physical or mental health services to persons with special needs, or  
Integrated Care Services; 

(3) Educate and engage residents; 

(4) Promote Economic Development or support businesses located or doing business 
in the Town; or 

(5) Provide, support, or enhance a Complementary Service, e.g., a service that the 
Town could provide to its residents or businesses. 

The City Council approved funding levels for each category (as shown in the table below) at the 
July 22 City Council meeting. This action was taken with the understanding that the levels may 
be changed during the approval process, depending on grant requests. This is discussed further 
in the Analysis section of this staff report.  

 

 

 

Staff Report re: Grant Funding 2015   Page 2 of 4 
25977.00100\16958097.1  
8/27/15  



Category Funding Amount 
Provide for Necessities of Life 20% 
Provide for Integrated Care Services 15% 
Education 10% 
Promote Economic Development 40% 
Provide for a Complementary Service 15% 

 

The $96,800 in available funding is broken down into two discrete budget line items: $45,000 
allocated to the General Services budget specifically for economic development promotion 
through the Colma/Daly City Chamber of Commerce (line item Grants); and $51,800 allocated 
to the City Council budget under the line item of Donations.  

ANALYSIS 

The Council must make two determinations with respect to this application: first, that the 
applicant meets the criteria for an eligible organization set forth in section 4.03.030 of the 
Colma Administrative Code, and second, that each proposed use of funds will serve a public 
purpose, as set forth in section 4.03.020 of the Colma Administrative Code. There is substantial 
evidence in the application to support findings on each of these determinations. 

Findings of Organizational Eligibility 

Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is registered with the California 
Attorney General  as a public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter 
from the IRS stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to 
raise private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The 
Town Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials from any 
of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the support provided to 
the Daly City Library by Library Associates.  

Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the terms 
and conditions of all grants are satisfied. Further, it has not participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

Findings of Public Purpose 

The expenditure of public funds to assist in the creation of a Digital Media Lab for the library 
system, as requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates, could be provided by the Town 
but the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town could provide these same services 
through its Recreation Services program. In that case, the Town would likely expend the 
amount of the grant to provide these services.  

Values 

By providing public funds for charitable purposes, the Council is being compassionate to the 
needs of others. At the same time, by adhering to the Council’s policies and procedures, the 
Council is acting responsibility. 

Staff Report re: Grant Funding 2015   Page 3 of 4 
25977.00100\16958097.1  
8/27/15  



Sustainability Impact 

None. 

Alternatives 

The Council could fund the Daly City Public Library Associates at a level higher or lower than the 
requested amount. Doing so, however, could deplete the available grant funding (depending on 
how the Council funded the previous entities), leaving none available for any potential grant 
requests that come in during the course of the fiscal year. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the Council approve the attached resolution which sets grant funding levels 
at the requested amount for the Daly City Public Library Associates. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Resolution 
B. Funding request 

Staff Report re: Grant Funding 2015   Page 4 of 4 
25977.00100\16958097.1  
8/27/15  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION APPROVING GRANT TO DALY CITY PULIC LIBRARY 
ASSOCIATES, FINDING THAT THE GRANT SERVES A PUBLIC PURPOSE, AND 
AUTHORIZING CONTRACT WITH DALY CITY PUBLIC LIBRARY ASSOCIATES 

FOR THE USE OF TOWN FUNDS 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does hereby resolve as follows: 

1. Background

(a) Pursuant to subchapter 4.03 of the Colma Administrative Code and the police power
granted to cities by the California Constitution, the Town of Colma may expend public money by 
making grants upon finding that the organization is eligible for grant funding, the expenditure 
will serve a public purpose, and for an expenditure that provides benefits to the public and 
private persons at the same time, there is a direct and substantial benefit to the public with 
only an incidental benefit to private persons.  

(b) To be eligible, an organization must be an IRC 501(c)(3) charity, a governmental entity, 
or a chamber of commerce. In addition, the organization’s mission must include providing a 
benefit to a defined geographical area that encompasses the Town of Colma, the organization’s 
governing board must reflect the diverse interests of the community, and the organization must 
have policies and procedures to assure that the grant’s purposes are met. 

(c) Grants cannot be given to fund existing debts; to a religious organization unless it is for 
a general need and the project does not promote the teachings of a particular church; or to 
support a political campaign. Grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee.  

(d) An organization may submit a request for determination of eligibility for grant funding, 
which shall include documents and information described in section 4.03.050 of the Colma 
Administrative Code.  Each year after a determination of eligibility has been made, an 
organization need only update each item of new or changed information. 

(e) An organization may submit an application for a charitable donation for each program or 
project to be funded. 

2. Findings of Eligibility for Grant Funding

The City Council has reviewed the funding requests from Daly City Public Library Associates and 
finds as follows: 

(a) Daly City Public Library Associates (“Library Associates”) is eligible for grant funding 
from the Town of Colma. 

Discussion. Library Associates is registered with the California Attorney General as a 
public benefit nonprofit corporation and has provided Town with a letter from the IRS 
stating that it is exempt from tax under IRC section 501(c)(3). Its mission is to raise 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 1 of 3 
25977.17000\9206463.4  

Attachment A



private funds to supplement public funding of the four branch libraries in Daly City. The 
Town Colma is located within its service area. Colma residents may borrow materials 
from any of the Daly City branch libraries. Thus, Colma residents are benefited by the 
support provided to the Daly City Library by Library Associates.   

(b) Library Associates has adopted and follows policies and procedures to ensure that the 
terms and conditions of all grants are satisfied, and none has participated or intervened in any 
political campaign (including publishing or distributing campaign statements) on behalf of or in 
opposition to any candidate for public office within the past 36 months. 

3. Findings of Public Purpose 

The City Council has reviewed the application for grant funds from the Daly City Public Library 
Associates and finds as follows: 

(a) A grant in the amount of $1,000 to the Daly City Public Library Associates will serve a 
public purpose. 

Discussion. The expenditure of public funds to pay for leadership training for the Board 
of Directors, as requested by the Daly City Public Library Associates could be provided 
by the Town but for the fact that the Town has chosen otherwise. Specifically, the Town 
could provide these same services through its Human Resources staff. In that case, the 
Town would likely expend the amount of the grant to provide these services.  

(b) None of these grants will be used to fund existing obligations, debts or liabilities, 
national and regional charitable organizations, religious organizations, a political campaign, or 
lobbying activities. The grants will be made with the understanding that the Town has no 
obligation or commitment to provide any additional support to the grantee and that the grantee 
will not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, gender, age, weight, height, sexual 
orientation, marital status, national origin, disability or other characteristic protected by law. 

4. Order 

(a) The City Council approves grant funding of $1,000 to the Daly City Public Library 
Associates.  

(b) The Grantee must execute a Grant Agreement with the Town before any funds may be 
paid. The Grant Agreement shall include a statement of the goal or purpose of the Grant, a time 
within which the goal is expected to be achieved, and reporting requirements. 

Certification of Adoption   
 
I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, by the following vote: 
 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 2 of 3 
25977.17000\9206463.4  



Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Joseph Silva      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Voting Tally      

 
 
Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne F. del Rosario, Mayor 
 
  
      Attest:   ____________________________ 
       Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 
 

Res. 2015-##, Grant Funding 2015 Page 3 of 3 
25977.17000\9206463.4  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B











 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



STAFF REPORT 

TO:  Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Kirk Stratton, Chief of Police 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Live Scan Fingerprinting Fee Increase 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the following resolution: 

RESOLUTION AMENDING COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, SUBCHAPTER 1.10, MASTER 
FEE SCHEDULE, RELATING TO LIVE SCAN FINGERPRINTING  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The proposed resolution would amend the Town’s Master Fee Schedule to increase the fees 
associated with Live Scan fingerprinting services. It is recommended that the fee be increased 
to adequately recover the Town’s cost associated with providing the service. Currently, the 
Town is not recovering the full cost associated with providing the service. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The proposed resolution would increase the Live Scan fingerprinting fee from $25 to $30 to 
enable the Town to recover the costs involved with providing Live Scan fingerprinting services. 
It is anticipated that the new $30 fee will be less than or identical to the Town’s cost, but in no 
event will the fee exceed the Town’s reasonable cost in providing the service.  Increasing the 
fee will ensure that there is a very limited monetary impact to the Town’s budget associated 
with providing the Live Scan fingerprinting services. 

 BACKGROUND 

The Colma Police Department provides Live Scan fingerprinting services to residents, cardroom 
applicants and the general public twenty-four hours per day with no appointment necessary.  
There are various fees associated with fingerprinting, with the portion attributable to the Live 
Scan system at $25. The $25 fee was established by the City Council in 2006 and has not been 
changed since that time. The $25 fee is the second lowest in the County and other agencies do 
not provide twenty-four hour service. All other San Mateo County agencies are by appointment 
only. 

Staff Report re Live Scan Fingerprinting Fee Increase Page 1 
25977.00100\15938792.1
8/19/15  

ITEM #16



ANALYSIS 

Basis for the Increase 

Currently, individuals requesting Live Scan fingerprinting pay $25 to the Town. Additional fees 
may also be charged depending on whether an individual is seeking a background check via the 
U.S. Department of Justice or through the Federal Bureau of Investigation. There is a current 
need to increase the $25 fee to $30 as the Town’s cost associated with providing Live Scan 
fingerprinting is currently exceeding the $25 fee. In particular, the cost associated with police 
officer time to conduct the fingerprinting, and a recent surcharge imposed by the California 
Identification System, or Cal ID, the state entity that handles fingerprint data, has caused the 
Town’s cost to increase. Increasing the fee to $30 will allow the Town to more fully recover its 
costs associated with providing Live Scan fingerprinting services. 

Live Scan fingerprinting is conducted by Colma Police officers. Police staff, on average, spend 
approximately twenty (20) minutes per Live Scan applicant. Staff determined that the Town’s 
cost with having a police officer spend 20 minutes to conduct the Live Scan fingerprinting 
services is on average $30. This amount was determined by taking the average annual salary, 
plus benefits, of a police officer, dividing that number by the total average annual hours worked 
(which is 2184 hours) to determine the hourly rate of $91.14. The hourly rate was then divided 
by 60, the number of minutes in an hour, and that number was then multiplied by 20, the 
number of minutes it takes for an officer to conduct Live Scan fingerprinting services.  

In addition to the Town’s cost with having police officers conduct the Live Scan fingerprinting 
service, Cal ID has imposed a $5 surcharge for each set of applicant fingerprints processed 
through live scan machines during the fiscal year 2014/2015. This surcharge was deemed 
necessary to offset the deficit facing the Cal ID program. San Mateo County cities and the 
County are required to pay this surcharge on all applicant prints.  

Taking the average cost to the Town of having a police officer conduct the Live Scan 
fingerprinting services at $30, plus the $5 Cal ID surcharge, the average total cost to the Town 
in providing Live Scan fingerprinting is $35. However, because the $30 cost to the Town of 
having a police officer conduct the Live Scan fingerprinting services is an average, and to 
ensure the fee does not exceed the Town’s cost in providing the service, the fee increase has 
been set at a conservative $30. This will help ensure the Town is in full compliance with state 
law and is not making a profit on providing the Live Scan fingerprinting service. 

Neighboring Jurisdictions 

Staff researched San Mateo County agencies providing Live Scan services and found that the 
following fees are charged by each agency: 

• Belmont PD - $40 

• Burlingame - $35 

• Daly City PD - $30 

• Foster City PD - $33.50 

Staff Report re Live Scan Fingerprinting Fee Increase Page 2 
25977.00100\15938792.1  
8/19/15  



• Pacifica PD - $30 

• Redwood City PD - $15 

• San Bruno PD - $30 

• South San Francisco PD - $40 

• San Mateo County Sheriff - $39 

Reasons for the Recommended Action 

The proposed fee increase would ensure the Town is recovering its cost associated with 
providing Live Scan fingerprinting services. Currently, the Town is not recovering the full cost 
associated with providing the service.  

In addition, the Town’s lower Live Scan fee, as compared to neighboring jurisdictions, has 
increased demand for Live Scan services at the Colma Police Department. Department staff 
conducted 1,157 Live Scans in fiscal year 14/15 which was an increase from the previous year.  
Providing this service has caused police officers to remain at the police station for longer 
periods of time to complete Live Scans, thus delaying officers from proactive police patrols in 
our residential and business communities. Increasing the fee to be more in line with 
neighboring jurisdictions will hopefully reduce the number of Live Scans the Town conducts and 
aid in ensuring the Town’s police officers spend time patrolling the Town. 

Council Adopted Values 
 
The proposed resolution to increase Live Scan fees is the responsible thing to do as it ensures 
the Town is able to recover the cost associated with providing the service and it will help ensure 
the Town is financially stable.  
 
Alternatives 

The City Council could decide not to adopt the resolution increasing the Live Scan fingerprinting 
fee.  Doing so is not recommended as it would mean the Town would continue to subsidize the 
cost associated with Live Scan fingerprinting and would not recover the full cost associated with 
providing the service. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the resolution increasing Live Scan applicant fees 
from $25 to $30.  

ATTACHMENTS 
 

A. Resolution  

Staff Report re Live Scan Fingerprinting Fee Increase Page 3 
25977.00100\15938792.1  
8/19/15  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



RESOLUTION NO. 2015-## 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

RESOLUTION AMENDING COLMA ADMINISTRATIVE CODE, 
SUBCHAPTER 1.10, MASTER FEE SCHEDULE,  
RELATING TO LIVE SCAN FINGERPRINTING 

The City Council of the Town of Colma hereby resolves: 

ARTICLE 1.   SUBCHAPTER 1.10 AMENDED 

Subchapter 1.10 of Chapter One of the Colma Administrative Code is hereby amended as 
follows: 

1.10.600 POLICE SERVICES. The following fees will be charged for rendering police 
services, as authorized by law. These fees are non-refundable. These fees are in 
addition to any other fees set forth in this schedule. The fees set forth herein do 
not exceed the estimated reasonable cost of providing the service. 

1.10.617 Fingerprinting, Livescan prints $     2530.00 

ARTICLE 2.   SEVERABILITY 

Each of the provisions of this resolution is severable from all other provisions. If any article, 
section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this resolution is for any reason 
held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this resolution. 

ARTICLE 3.   NOT A CEQA PROJECT 

The City Council finds that adoption of this resolution is not a "project," as defined in the 
California Environmental Quality Act because it does not have a potential for resulting in either 
a direct physical change in the environment or a reasonably foreseeable indirect physical 
change in the environment and concerns general policy and procedure making. 

ARTICLE 4.   EFFECTIVE DATE 

This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 

/// 

/// 

/// 

/// 

Res 2015-## Master Fee Schedule re Live Scan Fingerprinting Page 1 of 2 
25977.00100\15947181.1  

Attachment A



* * * * * 

Certification of Adoption 

I certify that the foregoing Resolution No. 2015-## was duly adopted at a regular meeting of 
the City Council of the Town of Colma held on September 9, 2015, by the following vote: 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Joanne del Rosario, Mayor      

Diana Colvin       

Helen Fisicaro      

Raquel Gonzalez      

Joseph Silva      

Voting Tally      
 

 

Dated ______________________  ___________________________________ 
      Joanne del Rosario, Mayor 

 

      Attest:   ____________________________ 
         Caitlin Corley, Interim City Clerk 

 

Res 2015-## Master Fee Schedule re Live Scan Fingerprinting Page 2 of 2 
25977.00100\15947181.1  



STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael P. Laughlin, AICP, City Planner 

VIA:  Sean Rabé, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: September 9, 2015 

SUBJECT: Local Hazard Mitigation Plan (LHMP) 

RECOMMENDATION 

None.  This in an informational item to update the City Council on staff’s work on the LHMP. No 
Council action is required; however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions 
from each Council member regarding issues and concerns. The Council’s comments regarding 
the LHMP will help staff in completing the LHMP update. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

A LHMP update allows Colma to consider community risks and identify the most important steps 
the Town and its partners should pursue to reduce these risks. The update also allows for 
renewed dialog about the hazards that face Colma and how the Town can prepare for them. 

Colma is faced with a number of potential hazards, including earthquakes, landslides, wildfires 
(primarily on San Bruno Mountain), storm damage and secondary impacts from sea level rise. 
At the study session, staff will provide information about each of these hazards, their potential 
impacts and suggestions for preparing for these hazards and managing their affects.  
Comments and suggestions made during the study session will be considered, and where 
appropriate, be incorporated into the document.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Preparation of the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan is part of staff’s budget for the 2015-2016 fiscal 
year.  Depending on the recommendations of the plan ultimately approved by the City Council, 
there will be future budgeted costs for disaster preparedness. Adoption and approval by FEMA 
and the State Office of Emergency Services will reduce Town costs in the event of a local 
emergency.  

ANALYSIS 

In 2012, the City Council adopted the 2010 Annex to the ABAG LHMP (See attached Exhibit A). 
This document was an update to the 2005 Annex. The Annex is required to be updated every 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Study Session (LHMP) Page 1 of 3 

ITEM #17



five years, and staff is in the process of preparing the 2015 update.  The benefits of adopting 
the LHMP include: 
 

• A more disaster-resistant and resilient community and region;  
 

• Eligibilty for hazard mitigation assistance programs, including Hazard Mitigation 
Grant Program, Pre-Disaster Mitigation, Flood Mitigation Assistance and Severe 
Repetitive Loss grant programs;  

 
• Eligibility for points under the National Flood Insurance Program’s Community Rating 

System (CRS);  
 

• Eligibility for waiver of the 6.25% local match for Public Assistance money after a 
disaster. Cities, Towns, and Special Districts are required to provide a 6.25% match 
for disaster reimbursement but this is waived for any city/town that has a LHMP.  

 
Not included as an attachment due to its length, the 2010 Annex includes spreadsheets that 
identify actions that the Town can take to reduce the affects of a disaster. A summary of the 
key actions include: 
 

• Vulnerability assessments of City facilities and infrastructure; 
• Comply with all applicable building and fire codes when constructing infrastructure 

facilities; 
• Clarify the performance level of facilities after an earthquake; 
• Maintain fire roads and public right-of-way; 
• Continue to repair and make structural improvements to storm drains, pipelines, and/or 

channels to enable them to perform to their design capacity in handling water flows as 
part of regular maintenance activities; 

• Sponsor the formation and training of Community Emergency Response Teams (CERT) 
through partnerships with local businesses; 

• Use disaster anniversaries to remind the public of mitigation activities;  
• Conduct periodic fire safety inspections of commercial and industrial buildings; 
• Establish framework for post event recovery that specifies roles; and 
• Participation in general mutual-aid agreements and agreements with adjoining 

jurisdictions for cooperative response to fires, floods, earthquakes, and other disasters. 
 

DISCUSSION 

Staff will present information and also seek input on the following questions at the meeting: 

• What disasters propose the greatest threat to Colma?  (staff’s initial response – 
earthquakes, storms, flooding, secondary impacts of sea level rise/climate change, plane 
disaster, PG&E gas pipe rupture, SFPUC water line rupture). Others? 

• How should these hazards be ranked in terms of preparation/resource priority? Given 
limited resources and uncertainty about the type of disaster which may face Colma, it is 
appropriate to rank potential disasters with either high, medium or low priority.   

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Study Session (LHMP) Page 2 of 3 



• What “assets” does the community have that needs to be protected or be made 
operational as quickly as possible after a natural disaster?  

• How can the town work with the business community to assure their viability after a 
disaster? 

• What types of community outreach would be effective to encourage preparedness? 

VALUES 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it allows for 
the Town to better prepare for and recover from a local emergency. 

SUSTAINABILITY IMPACT 

Consideration and eventual adoption of an updated Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, and 
implementation of the plan, will allow the Town to be more resilient to natural disasters.  This 
resilience is consistent with the Town’s goal to increase local sustainability.  

ALTERNATIVES 

None. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends the City Council discuss the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan after staff’s 
presentation.  

EXHIBITS 

A. Colma 2010 LHMP Annex 

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Study Session (LHMP) Page 3 of 3 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Annex to 2010 Association of Bay 
Area Governments  

Local Hazard Mitigation Plan  
Taming Natural Disasters 

Town of Colma   

Attachment A



Town of Colma 
 

Table of Contents 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 2 

The Regional Planning Process ................................................................................................ 2 

The Local Planning Process ...................................................................................................... 2 

Public Meetings ...................................................................... Error! Bookmark not defined. 

Hazards Assessment ................................................................................................................... 3 

Past Occurrences Of Disasters (natural and human-induced) ......................................... 4 

Risk Assessment .......................................................................................................................... 5 

Urban Land Exposure ............................................................................................................ 5 

Infrastructure Exposure ....................................................................................................... 5 

Exposure of County (City, District)-Owned Buildings, Plus Critical Healthcare 

Facilities and Schools ............................................................................................................ 6 

Repetitive Loss Properties .................................................................................................. 8 

Other risks ................................................................................................................................ 8 

National Flood Insurance Program ......................................................................................... 8 

Mitigation Goals and Objectives .............................................................................................. 8 

Mitigation Activities and Priorities ......................................................................................... 9 

Evaluation of Progress from 2005 Plan ........................................................................... 9 

Future Mitigation Actions and Priorities ....................................................................... 10 

On-Going Mitigation Strategy Programs ........................................................................ 11 

Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms ............................................................ 11 

Plan Update Process ................................................................................................................. 12 

Mitigation Plan Point of Contact ........................................................................................... 12 

Exhibit A – Jurisdiction Boundary Map ................................................................................ 13 

Exhibit B - Public Meeting Announcements ....................................................................... 14 

Exhibit C – Town of Colma Mitigation Strategies............................................................... 15 

 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

1



Town of Colma 
 
Introduction 
 
The Town of Colma is a small town located in the northern portion of San Mateo 
County. The Town population is approximately 1,637 with about 433 housing units. The 
Town of Colma serves a regional need for cemeteries along the San Francisco 
peninsula. Colma is 1.98 square miles in size, with 16 active cemeteries and 2 closed 
cemeteries that occupy 76 percent of the land area. Much of the remaining land in 
Colma not in cemetery use is commercial, and a small amount of land is residential. 
 
The Town employs approximately 51 people and provides local police services. Fire 
services are supplied by a Joint Powers Authority, the Colma Fire Protection District. 
The major government facilities include Town Hall, Town Hall annex (Public Works, 
Building and Planning Departments), Sterling Park Recreation Center, and the Historical 
Park and Community Center. The 2011-12 adopted budget is $13.6 million. A map of 
the Town’s jurisdictional boundary is provided in Exhibit A.  
 
The Regional Planning Process 
 
The Town of Colma participated in the ABAG workshops that were part of the 
development of the Regional Plan in 2005. The resolution adopting the plan was 
brought to the Colma City Council, at which time the public had an opportunity to 
comment. The City Council adopted the Plan on November 9, 2005 as an appendix to 
the Safety Element.  
 
Other workshops, conferences and meeting attended by Colma staff include: 

• City & County Local Hazard Mitigation Plan Meeting on May 12, 2009 
• Housing & Outreach Committee meeting on May 27, 2009 

 
 

The Local Planning Process 
 
The Town of Colma coordinated efforts from multiple City departments to identify and 
prepare appropriate mitigation strategies for the Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. Personnel 
involved in these meetings included the City Planner, Building Official, Police Chief, City 
Manager, Public Works Director, as well as consultation with the Colma Fire Protection 
District. These participants were chosen based on their knowledge of the Town and 
Town infrastructure.  
 
Initial start up began with review of the 2005 LHMP. All participants were subsequently 
provided with the 2010 draft mitigation strategies for review of the general priorities. 
Each Department representative prioritized the strategies and reviewed preliminary 
budgets and potential funding sources for strategies designated as “High” priority for 
Town owned and operated facilities. Updates were made to the 2005 Plan based on 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

2



Town of Colma 
 
new data regarding recent occurrences of natural hazards as well as updated 
information on risk assumed with new data provided by ABAG. 
 
After review and completion the mitigation strategies, all worksheets were collected and 
assembled for review and discussion of conflicting priorities. Town staff clarified 
questions and comments on various mitigation strategies and priorities and consulted 
with lead Departments when necessary to complete and assemble the mitigation 
strategies. 
 
Resources that were used to assist Town staff with these tasks included: 

• Colma General Plan, Safety Element 
• Capital Improvement Plan (2008-2013) 
• Emergency Response Plan 

 
There were opportunities for public comments on the draft mitigation strategies when it 
was published on April 20, 2012 on the Town of Colma's website for public viewing.  No 
public comments were received from the internet posting. Copies of the internet posting 
are included as Exhibit B to the Town of Colma's 2010 Annex. 
  
The Town of Colma held a public hearing on May 9, 2012.  No public comments were 
made by the public or City Council at that time. The City Council will adopt the plan at 
this public meeting via an official Resolution upon approval by FEMA. The mitigation 
strategies will become an implementation appendix of the Safety Element of the Town 
of Colma's General Plan. 
 
Hazards Assessment 
 
The ABAG Multi-Jurisdictional Local Hazard Mitigation Plan, to which this is an annex, 
lists nine hazards that impact the Bay Area, five related to earthquakes (faulting, 
shaking, earthquake-induced landslides, liquefaction, and tsunamis) and four related to 
weather (flooding, landslides, wildfires, and drought). Maps of these hazards and risks 
are shown on the ABAG website at http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/.   
 
The Town of Colma has reviewed the identified hazards and ranked the hazards based 
on past disasters and expected future impacts. Some of these hazards affect the Town 
of Colma. The conclusion is that earthquakes (particularly shaking) pose the most 
significant risk for potential loss, followed by wildfires and landslides (primarily related 
to the Town’s proximity to San Bruno Mountain) which also pose a significant risk for 
potential loss. However, because there are no active faults within the Town boundaries, 
the Town is not at risk of surface faulting. Given that the Town of Colma is not located 
on the coastline or within a 100-year flood plain there is no risk of flooding or dam 
inundation. 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

3

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/


Town of Colma 
 
The Town of Colma does not face any natural disasters not listed in the ABAG multi-
jurisdictional plan and no new hazards have been identified by Colma since the original 
development of this plan in 2005.   
 
While the Town of Colma has undertaken a number of general hazard mapping 
activities since the first Safety Element was prepared by the Town of Colma, all of these 
maps are less detailed and are not as current as those shown on the ABAG website at 
http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/.   

 
 

Past Occurrences Of Disasters (natural and human-induced) 
 
The Town of Colma has experienced a number of different disasters over the last 50 
years. These disasters include earthquakes, droughts, wildfires, energy shortages, 
landslides, and severe storms.   
 
The Loma Prieta Earthquake of 1989 is another example of the kind of large scale 
disaster which can strike the Bay Area. It killed 63 persons, injured 3,757, and displaced 
over 12,000 persons. With over 20,000 homes and businesses damaged and over 1,100 
destroyed, this quake caused approximately $6 Billion of damage. Reconstruction 
continues some two decades later as the replacement for Oakland-Bay Bridge is still 
several years from completion.  
 
More information on State and Federally declared disasters in  the Town of Colma can 
be found at http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/ThePlan-D-Version-December09.pdf. 
 
In addition, there have been significant incidents in San Mateo County that have 
impacted the Town of Colma in the last several years include: 
 

• October 17, 1989:   Loma Prieta Earthquake 
• September 11, 2001:  Terrorist attack at the World Trade Center  

     resulting in the closure of San Francisco Airport 
• Various severe storm events: Most recently 

     -  February 27, 2006 
     -  January 4, 2008 

• September 9, 2010:   San Bruno Gas Line Explosion and Fire 
 
Although some of the above incidents did not directly affect the Town of Colma, indirect 
impacts resulted due to electrical service disruption, impacted traffic flow, road 
closures, minor landslides, some local flooding, and allocation of Colma staff to other 
jurisdictions due to local emergency response.  
 
 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

4

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/
http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/ThePlan-D-Version-December09.pdf


Town of Colma 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex  

5
 

Risk Assessment 
 
Urban Land Exposure 
The Town of Colma examined the hazard exposure of Colma's urban land based on 
information in ABAG’s website at: 
http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickdbh2.html.  The “2005 Existing Land 
Use with 2009 Mapping” file was used for this evaluation (in the existing plan, the file 
used was “Existing Land Use in 2000”).  
 
In general, the hazard exposure of the Town of Colma is not anticipated to increase  
over time as the Town is generally built out. The amount of urban land increased only 
slightly (In the last 5 years, 3 additional acres of land have become urban). There are 
only two acres of urban land within the Town of Colma that are located within the 500 
year flood. The following table describes the exposure of urban land within the Town of 
Colma to the various hazards. 
  

Exposure (acres of urban land) 
Hazard Plan 

Year 
2005 

Plan 
Year 
2010 

Change

Total Acres of Urban Land 1,168 1,174 3 
Earthquake Faulting (within CGS zone) 0 0 0 
Earthquake Shaking (within highest two 
shaking categories) 

1,152 1,154 2 

Earthquake-Induced Landslides (within CGS 
study zone) 

0 0 0 

Liquefaction (within moderate, high, or very 
high liquefaction susceptibility 

80 83 13 

Flooding (within 100 year floodplain) 0 0 0 
Flooding (within 500 year floodplain) 2 2 0 
Landslides (within areas of existing 
landslides) 

29 31 2 

Wildfire (subject to high, very high, or 
extreme wildfire threat) 

63 34 (29) 

Wildland-Urban Interface Fire Threat 969 980 11 
Dam Inundation (within inundation zone) 0 0 0 
Sea Level Rise not applicable 
Tsunamis (within inundation area) not applicable 
Drought 1,168 1,174 3 

 
 

Infrastructure Exposure 
The Town of Colma also examined the hazard exposure of infrastructure within the 
jurisdiction based on the information on ABAG’s website at 

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickdbh2.html


Town of Colma 
 
http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickdbh2.html. Of the 20 miles of 
roadway in the Town of Colma, the following are exposed to the various hazards 
analyzed (Note: The 2005 Plan Year incorrectly noted 38 miles of infrastructure instead 
of 20). 
 
 

Exposure (miles of infrastructure) 

Hazard 

Roadway Transit Rail 
Plan 
Year 
2005

Plan 
Year
2010

Plan 
Year 
2005

Plan 
Year
2010

Plan 
Year 
2005 

Plan 
Year
2010

Total Miles of Infrastructure 38 20 1 2 0 2 
Earthquake Shaking (within highest 
two shaking categories) 

38 20 1 2 0 2 

Liquefaction Susceptibility (within 
moderate, high, or very high 
liquefaction susceptibility 

2 3 1 1 0 1 

Liquefaction Hazard (within CGS 
study zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 
 

Earthquake-Induced Landslides 
(within CGS study zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Earthquake Faulting (within CGS 
zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Flooding (within 100 year 
floodplain) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Flooding (within 500 year 
floodplain) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Landslides (within areas of existing 
landslides) 

1 2 0 0 0 0 

Wildfires (subject to high, very 
high, or extreme wildfire threat) 

1 0 0 0 0 0 

Wildland-Urban Interface Fire 
Threat 

32 17 1 1 0 1 

Dam Inundation (within inundation 
zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Sea Level Rise not applicable 
Tsunamis  not applicable 
Drought not applicable 

Exposure of Town-Owned Buildings, Plus Critical Healthcare Facilities and 
Schools  
Finally, the Town of Colma examined the hazard exposure of critical health care 
facilities and schools located within the Town of Colma, and Town-owned buildings 
based on the information on ABAG’s website at: 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

6

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickdbh2.html


Town of Colma 
 
http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickcrit2010.html. The Town of Colma 
provided a list of the critical facilities it owns to ABAG. ABAG provided a detailed 
assessment of the hazard exposure of each of its facilities. The number of facilities 
exposed to the various hazards are analyzed below. 
 

.Exposure (number of facility types) 

Hazard 

Hospitals Schools 

Locally 
owned 
critical 

facilities 

Locally 
owned 

bridges and 
interchanges 

Plan 
Year 
2005 

Plan 
Year
2010

Plan 
Year 
2005

Plan 
Year
2010

Plan 
Year 
2005

Plan 
Year 
2010 

Plan 
Year 
2005 

Plan 
Year 
2010 

Total Number of 
Facilities 

0  0 0 1 5 5 0 0 

Earthquake Shaking 
(within highest two 
shaking categories) 

0 0 0 1 1 5 0 0 

Liquefaction 
Susceptibility (within 
moderate, high, or 
very high liquefaction 
susceptibility 

0 0 0 1 1 5 0 0 

Liquefaction Hazard 
(within CGS study 
zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Earthquake-Induced 
Landslides (within CGS 
study zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Earthquake Faulting 
(within CGS zone) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Flooding (within 100 
year floodplain) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Flooding (within 500 
year floodplain) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Landslides (within 
areas of existing 
landslides) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Wildfires (subject to 
high, very high, or 
extreme wildfire 
threat) 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Wildland-Urban 
Interface Fire Threat 

0 0 0 1 0 4 0 0 

Dam Inundation 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
Sea Level Rise 
(exposed to 16in sea 
level rise) 

- 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 

Sea Level Rise - 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

7

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickcrit2010.html


Town of Colma 
 

(exposed to 55in sea 
level rise) 
Tsunamis (within 
inundation area) 

- 0 - 0 - 0 - 0 

Drought - - - - - - - - 
 
 
Repetitive Loss Properties 
There are no repetitive loss properties in the Town of Colma based on the information 
at http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickflood.html. All properties within the 
Town boundaries are outside of the 100-year flood plain.  
 
Other risks 
The Town of Colma has not identified any additional risks or vulnerabilities that differ 
from the rest of the nine-county planning areas at this time.  
 
The Town of Colma plans to work with ABAG to develop specific information about the 
kind and level of damage to buildings, infrastructure, and critical facilities which might 
result from any of the hazards previously noted. 
 
National Flood Insurance Program  
 
Flooding is not considered a significant natural hazard in the Town of Colma. The Town 
is designated as a Non-Special Flood Hazard Area (NSFHA) by the Federal Insurance 
Administration's (FIA) Flood Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM). There are only 2 acres of 
urban land located within the 500-year flood plain and no property located within the 
100-year flood plain. The Town of Colma does not participate in the National Flood 
Insurance Program or the Community Rating System.  
 
Mitigation Goals and Objectives 
 
The goal of the ABAG Multi-Jurisdictional LHMP is to maintain and enhance a disaster-
resistant region by reducing the potential for loss of life, property damage, and 
environmental degradation from natural disasters, while accelerating economic recovery 
from those disasters. This goal is unchanged from the 2005 plan and continues to be 
the goal of the Town of Colma in designing its mitigation program. 
 
In addition, the Town of Colma has the specific objective of reducing the number of 
public and private buildings within the Town that are vulnerable to the effects of 
earthquakes. In so doing, it is hoped that injuries or loss of life can be reduced in the 
event of an emergency. 
   
 
 
 
 
2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

8

http://quake.abag.ca.gov/mitigation/pickflood.html


Town of Colma 
 
Mitigation Activities and Priorities 
 
Evaluation of Progress from 2005 Plan 
In 2005, mitigation actions and priorities were identified.  The attached list indicates 
each of the strategies identified, along with responsible party, action taken, and current 
status of progress. 
 

• Infra a-5: The Town of Colma Public Works Department is continually working 
with agencies as they upgrade critical infrastructure.  Two current examples are 
working with the SFPUC on the seismic upgrade of one of their water lines as it 
extends through Colma, and working with PG and E on a new gas main on 
Lawndale Boulevard to replace an older line.  

 
• Infra a-8: The Town tests and maintains generators at Town Hall and at the 

Police Station.  In addition, two larger local businesses have generators for use 
in the event of an emergency.  

 
• Infra a-12: The Town provided brand new utility underground infrastructure to 

the Sterling Park residential neighborhood where a majority of our citizens live.  
The Town is continually looking for ways to underground utilities.  

 
• Infra c-1: The Town, through review of development applications and 

inspections, reviews water duration and flow.  The expanded Target store 
recently installed upgraded fire suppression systems. 

 
• Infra g-1,2,3,4,5: The Town provides emergency preparedness informational 

materials at Town Hall and at the Community Center. In addition, emergency 
preparedness information is periodically in the Town newsletter, Livewire.  

 
• Hsg a-1: The Planning Department provides information to real estate agents 

and property owners regarding questions related to flood, fire, earthquake or 
landslide areas.  

 
• Hsg a-3: The Town updated its MOU with the Red Cross in 2004 to include Town 

Hall, Sterling Park Community Center and Hillside Community Center (the latter 
two being recently constructed buildings that should be safe during an 
emergency), and supplies are stored at the Community Center to assist residents 
in an emergency.  

 
• Hsg h-4: The Town is prepared to provide sandbags and plastic sheeting to 

residents. The Town corporation yard is located in the primary residential 
neighborhood.  

 
• Econ f-4: The Town is prepared to provide sandbags and plastic sheeting to 

businesses.  
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

9



Town of Colma 
 

• Gov b-1: The Town conducts EOC exercises as a means of pre-event planning.  
The last EOC drill was for Pandemic Flu. 

 
• Envi a-6: The Town of Colma Public Works Department works closely with the 

San Francisco Bay Area Regional Water quality Control board to ensure erosion 
and storm water control measures are in place prior to and during wet weather 
construction activities.  

 
Future Mitigation Actions and Priorities 
 
As a participant in the 2010 ABAG multi-jurisdictional planning process, Colma staff 
helped in the development and review of the comprehensive list of mitigation strategies 
in the overall multi-jurisdictional plan. The decision on priority was made based on a 
variety of criteria, not simply on an economic cost-benefit analysis. These criteria 
include being technically and administratively feasible, politically acceptable, socially 
appropriate, legal, economically sound, and not harmful to the environment or our 
heritage.  Representatives from multiple departments then met on a regular basis to 
review progress on Colma's 2005 strategies, to identify and prioritize additional 
mitigation strategies to update the list. 
 
These draft priorities were submitted to the City Manager’s office for review. The draft 
priorities will be provided to the City Council for adoption pending approval of this LHMP 
by FEMA. 
  
The City Planning team also identified one specific mitigation task for the next five years 
deemed to be a high priority of the City.   
 
The proposed project includes: 
 
Sewer system review and upgrade plan -  

Description: Project would review existing sewer system within Colma that 
connects to the South San Francisco treatment plant. Review will lead to 
recommendations for repair and rehabilitation. 

• Responsible Party: Town of Colma Public Works Department 
• Mitigation Benefit: Reduce potential damage to and from the sewer 

system in the event of a natural disaster. 
• Funding Source: Town of Colma Public Works General Fund.  Possible 

other sources may be used if available. 
• Time Frame: Report and design 2012-2013, installation would require 

additional funding. 
• Mitigation Strategy Number: Infr – a-4. 
• Hazards addressed: EQ,LS,WF,FL,DR,SEC 

 
 

 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

10



Town of Colma 
 
On-Going Mitigation Strategy Programs  
 
The Town of Colma has many on-going mitigation programs that help create a more 
disaster-resistant region. The following list highlights those programs identified as 
Existing Programs in the mitigation strategy spreadsheet. Others are on-going programs 
that are currently underfunded. It is the Town’s priority to find additional funding to 
sustain these on-going programs over time.  

• Vulnerability assessments of City facilities and infrastructure (Infr a-4); 
• Comply with all applicable building and fire codes when constructing 

infrastructure facilities (Infr b-8); 
• Clarify the performance level of facilities after an earthquake (Infr b-9); 
• Maintain fire roads and public right-of-way (Infr d-1); 
• Watershed analysis (Infr d-2) 
• Continue to repair and make structural improvements to storm drains, 

pipelines, and/or channels to enable them to perform to their design 
capacity in handling water flows as part of regular maintenance activities 
(Infr. d-6). 

• Sponsor the formation and training of Community Emergency Response 
Teams (CERT) through partnerships with local businesses (Infr g-6); 

• Ensure that new private development pays for storm drain improvements 
or does not increase run-off (Infr h-3) 

• Use disaster anniversaries to remind the public of mitigation activities 
(Hsg k-5);  

• Conduct periodic fire safety inspections of commercial and industrial 
buildings (Econ e-10); 

• Establish framework for post event recovery that specifies roles (Gov b-1); 
• Development of interoperable communications for first responders from 

cities, counties, special districts, state, and federal agencies. (Gov c-7); 
• Participation in general mutual-aid agreements and agreements with 

adjoining jurisdictions for cooperative response to fires, floods, 
earthquakes, and other disasters (Gov c-13); 

• Inform residents of comprehensive mitigation activities (Gov d-1); 
• Continue to comply with State-mandated requirements, such as CEQA 

(Env a-1); 
• Comply with NPDES (Env a-6); and 
• Require preparation of site specific geologic reports (Land a-2) 

 
 
Incorporation into Existing Planning Mechanisms 
 
The Town has other planning mechanisms which include: 

♦ General Plan Safety Element  
♦ Capital Improvement Plan  

 
The Town of Colma has a Safety Element in its General Plan that includes a discussion 
of fire, earthquake, flooding, and landslide hazards. This plan was adopted as an 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

11



Town of Colma 
 
implementation appendix to the Safety Element. In addition, the Town enforces the 
requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), which, since 1988, 
requires mitigation for identified natural hazards. The Town of Colma has used these 
pre-existing programs as a basis for identifying gaps that may lead to disaster 
vulnerabilities in order to work on ways to address these risks through mitigation. 
 
Plan Update Process 
 
As required Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000, the Town of Colma will update this plan 
annex at least once every five years, by participating in a multi-agency effort with ABAG 
and other agencies to develop a multi-jurisdictional plan.   
 
The Town of Colma will ensure that monitoring of this Annex will occur on an on-going 
basis. However, the major disasters affecting our Town, legal changes, notices from 
ABAG as the lead agency in this process, and other triggers will be used. Finally, the 
Annex will be a discussion item on the agenda of Department Head meeting at least 
once a year in April. At that meeting, the department heads will focus on evaluating the 
Annex in light of technological and political changes during the past year or other 
significant events. The Department leaders will be responsible for determining if the 
plan should be updated. 
 
The Colma Planning Department will contact ABAG four years after this plan is approved 
to ensure that ABAG plans to undertake the plan update process. If so, the Town will 
participate in the multi-jurisdictional plan. If ABAG is unwilling or unable to act as the 
lead agency in the multi-jurisdictional effort, other agencies will be contacted, including 
the County’s Office of Emergency Services. Cities should then work together to identify 
another regional forum for developing a multi-jurisdictional plan.   
 
The public will continue to be involved whenever the plan is updated and as appropriate 
during the monitoring and evaluation process. Prior to adoption of updates, the Town of 
Colma will provide the opportunity for the public to comment on the updates.  A public 
notice will be posted prior to the meeting to announce the comment period and 
meeting logistics. 
 
Mitigation Plan Point of Contact 
Name: Michael P. Laughlin, AICP 
Title: Acting City Planner  
Mailing Address: 1190 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 
Telephone: (650) 757-8888 
Email: Michael.Laughlin@colma.ca.gov 
 
Alternate Point of Contact 
Name: Brad Donohue  
Title: Acting Public Works Director 
Mailing Address: 1188 El Camino Real, Colma, CA 94014 
Telephone: (650) 757-8888 
Email:brad.donohue@colma.ca.gov 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

12



Town of Colma 
 
Exhibit A – Jurisdiction Boundary Map 
 
 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

13



Town of Colma 
 
 
Exhibit B - Public Meeting Announcements  
 
(Posting on Town Website April 17, 2012) 

 
 
(Notice of Public Hearing, Posted April 15, 2012 on 3 Town Bulletin 
Boards) 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex   

14



Town of Colma 
 

2010 Local Hazard Mitigation Plan   
Town of Colma Annex  

15
 

Exhibit C – Town of Colma Mitigation Strategies 
 
(See Attached Spreadsheets) 


	Agenda - Regular Meeting 09.09.15
	1. Minutes - 07.15.15 Special Meeting
	2. Minutes - 07.22.15 Special Meeting
	3. Report of Checks Paid - July
	4. Report of Checks Paid - August
	5. Second Reading - City Clerk Ordinance
	6. Second Reading - Design Review Ordinance
	7. Establishing Salaries and Adopting a Salary Schedule
	A. Resolution
	Exhibit A - Salary Schedule 09.09.15

	B. Staffing Chart

	8. Placeworks Contract Addendum
	A. Resolution
	B. Contract Addendum 2
	Exhibit A - PlaceWorks Scope of Work


	9. Conditional Use Permit at 1755 Mission Road
	A. Resolution 1755 Mission
	B. 1755 Mission Road Site Plan

	10. Amended Conditional Use Permit at 1531-1537 Mission Road
	A. Resolution - 1531-1537 Mission Road Amended CUP
	B. 1531-1537 Mission Road - Site Plan

	11. Conditional Use Permit at 1531-1533 Mission Road
	A. Resolution - 1531-1533 Mission Road CUP
	B. 1531-1533 Mission Road - Site Plan

	12. Small Residential Rooftop Solar Energy System Ordinance
	A. Ordinance

	13. City Council Meeting Time and Day Ordinance
	A. Ordinance Meeting Start Time
	B. Ordinance Meeting Start Time and Second Day

	14. Grant Funding Requests
	A. Resolution
	B. Funding Request Summary
	C. Historic Funding Levels
	D. Funding Requests

	15. Grant Funding Request for Daly City Public Library Associate
	A. Resolution
	B. DCPLA Funding Request

	16. Live Scan Finger Printing Fee Increase
	A. Resolution

	17. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan
	A. Annex to ABAG LHMP




